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DAVIDSON & COMPANY Chartered A ant A Partnership of Incorporated Professionals
s Chartered ACCOUNtANtS  seme—————

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of
Vault Systems Inc.

We have audited the balance sheets of Vault Systems Inc. as at December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the statements of
operations and deficit and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. As required by the Company Act of British Columbia, we report that,
in our opinion, these principles have been applied on a consistent basis.

"DAVIDSON & COMPANY"

Vancouver, Canada Chartered Accountants

March 7, 2002

A Member of SCINTERNATIONAL

1200 - 609 Granville Street, P.O. Box 10372, Pacific Centre, Vancouver, BC, Canada, V7Y 1G6
Telephone (604) 687-0947 Fax (604) 687-6172




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT DECEMBER 31

2001 2000
ASSETS
Current
Cash § 423849 § 24,060
Receivables 5,396 11,619
Prepaid expenses - 90,753
429,245 126,432
Capital assets (Note 3) - 43,951
License (Note 4) - 500,000
$ 429245 § 670,383
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 214111 § 24,079
Shareholders' equity
Share capital (Note 5) 5,515,958 5,365,958
Subscriptions received in advance (Note 5) 93,000 -
Deficit (5.393.824) _ (4,719.654)
215.134 646,304
$ 429245 § 670,383
Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1)
Subsequent events (Note 12)
On behalf of the Board:
"J. Michael Mackey" Director "David Rees" Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
2001 2000
EXPENSES
Amortization $ 9,128 §$ 7,300
Bank charges 3,526 851
Consulting fees 117,500 128,327
Investor relations 33,350 90,969
Listing and transfer agent fees 14,234 29,731
Management fees 45,000 52,500
Office and miscellaneous 6,024 13,682
Professional fees 113,596 121,219
Research and development 103,183 456,203
Travel 7.050 67,339
Loss before other items (452.591) (968.121)
OTHER ITEMS
Interest income 24 19,137
Write-off of capital assets (Note 3) (34,823) -
Write-off of investment in license (Note 4) (500,000) -
Legal settlement (Note 7) 313,220 -
Write-down of mineral claims (Note §8) - (50,114)
Write-down of deferred exploration costs (Note 8) - (214.865)
(221,579) (245.842)
Loss for the year (674,170) (1,213,963)
Deficit, beginning of year (4.719.654) (3.505.691)
Deficit, end of year $ (5,393,824) § (4,719,654)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ 0.12) § (0.30)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 5,522,439 4,013,515

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2001

2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year
Items not affecting cash:

(674,170) $ (1,213,963)

Amortization 9,128 7,300
Write-off of capital assets 34,823 -
Write-off of investment in license 500,000 -
Write-down of mineral claims - 50,114
Write-down of deferred exploration costs - 214,865
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 6,223 (11,411)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 90,753 (90,753)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 190,032 58,326
Decrease in due to directors - (90,526)
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities 156,789 (1.076.048)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of license - {500,000)
Purchase of capital assets - (51.251)
Cash flows used in investing activities - (551,251)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 150,000 1,650,000
Subscriptions received in advance 93,000 -
Cash flows provided by financing activities 243.000 1,650,000
Increase in cash during the year 399,789 22,701
Cash, beginning of year 24.060 1,359
Cash, end of year 423849 $ 24,060
Cash paid for interest during the year - 3 -
Cash paid for income taxes during the year - $ -

Supplemental disclosure with respect to cash flows (Note 10)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of British Columbia. During the current year, the Company was
deemed to be inactive by the Canadian Venture Exchange ("CDNX") but is currently focused on the development
of software for the medical profession and ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the development
stage. ‘

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued operations of the
Company are dependent on the Company's ability to receive continued financial support from related parties, to
complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

2001 2000
Deficit $ (5,393,823) $ (4,719,654)
Working capital 215,134 102,353

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Financial instruments

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest,
currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of these financial instruments
approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided for annually using the
declining balance method at the following rates:

Software 100%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and office equipment 20%




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd...)
License

License is stated at cost and is adjusted to net realizable value if there is a decline in value that is other than
temporary. During the current year, management decided to write-off the carrying value of the license (Note 4).

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Income and expenses are
translated at rates which approximate those in effect on transaction dates.

Stock-based compensation

The Company grants options pursuant to the policies of the CDNX as described in Note 6. No compensation
expense is recognized when stock options are granted. Any consideration paid on exercise of stock options is
credited to capital stock.

Segment information
The Company currently conducts substantially all of its operations in Canada in one business segment.
Income taxes

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method, future tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Future tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply when the asset is
realized or the liability settled. The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized
in income in the period that substantive enactment or enactment occurs. To the extent that the Company does not
consider it more likely than not that a future tax asset will be recovered, it provides a valuation allowance against
the excess.

Earnings (loss) per share

In accordance with the revised recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants, the Company
changed from the imputed earnings approach to the treasury stock method, to compute the dilutive effect of
options, warrants and similar instruments. Under this method the dilutive effect on earnings per share is
recognized on the use of the proceeds that could be obtained upon exercise of options and warrants. It assumes that
the proceeds would be used to purchase common shares at the average market price during the period. For loss per
share the dilutive effect has not been presented as it proved to be anti-dilutive. The new standard has been applied
on a retroactive basis and had no material impact on the amounts presented.

Earning (loss) per share is calculated using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

3. CAPITAL ASSETS
2001 2000

Accumulated Net Book Accumulated Net Book
Cost  Amortization Value Cost  Amortization Value
Software $ - $ - $ - $ 1,134 § 567 $ 567
Computer equipment - - - 34,428 5,164 29,264

Furniture and office
equipment - - - 15,689 1,569 14,120
$ - $ - 3 - $ 51,251 § 7,300 % 43,951

During the year ended December 31, 2001, management determined that the carrying value of the Company's
capital assets should be written-off due to the termination of the support agreement with INToo Software
Corporation (Note 4). Consequently, the unamortized balance for capital assets of $34,823 was written-off to
operations.

4. LICENSE

The Company had entered into an agreement with INToo Software Corporation (“INTo0”) whereby the Company
acquired a license to the eMedicalexplorer procurement technology. As consideration, the Company paid $500,000,
and under certain terms and conditions, was to issue 7,000,000 common shares to INToo and related parties, and
was to also issue a warrant enabling the holders to purchase a further 6,000,000 common shares exercisable for a
period of two years at a price of $1.00 per share. During the current year, as some of the terms and conditions were
not fulfilled, the agreement was terminated and accordingly no common shares or warrants were issued.
Consequently, all costs related to the investment in the license have been written-off to operations.

s. SHARE CAPITAL
Number
of Shares Amount
Authorized:
100,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued:

Balance as at December 31, 1999 1,166,990 $ 3,537,285
Private placements — for cash 2,500,000 1,650,000
Debt settlement 940,381 178,673

Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 5,365,958
Exercise of share purchase warrants for cash 1,000,000 150,000

Balance as at December 31, 2001 5,607,371 $ 5,515,958




YAULT SYSTEMS INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

5. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d...)

Included in issued share capital are 51,561 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and may not be
transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.

In January 2000, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.15 per share for total cash
proceeds of $150,000.

In February 2000, the Company issued 940,381 common shares at an agreed price of $0.19 per share to settle
accounts payable in the amount of $178,673.

In April 2000, the Company issued 1,500,000 common shares at a price of $1.00 per share for total cash proceeds
of $1,500,000.

In January 2001, the - Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.15 per share for total cash
proceeds of $150,000 pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants.

At December 31, 2001, the Company received subscriptions in the amount of $93,000 for 1,860,000 private
placement units of the Company which were issued subsequent to year end (Note 12).

6. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the CDNX, is authorized to grant options to executive officers
and directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding
common stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of the Company's stock
as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term of 5 years.

At December 31, 2001, the Company was designated inactive, pursuant to the policies of the CDNX, and is
prohibited from granting new incentive stock options. In addition, principals of the Company are prohibited from
exercising previously granted stock options. A total of 180,000 stock options outstanding were held by principals
of the Company at year end. '

The following incentive stock options were outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Number Exercise
of Shares Price Expiry Date

310,000 $ 1.55 February 21, 2002 (subsequently expired)




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

6.

STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (cont'd...)

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Weighted

Average

Number Exercise

of Shares Price

Outstanding at December 31, 1999 930,000 $ 0.18

Granted 310,000 1.55

Expired/cancelled (930,000) 0.18
Exercised _— -

Qutstanding at December 31, 2000 and 2001 310,000 §$ 1.55

Exercisable at December 31, 2001 130,000 § 1.55

The following share purchase warrants were outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Number Exercise
of Shares Price Expiry Date
1,500,000 $ 2.00 April 5, 2002
LEGAL SETTLEMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2001, a settlement was reached in a lawsuit for which the Company was a co-
plaintiff seeking damages from professional and contractual relationships. The Company received net proceeds of
$313,220 pursuant to the settlement agreement.

MINERAL PROPERTIES

The Company has maintained a 100% interest in the Lock #1 - #4 Eagle and Raven claims. These claims are
located in the Queen Charlotte Islands, British Columbia. During 1988, the land surrounding the Company's
claims was included in an area designated by the Government of British Columbia as a park reserve. During the
year ended December 31, 2000, management of the Company determined that there was uncertainty relating to the
recoverability of the mineral properties and accordingly, all related costs were written-down to reflect the
impairment in value. Management is monitoring the progress of similar claims and believes previous costs
incurred may be recovered. However, the ultimate resolution of this matter is uncertain at this time.

The Company charges environmental protection costs and land rehabilitation program costs to operations in the
year of incurrance. At this time, the Company does not foresee the necessity to make any material expenditures in
this area.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company entered into the following transactions with related
parties:

a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $112,500 (2000 - $120,000) to a director or a company controlled by a
director of the Company.

b) Paid or accrued management fees of $45,000 (2000 - $52,500) to a director of the Company.

¢) Paid or accrued professional fees of $2,129 (2000 - $44,062) to a company with a director in common and a law
firm in which a director is a partner.

d) Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2001 is $118,172 (2000 - $2,222) due to a company controlled by A
a director and directors of the Company.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value which
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

10. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS
During the year ended December 31, 2001, there were no significant non-cash transactions.

The significant non-cash transaction for the year ended December 31, 2000 consisted of the Company issuing
940,381 common shares at an agreed price of $0.19 per share to settle accounts payable in the amount of $178,673.

11. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:

2001 2000
Loss for the year $ (674,170) § (1,213,963)
Income tax recovery at statutory rate $ 300,680 § 553,810
Non-deductible items for tax purposes (8,968) (3,330)
Write-off of capital assets 7,327 -
Write-down of mineral claims - (22,862)
Write-down of exploration costs - (98,021)
Unrecognized benefit of non-capital losses (299.039) (429,597)
Income tax recovery - $ -




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2001

11.

12.

INCOME TAXES (cont'd...)

The significant components of the Company's future income tax assets are as follows:

2001 2000

Future income tax assets:

Capital assets $ - 5 3,329

Non-capital loss carryforwards 764,110 517,570

Mineral properties written-off 155,320 170,254

919,430 691,153

Valuation allowance (919,430) (691,153)
Net future income tax assets $ - 8 -

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future tax assets.
It is reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and manner of the
reversal of future tax liabilities.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately $1,837,000 in non-capital losses expiring at various dates
beginning in 2002, which are available for carryforward to reduce future income for tax purposes. Subject to
certain restrictions, the Company has further resource and development exploration expenditures totalling
approximately $373,000 available to reduce taxable income of future years. The potential tax benefit of these
losses has not been recorded in these financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to December 31, 2001, the following events occurred:

a) The Company issued 1,860,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.05 per unit for proceeds

-+ of $93,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share

purchase warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share
until January §, 2003. :

b} The Company issued 930,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.10 per unit for proceeds of
$93,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share purchase
warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share until
January 21, 2004.




Incorporated as part of Schedules B and C

ISSUER DETAILS

NAME OF ISSUER: Vault Systems Inc.

ISSUER ADDRESS: Suite 430, 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B§
ISSUER TEL NO.: 604-222-4971 ISSUER FAX NO.:
CONTACT PERSON: J. Michael Mackey CONTACT POSITION:

CONTACT E-MAIL ADDRESS:

WEBSITE ADDRESS: www.vault-systems.com

FOR QUARTER ENDED: December 31, 2001 DATE OF REPORT:

604-222-2103

President

May 15, 2002

THE THREE SCHEDULES REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THIS REPORT ARE ATTACHED AND Tk

“]. Michael Mackey” J. Michael Mackey 2002/05/15
Director’s Signature Print Full Name Date Signed (yy/mm/dd)
"David Rees” David Rees 2002/05/15

Director’s Signature Print Full Name Date Signed (yy/mm/dd)




2. Statements of Operations and Deficit for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
4. Notes to Financial Statements as at December 31, 2001.

w

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

a) Breakdown of expensed research and development

INToo support agreement $ 95,000
Other miscellaneous 8,183
$103,183

2. Related party transactions
During the fiscal quarter under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties
+ Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2001 is § 118,172 (2000 - § 2,222 ) due to a company controlled by a di
These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that represented the amoun
3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

During the fiscal quarter under review, the Company received subscriptions in the amount of $ 93,000 for 1,860,000 units o

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount

b). Issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2001




Options Exercise price

Exercisable on or before February 21, 2002 * 310,000 $0.1.55 per share

*  Expired subsequent to the fiscal period under review

d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares

Escrowed shares 51,561

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

QUARTERLY AND YEAR END REPORT - FORM 51-901F
DECEMBER 31, 2001

SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1.

General

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related
Description of Business

The Companies principal business is the development of software for the medical profession.
Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

The Company does not have operating revenues. Historically the Company has received reve
During 2001 the Company raised $150,000 by way of exercising of outstanding warrants result
The Company did not proceed with proposed transactions with INToo Software Corporation (IN
The Company is financing the development of TeMR (Total Electronic Medical Record Solution
The next step will be to raise funding by equity financing or joint venture partner/s to move forw
Subsequent Events

See Note 12 of the financial statements.

Financing, Principal Purposes and Milestones

During 2001 the Company raised $150,000 by way of the exercise of outstanding share purche
Liquidity and Solvency

The Company does not presently have sufficient financial resources to undertake commercializ




FORM 51-901F
QUARTERLY REPORT
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“J. Michael Mackey” J. Michael Mackey 2002/05/15
Director’s Signature Print Full Name Date Signed (yy/mm/dd)
"David Rees” David Rees 2002/05/15

Director’s Signature Print Full Name Date Signed (yy/mm/dd)




Vault Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended December 31, 2001
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B
Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

a) Breakdown of expensed research and development

INToo support agreement $ 95,000
Other miscellaneous 8,183
$103,183

2. Related party transactions

During the fiscal quarter under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related
parties
e Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2001 is $ 118,172 ( 2000 - § 2,222 ) due to a company
controlled by a director and directors of the Company.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

During the fiscal quarter under review, the Company received subscriptions in the amount of § 93,000 for 1,860,000
units of the Company which were issued subsequent to the year end.

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2001
Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958
Exercise of warrants — for cash 1,000,000 150,000

Balance as at December 31, 2001 5,607,371 $ 5,515,958




¢). Outstanding as at December 31, 2001 Warrants Exercise price

Exercisable on or before April 5, 2002 1,500,000 $ 2.00 per share

*

*  Expired subsequent to the fiscal period under review

Options Exercise price
Exercisable on or before February 21, 2002 310,000 $0.1.55 per share
*
*  Expired subsequent to the fiscal period under review
d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares
Escrowed shares 51,561

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

1. General

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes

2. Description of the Business

The Companies principal business is the development of software for the medical profession.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

The Company does not have operating revenues. Historically the Company has received revenues During 2001 the
Company raised $150,000 by way of exercising of outstanding warrants resulting The Company did not proceed
with proposed transactions with INToo Software Corporation (INToo) The Company is financing the development
of TeMR (Total Electronic Medical Record Solution) and The next step will be to raise funding by equity financing
or joint venture partner/s to move forward

4. Subsequent Events

See Note 12 of the financial statements.

5. Financing, Principal Purposes and Milestones

During 2001 the Company raised $150,000 by way of the exercise of outstanding share purchase

6. Liquidity and Solvency

The Company does not presently have sufficient financial resources to undertake commercialization.




Incorporated as part of Schedules B and C

ISSUER DETAILS

NAME OF ISSUER: Yault Systems Inc.

ISSUER ADDRESS: Suite 430, 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B8
ISSUER TEL NO.: 604-222-4971 ISSUER FAX NO.: 604-222-2103
CONTACT PERSON: J. Michael Mackey CONTACT POSITION: President

CONTACT E-MAIL ADDRESS:

WEBSITE ADDRESS: www.vault-systems.com

FOR QUARTER ENDED: December 31, 2001 DATE OF REPORT: May 15, 2002

THE THREE SCHEDULES REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THIS REPORT ARE ATTACHED AND TE

“J. Michael Mackey” J. Michael Mackey 2002/05/15
Director’s Signature Print Full Name Date Signed (yy/mm/dd)
"David Rees” David Rees 2002/05/15

Nirectar’s Sienatire Print Full Name Date Siened (vv/mm/dd)




2. Statements of Operations and Deficit for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
3. Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
4. Notes to Financial Statements as at December 31, 2001,

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A
1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

a) Breakdown of expensed research and development

INToo support agreement $ 95,000
Other miscellaneous 8,183
$103,183

2. Related party transactions
During the fiscal quarter under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties
. Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2001 is $ 118,172 (2000 - $ 2,222 ) due to a company controlled by a di

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that represented the amount of ¢

3.  Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

During the fiscal quarter under review, the Company received subscriptions in the amount of § 93,000 for 1,860,000 units of the Com

4, Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value




S.

* Expired subsequent to the fiscal period under review

Options

Exercise price

Exercisable on or before February 21, 2002 * 310,000
* Expired subsequent to the fiscal period under review

d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement

$ 0.1.55 per share

Number of shares

Escrowed shares

List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director

51,561

Chief Operating
Officer




Vault Systems Inc.
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DECEMBER 31, 2001

SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1, General

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes of the Com
2. Description of Business

The Companies principal business is the development of software for the medical profession.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

The Company does not have operating revenues. Historically the Company has received revenues only from the
During 2001 the Company raised $150,000 by way of exercising of outstanding warrants resulting in the issuan
The Company did not proceed with proposed transactions with INToo Software Corporation (INToo) to develoj
The Company is financing the development of TeMR (Total Electronic Medical Record Solution) and expects a
The next step will be to raise funding by equity financing or joint venture partner/s to move forward to commerc
4, Subsequent Events

See Note 12 of the financial statements.

5. Financing, Principal Purposes and Milestones

During 2001 the Company raised $150,000 by way of the exercise of outstanding share purchase warrants.

6. Liquidity and Solvency

The Company does not presently have sufficient financial resources to undertake commercialization of its TeMR
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DAVIDSON & COWANY Chartered A ant A Partnership of Incorporated Professionals
=== Chartered ACCOUNtaN(S ——————

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of
Vault Systems Incorporated

We have audited the balance sheet of Vault Systems Incorporated as at December 31, 2000 and the statements of operations
and deficit and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and
perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2000 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. As required by the Company Act of British Columbia, we report that, in our opinion, these
principles have been applied on a consistent basis.

The audited financial statements as at December 31, 1999 and for the year then ended were examined by other auditors who
expressed an opinion without reservation on those statements in their report dated March 30, 2000.

"DAVIDSON & COMPANY"

Vancouver, Canada Chartered Accountants

February 8, 2001

A Member of SC INTERNATIONAL

Suite 1200, Stock Exchange Tower, 609 Granville Street, P.O. Box 10372, Pacific Centre, Vancouver, BC, Canada, V7Y 1G6
Telephone (604) 687-0947 Fax (604) 687-6172




VAULT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
BALANCE SHEET

AS AT DECEMBER 31
2000 1999
ASSETS
Current
Cash $ 24,060 1,359
Receivables 11,619 208
Prepaid expenses (Note 5) 90,753 -
126432 1,567
Mineral properties (Note 3)
Mineral claims - 50,114
Deferred exploration costs - 214.865
- 264.979
Capital assets (Note 4) 43,951 -
License (Note 5) 500.000 -
543951 -
$ 670,383 266,546
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 24,079 144,426
Due to directors - 90.526
24,079 234.952
Shareholders' equity
Share capital (Note 6) 5,365,958 3,537,285
Deficit (4.719.654) (3.505.691)
646 304 31.594
$ 670383 § 266,546
Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1)
Subsequent events (Note 11)
On behalf of the Board:
"J Michael Mackey" "H. Barry Hemsworth”
Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
STATEMENT-OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
2000 1999
EXPENSES
Amortization $ 7,300 § -
Bank charges and interest 851 80
Consulting fees 128,327 2,000
Investor relations 90,969 -
Listing and transfer agent fees 29,731 7,775
Management fees 52,500 7,500
Office and miscellaneous 8,768 238
Printing 1,314 3,483
Professional fees 121,219 11,224
Rent 3,600 -
Research and development 456,203 -
Travel 67339 -
Loss before other items (968.121) (32.300)
OTHER ITEMS
Write-down of mineral claims (Note 3) (50,114) -
Write-down of deferred exploration costs (Note 3) (214,865) -
Interest income 19.137 -
(245.842) -
Loss for the year (1,213,963) (32,300)
Deficit, beginning of year (3.505.691) (3.473.391)
Deficit, end of year $  (4,719,654) $  (3,505,691)
Loss per share $ (030)  § 0.03)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2000 1999
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year (1,213,963) § (32,300)
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization 7,300 -
Write-down of mineral claims 50,114 -
Write-down of deferred exploration costs 214,865 -
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Increase in accounts receivable (11,411) 1
Increase in prepaid expenses (90,753) -
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 58,326 3,865
Increase (decrease) in due to directors (90.526) 29,673
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities (1.076.048) 1217
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of license (500,000) -
Purchase of capital assets (51.251) -
Cash flows used in investing activities (551.251) -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of capital stock 1.650.000 -
Cash flows provided by financing activities 1,650,000 -
Increase in cash during the year 22,701 1,217
Cash, beginning of year 1.359 142
Cash, end of year 24,060 $ 1,359
Cash paid for interest during the year - 8 -
Cash paid for income taxes during the year - % -

Supplemental disclosure for non-cash investing and financing activities (Note 9)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2000 -

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of British Columbia and was in the process of exploring its mineral
properties. In 1990, the Company changed its principal business to the development of computer oriented hardware
and software. The Company was inactive from 1995 to a portion of 1999. During the year, the Company focused on
business activity to the development of software for the medical profession and ancillary fields. The Company is
considered to be in the development stage.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles with the
assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued operations of the Company are dependent
on the Company's ability to receive continued financial support from related parties, to complete public equity
financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

2000 1999
Deficit $ (4,719654) § (3,505,691)
Working capital (deficiency) 102,353 (233,385)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Financial instruments

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency
or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of these financial instruments approximate their
carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

Environmental protection and rehabilitation costs

The Company's policy relating to environmental protection and land rehabilitation programmes is to charge to income
during the year any costs incurred in environmental protection and land reclamation. At this time the Company does
not foresee the necessity to make any material expenditures in this area.

Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided for annually using the
declining balance method at the following rates

Software 100%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and office equipment 20%

In the year of acquisition, capital assets are amortized at 50% of the above rates.




VAULT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2000

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd.....)
License
License is stated at cost and is adjusted to net realizable value if there is a decline in value that is other than
temporary. Amortization will be recorded on a 3 year straight-line basis commencing in the year of commercialization
of the related product.
Foreign currency translation
Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of-exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Income and expenses are translated
at rates which approximate those in effect on transaction dates.
Stock-based compensation plan
The Company grants options as described in Note 7. No compensation expenses is recognized for this plan when
stock or stock options are issued to employees. Any consideration paid by employees on the exercise of stock
options is credited to capital stock.
Segment information
The Company currently conducts substantially all of its operations in Canada in one business segment,
Future income taxes
Future income tax assets and liabilities are established where the accountirfg net book value of assets and liabilities
differs from the corresponding tax basis. The benefit of future income tax assets is only recognized where their
realization is judged more likely than not.
Loss per share
Loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.

3. MINERAL PROPERTIES

The Company formerly maintained a 100% interest in the Lock #1 - #4 Eagle and Raven claims. These claims were
located in the Queen Charlotte Islands, British Columbia. During 1988, the land surrounding the Company's claims
was included in an area designated by the Government of British Columbia as a park reserve. During the current year,
management of the Company determined that there was uncertainty relating to the recoverability of the mineral
properties and accordingly, all related costs were written-down to reflect the impairment in value. Management is
monitoring the progress of similar claims and believes these costs may be recovered. However, the ultimate
resolution of this matter is uncertain at this time.




VAULT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2000
4. CAPITAL ASSETS
Accumulated Net Book Value
Cost  Amortization 2000 1999

Software $ 1,134 § 567 § 567 § -

Computer equipment 34,428 5,164 29,264 -

Furniture and office equipment 15,689 1.569 14.120 -

$ 51,251 § 7.300 § 43951 § -

5. LICENSE

During the year, the Company acquired a license from INToo Software Corporation ("INToo"), for a worldwide
internet software solution for the medical profession and ancillary fields. As consideration, the Company paid
$500,000, will issue 7,000,000 common shares to INToo, management and related parties and will also issue a warrant
to purchase a further 6,000,000 common shares exercisable for a period of two years at a price of $1.00 per share, all of
which is subject to regulatory approval.

The Company also entered into a support agreement for $70,000 per month, whereby INToo agreed to provide office
space, a software development team, and other enhancements to further develop the eMedical Software Program,
These amounts have been expensed to research and development. The support agreement, which was subject to
regulatory approval, was subsequently terminated on January 1, 2001 and any future support will be paid for on a
project to project basis.

Included in prepaid expenses is a $50,000 advance to INToo made under the support agreement which will be applied
against future support services.

6. SHARE CAPITAL
Number

of Shares Amount

Authorized:

100,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued:

Balance as at December 31, 1998 and 1999 1,166,990 $ 3,537,285
Private placements — for cash 2,500,000 1,650,000
Debt settlement 940.381 178.673
Balance as at December 31, 2000 4607371 $ 5365958

Included in issued share capital are 51,561 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and may not be
transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.



VAULT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2000

6. SHARE CAPITAL (cont'd.....)

In January 2000, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.135 per share for total cash proceeds of
$150,000.

In February 2000, the Company issued 940,381 common shares at an agreed price of $0.19 per share to settle accounts
payable in the amount of $178,673.

In April 2000, the Company issued 1,500,000 common shares at a price of $1.00 per share for total cash proceeds of
$1,500,000.

7. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the Canadian Venture Exchange, is authorized to grant options to
executive officers and directors, employees and consuitants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and
outstanding common stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of the
Company's stock as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term of 5 years.

The following incentive stock options were outstanding at December 31, 2000:

Number Exercise
of Shares Price Expiry Date
310,000 3 1.55 February 21, 2002

All of these options have vested and are exercisable by the holder,

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Weighted

Average

Number Exercise

of Shares Price

Outstanding at December 31, 1998 and 1999 930,000 $ 0.18
Granted ‘ 310,000 1.55
Expired/cancelled {930,000) 0.18

Exercised —_—_— -

Outstanding at December 31, 2000 310,000 § 1.55




VAULT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2000

7.

STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (cont'd.....)

Following is a summary of the status of options outstanding at December 31, 2000:

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Contractual Exercise Exercise
Exercise Prices Number Life Price Number Price
$ 155 310,000 1.14 years § 1.55 310,000 § 1.55

The following share purchase warrants were outstanding at December 31, 2000:

Number Exercise
of Shares Price Expiry Date
1,000,000 $ 0.15 January 31,2001
1,500,000 1.00 April 5, 2001
6,000,000 1.00 August 23, 2002, subject to regulatory approval.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended December 3 1, 2000, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:

a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $120,000 (1999 - $2,000) to a director or a company controlled by a director of
the Company.

b) Paid or accrued management fees of $52,500 (1999 - $7,500) to a director of the Company.

¢) Paid or accrued professional fees of $44,062 (1999 - $Nil) to a company with a director in common and a law firm in
which a director is a partner. :

d) Included in accounts payable at December 31, 2000 is $2,222 (1999 - $58,939) due to a company controlled by a
director and directors of the Company.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value which
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

' SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE FOR NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The significant non-cash transaction for the year ended December 31, 2000 consisted of the Company issuing
940,381 shares of common stock at an agreed price of $0.19 per share to settle accounts payable in the amount of
$178,673.

During the year ended December 31, 1999, there were no significant non-cash transactions.




VAULT SYSTEMS INCORPORATED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2000

10.

11.

FUTURE INCOME TAXES

Future tax assets and liability:

Future tax assets:

Capital assets $ 3,329
Loss carryforwards 517,570
Mineral properties written-off 170,254
Valuation allowance (691.153)
Total future tax assets after valuation allowance $ -
Net future tax liability $ -

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future tax assets. It is
reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and manner of the reversal of
future tax liabilities.

At December 31, 2000, the Company had approximately $1,135,000 in non-capital losses expiring at various dates
beginning in 2001, which are available for carryforward to reduce future income for tax purposes. The potential tax
benefit of these losses has not been recorded in these financial statements.

2000 1999
Statutory income tax rate (46.5.%) (46.5.%)
Loss carried forward to future years 46.5.% 46.5.%
Effective tax rate - % - %

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to December 31, 2000, the following events occurred:

a) The Company issued 1,000,000 common shares for total proceeds of $150,000 pursuant to the exercise of share
purchase warrants.

b) The Company terminated the support agreement with INToo (Note 5).
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Vault Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended December 31, 2000
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Schedule A

Financial information prepared in accordance with Section 1751 of the C.1.C.A. Handbook or CICA Accounting
Guideline AcG-11 Enterprises in the Development Stage as per attached:

1. Annual audited financial statements prepared on a comparative basis.




Vault Systems Inc.

For the quarter ended December 31, 2000
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A
1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

a) Breakdown of expensed research and development

INToo support agreement $ 350,000
Technological consulting 69,270
Other miscellaneous 36,933
$456,203
2. Related party transactions
As per notes to annual audited financial statements included in Schedule A
3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.
During the period under review, there were neither securities issued nor options granted.
4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.
a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value
Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958
c). Outstanding as at December 31, 2000 Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before January 31, 2001 1,000,000 $ 0.15 per share
Exercisable on or before April 5, 2002 * 1,500,000 $ 2.00 per share
Exercisable on or before August 23, 2002 ** 6,000,000 $ 1.00 per share

8,500,000

*  Amended subsequent to the period under review. The original terms set a price of § 1.00 per share,

exercisable on or before April 5,2001.

**  Subject to Regulatory and Shareholder Approval and re-negotiation of the purchase agreement

Options Exercise price

Exercisable on or before February 21, 2002 310,000 $ 0.1.55 per share

d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares

Escrowed shares 51,561




5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director




Vault Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended December 31, 2000
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

The Company’s principal business activity is the development of software for the medical profession and
ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the development stage.

Continued operations of the Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial
support from reiated parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operation in the future.
As at December 31, 200 the Company maintained a working capital balance of $ 102,353,

In connection with it’s business focus, on August 23, 2000 the Company acquired a license from INToo Software
Corporation { “INT00”), to the e-Medical Explorer procurement technology, a worldwide Internet software
solution for the medical profession and ancillary fields, for initial consideration in the amount of $500,000. The
License is stated at cost and is adjusted to net realizable value if there is a decline in value that is other than
temporary. Amortization will be recorded on a 3-year straight-line basis commencing in the year of
commercialization of the related product. As additional consideration, the Company is to issue 7,000,000 shares
to INToo, management and to related parties (based on a valuation in accordance with Canadian Venture
Exchange policies). The Company is also to issue to INToo an additional 6,000,000 warrants, each entitling the
holder to purchase one share at a price of § 1.00 or such other price as acceptable to the Canadian Venture
Exchange. (The Company is currently re-negotiating the purchase agreement for the eMedical explorer
procurment system.)

During the fiscal year the Company paid $ 51,251 to acquire computer equipment and software, and furniture and
office equipment to facilitate its business operations.

The Company formerly maintained interests in mineral claims located in the Queen Charlotte [slands, British
Columbia. During 1988 the land surrounding the Company’s claims was included in an area designated by the
Government of British Columbia as a park reserve. During the current year management of the Company
determined that there was uncertainty relating to the recoverability of the mineral properties and accordingly, all
related costs were written-down to reflect the impairment in value. Management is monitoring the progress of
similar claims and believes these costs may be recovered. However, the ultimate resolution of this matter is
uncertain at this time, There were no other material write-offs or write-down of assets.

The Company entered into a Support Agreement dated September 20, 2000 whereby it was to pay to INToo

$ 70,000 per month for specific work performed and invoiced on the development of specific software solutions.
$ 350,000 was paid to INToo for Research and Development under this agreement. The Support Agreement,
which was subject to regulatory approval, was subsequently terminated on January 1, 2001 and any future
support will be paid for on a project-by-project basis.

The company entered into transactions with related parties, including the payments of consulting, management
and professional fees as disclosed in note 8 to the annual audited financial statements. These transactions were
in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange values, which represented the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

During the year the Company employed Netserve Communications Ltd. in consideration for $ 5,000 per month, to
provide investor relations services (“IR”). During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 the Company
expended $ 90,969 on IR, of which $ 55,950 was paid to Netserve Communications Ltd. for fees and
disbursements. This agreement was terminated in December 2000.




There were no other material contracts or commitments

There are no material differences in the actual use of proceeds from previous disclosure regarding intended use
of proceeds.

Subsequent to December 31, 2000 the following events occurred:

1. The Company issued 1,000,000 common shares for total proceeds of $ 150,000 pursuant to the exercise of
share purchase warrants.

2. The Company terminated the support agreement with INToo.

3. The Company acquired regulatory approval to extend the expiry date of 1,500,000 warrants to April 5, 2002,
exercisable at a new exercise price of § 2.00 per share.
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Inc.;




CANADA NUMBER
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
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COMPANY ACT

Certificate

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT

SUSSEX RESQOURCES INCe.

HAS THIS DAY CHANGED ITS NAME TO THE NAME

DIAMOND RESOURCES INCe

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE
AT VICTORIA, BRITISH COLUMBIA,

THIS 26TH DAYOF NOVEMBER, 1930

DEPUTY REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES
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Special Resolution (Form 21) authorizing change of name and altering the
Memorandum;
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FORM 21
(Section 371)

PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
Certificate of

Incorporation No. ... -

COMPANY ACT

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

The following spccial resolution was passed by the undermentioncd Company on the date

-

stated:
SUSSEX RESOURCES INC.

Name of Company: ...~
,19.80 .

September 30th

Date resolution passed:

T

Resolution:
as a Special Resolution that the
name of the Company be changedto DIAMOND RESOURCES INC.

[see note (a)}
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED,

(_;—

+£
Certified a true copy the 2o day of ﬂm “/é- , 1
D (Signat“re')//%c_/
Solicitor

‘

D [: L" F ﬂ [ e
(Relationship to Coméaylz‘yl e (R
FILED AND REGISTERED)]

“',/ ) ..';:C"

CIAANIES

REGISTRAR OF C
NOV 261980

[NOTE.—
(a) Insert text of special resolution
(b) See section 1 (1) for definition of “‘special resolution’.]
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Certificate of Change of Name from Diamond Resources Inc. to Diamond
International Industries Inc.
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CERTIFICATE

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT

DIAMOND RESQOURCES INC.

HAS THIS DAY CHANGED ITS NAME TO THE NAME

DIAMOND INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES INC.

GIVEN, UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE

AT VICTORIA, BRITISH COLUMBIA

THIS . 9TH DAY OF AUGUST, 1989
wmd

DAVID w. BOYD
REGISTRAR QGF COMPANIES
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Special Resolution (Form 21) authorizing the change of name and altering the
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CF~TIFIED ATRUE COPY OF ADOCUMENT
O FRE WITH THE REGISTRAR OF .

COMPANIES. o
AUG  § 1984
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA .
- &//4¢iva
FORM 21 7,4;« REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES
FOR THE PROVINCE OF ERITISH COLUMBIA

(Section 371)

Certificate of
Incorporation No. 217074

COMPANY ACT

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

(e
(O%)

—t

The following special resolution was passed by ti@

undermentioned Company on the date stated: . !

ral

i

be Lt

—~

Name of Company: DIAMOND RESOURCES INC.
Date resolution passed: June 7, 1989

Resolution:

"UPON MOTION DULY MADE IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED,
as a special resolution, that: -

(a) the Company change its name from Diamond
© Resources Inc. to Diamond International
Industries Inc.;

(b) the Memorandum of the Company be altered by

deleting paragraph 1 thereof and substituting
therefor the following:

". The name of the Company is "Diamond
International Industries Inc." and

(¢) the altered Memorandum of the Company be in
the form presented to the meeting and
attached hereto as Schedule "A"."

Certified a true copy on the 8th day of August, 1989.

A

T
R. MARX RUTLEDGE

(Relationship
to Company) SOLICITOR

DIAMOND1




SCHEDULE "'A"

PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

COMPANY ACT

FORM 1
(Sections 5 and 241)

MEMORANDUM
(AMENDED)
OF
DIAMOND INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES INC.
(As altered by special

resolution passed June 7, 1989)

I wish to be formed into a Company with limited
liability under the Company Act in pursuance of this
Memorandum. .

1. The name of the Company is "Diamond International
Industries Inc.".

2. The authorized capital of the Company consists of
Thirty Million (30,000,000) shares without par wvalue.

DIAMOND1




AS.

Certificate of Change of name from Diamond International Industries Inc. to Vault
Systems Inc.;

AT




NUMBER: 217074

ik
BRITISH
COLUMBIA
CERTIFICATE
OF 8
CHANGE OF NAME &
COMPANY ACT :

I Hereby Certify that

DIAMOND INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES INC.

has this day changed its name to

VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

Issued under my hand at Victoria, British Columbia
on December 02, 1999

ol

JOHN S. POWELL
Registrar of Companies

e wm . v T T —— T ¥




A 6.

Special Resolution (Form 21) authorizing change of name and consolidation of
share capital and altering the Memorandum;




FORM 2t /7

(Section 371) Certificate of
O eENT FILEDON | Incorporation No. 217074
CEC 0 21999
COMPANY ACT )
12 7JOHN 5. POWELL v
REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES SPECIAL RESOLUTION e
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA -

-

The following special resolutions were passed by the undermentioned Company on
the date stated: '

Name of Company: DIAMOND INTERNATIONAL INDUSTRIES INC.
Date Resolutions Passed: June 29, 1999

RESOLUTIONS:

1. “RESOLVED, AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION, THAT the Company change its

name to “Vault Systems Inc.”.

2. “RESOLVED, AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION, THAT the authorized capital be
altered by consolidating all 30,000,000 shares without par value of which 9,335,923 shares are issued
as fully paid and non-assessable shares, into 3,750,000 shares without par value of which

1,166,990.3 shares are issued as fully paid, every eight (8) of such shares before consolidation being
consolidated into one (1) share.” _

3. “RESOLVED, AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION, THAT the authorized capital be
increased from 3,750,000 shares without par value of which 1,166,990.3 shares are issued as fully
paid and non-assessable into 100,000,000 shares without par value of which 1,166,990.3 shares have
been issued and outstanding as fully paid and non-assessable.”

4, “RESOLVED, AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION, THAT the Company adopt a new
Memorandum in the form attached hereto.”

CERTIFIED a true copy this 22nd day of July, A.D. 1999.

s AL

(Signature) =

(Relationship to Company) Solicitor




AS ALTERED BY SPECIAL RESO-
LUTION PASSED JULY 22, 1999

AMENDED
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

“COMPANY ACT”

MEMORANDUM

I wish to be formed into a Company with limited liability under the Company Act in
pursuance of this Memorandum.

1. The name of the Company is “VAULT SYSTEMS INC.”.

2. The authorized capital of the Company is One Hundred Million (100,000,000)
common share without par value.

3. I agree to take the number and kind and class of shares in the Company set out
opposite my name.
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Certificate of Name Change from Vault Systems Inc. to Vault Minerals Inc.;

AT




"
PR

3\
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NuMBER: 217074
BRITISH
COLUMBIA
CERTIFICATE -
OF =
CHANGE OF NAME I
COMPANY ACT

I Hereby Certify that

VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

has this day changed its name to

VAULT MINERALS INC.

Issued under my hand at Victoria, British Columbia
on June 18, 2003

ol

JOHN S. POWELL
Registrar of Companies




AS8.

Special Resolution (Form 21) authorizing change of name and consolidation of
share capital and altering the Memorandum




i CERTIFY THIS IS A COPY O
SOCUMENT FLED ON PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

JUN 18 2003
FORM 19 o Certificate of
A (Section 348) Incorp. No. 217074
2 “iOHN S, POWELL E— ‘ &
AEGISTRAR OF COMPANIES ; s
PROVINGE NF RRITISH COLUMBIA COMPANY ACT )
S e
SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS 2

~d
The following special resolutions were passed by the under mentioned Company on the date stated,:namely:

————

Date Resolution Passed: May 16, 2003
Name of Company: Vault Systems Inc.
Resolutions:

IT WAS RESOLVED as a Special Resolution that:

1. (a)
(b)
2 (a)
(b)
(©

pursuant to section 223 of the Company Act of British Columbia, the name of the
Company be changed from Vault Systems Inc. to Vault Minerals Inc.; and that

paragraph 1 of the Memorandum of the Company be altered to read as follows:
"1. The name of the Company is Vault Minerals Inc.".

all of the 100,000,000 common shares without par value, both issued and unissued, be
consolidated into 16,666,666.66 common shares without par value, every six (6) of such
shares before consolidation being consolidated into one share;

the authorized capital be increased from 16,666,666.66 common shares without par value
to 100,000,000 common shares without par value; and

paragraph 2 of the Memorandum be altered to read as follows:

"2. The authorized capital of the Company consists of One Hundred Miilion
(100,000,000) common shares without par value.".

Pursuant to section 217 of the Company Act the altered Memorandum is attached hereto and marked

Schedule "A".

Certified a

e copy this 10th day of june, 2003.

Ll 6

Verlee Webb, Solicitor
#1600, 609 Granville Street
PO Box 10068, Pacific Centre
Vancouver, BC V7Y 1C3




Schedule "A"
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

FORM 1
(Section 3)

COMPANY ACT

ALTERED MEMORANDUM

(As altered by Special Resolution passed on May 16, 2003.)
The name of the Company is Vault Minerals Inc.

The authorized capital of the Company consists of One Hundred Million (100,000,000) common
shares without par value.
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Certificate of Incorporation of Sussex Resources Inc.;

A9.




CANADA NUMBER
PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
217074
[owe ]
(]
Province of British Columbia i}*

Ministry of Consumer and Corporate Affairs
REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

r-
(¥

Certificate of Incorporation

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT

SUSSEX RESOURCES INCe.

HAS THIS DAY BEEN INCORPORATED UNDER THE COMPANY ACT

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE

AT VICTORIA, BRITISH COLUMBIA,

THIS 29TH DAY OF

SEPTEMBER. 1940

Be BECKWITH

ASSTe DEPUTY REGISTRAR QF (NYPANIES




A 10.

Memorandum and Articles;




] | | 410

UNIQINAL ms
FlLED AND REGISTEREU Certified true copies
SRR R Q000010
SEP 291980 COMPANY ACT //” Regis gofﬁ’ﬁm
or the Province of Eritish Columbia

M. A Jorre de St. Jorze MEMORANDUM
REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

I wish to
llabillty under the Company Act in pursuance of this Memorandum.

be formed into a company with limited

1. The name of the Company is "SUSSEX RESOURCES INC -
2. The authorized capital of the Company consists of
thirty million (30,000,000) shares without par value.

3. I agree to take the number of shares in the Company

set opposite my name.

Full name, resident address Number and class of shares
and occupation of subscriber taken by subscriber

/
///)77 One {1) share without
par value

Geofg@7NeV1ll Munr
4450 Osler St

Vancouver, B.C.
Barrister and Solicitor

Total shares taken One (1) share w1thout
par value
1980. 5

DATED the 24th day of September,

et

filag

=¥
Leo®
R

[
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== ALTERED

‘I wish to be formed into a company with limited

liability under the Company Act in pursuance of this Memorandum.

/
1. The name of the Company is ¢SUSSEX RESOURCES INC."
N ) . ‘\\_____‘_* e -
H 2. The authorized capital of the Company consists of
thirty million (30,000,000) shares without par value..
3. I agree to take the number of shares in the Company
set opposite my name.
Full name, resident address Number and class of shares

and occupation of subscriber taken by subscriber ’

One (1) share without.
Georgéﬂﬁevilld\i;g;pq par value

4450 Ogler Stre ,

vanc ver, B.C.,

Barrister and Solicitor

,/\N/ Total shares taken One (1) share without
X’ﬁ par value
[

DATED the 24th day of September, 1980.

< 2 FO  gaaep
’ FILED anp REGISTERED

SEP 251980

M. A Jorre de St Jorre
REGISTRAR OF COMPDANIEC




Ty PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA
COMPAN Y ACT

ARTICLES

’,//////’AOfﬂﬂ_ ”\\\\>
(\ SUSSEX RESOQURCES INC.

INTERPRETATION
1.1 In these Articles, unless there 18 something in the subject or context
inconsistent therewith:
"Roard", '""the Directors"™ or "the directors™ mean the Directores or sole Director of the

Company for the time beling;
«Company Asct™ means the Company Act of the Province of British Columbia from time tc
time 1in force and all amendments thereto and includes the regulations made pursuant

thereto;

"neal’” meana the common seal of the Company, if the Company has one;

"month'" means calendar month;

“reristered owner™ or "regls:tered holder" when used with reaspect to a share in the
authorized capital of the Company means the person registered in the register of members

in respect of such share.

1.2 Expressions referring to writing shall be construed as including references to
printing, lithography, typewriting, photosraphy and other modes of representing or
reproducing words in a visible formn.

1.3 Worda importing the sinrular include the plural and vice versa; and words
importing male persons include female persons and words importing persons shall include

corporations,

1.4 The definitions in the Company Act shall with the necessary chan;;es and so fa:
as applicable apply to these Articles.

1.9 Subject to Article l.4, these Articles shall be construed in accordance with the
Interpretation Act of Rritish Columbia,

1. The regulations contained in Table A in the First Schdduf!ng ng R§S%§L§R£ch
shall not apply to the Company.
SEP 2 91980

SHARES AND S CERTIFICATES M. A Jorre de St Jorre

2.1 Every member 1s entitled, without charge, to one c.rth(;ca'57k %é%%SREf&H“S

the share or shares of each claas held by him; provided that, in respect of a share or
shares held jointly by several persons, the Company shall not be bound to issue more than
one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several joint
registered holders or to his duly authorized agent shall be sufficient delivery to all;

: and provided further that the Company shall not be bound to issue certificates

262 If a share certificate:-

representing redeemable shares, 1if such shares are to be redeemed within one month of
the date on which they were allotted. Any share certificate may be sent through the mat

: by regi s tered prepaid malil to the member entitled thereto, and neither the Company nor a

transfer agent shall be liable for any loss occasioned to the member owing to any such

;ahnro certificate so sent being lost in the mall or stolen.

(1) is worm out or defaced, the Directors shall, upon production to thes of the aaid

certificate and upon such other terms, 1f any, a® they may think fit, order the saiad

‘cortificate to be cancelled and shall issue a new certificate in lieu thereof;

(11) is lost, stolen or destroyed, then, upon proof thereof to the satisfaction of th«
Directors and upon such indemnity, if any, as the Directors deeam adequate being civen, a
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(ifi" represents more than one share and the registered owner thereof surrenders it to
the Company with a written request that the Company issue in his name two or more certi-—
ficates each representing a specified number of shares and in the aggregate representing the
same number of shares as the certificate so surrendered, the Company shall cancel the
certificate so surrendered and issue Iin lieu thereof certificates in accordance with such
requeste.

A sum, not exceceding that permitted by the Company Act, as the Directors may from time to
time determine, shall be paid to the Company for each certificate 1ssued under this Article.

2.3 Every share certificate shall be signed manually by at least one officer or
director of the Company, or by or oun behalf of a registrar, branch registrar, trausfer agent
or branch transfer agent of the Company and any additional signatures may be printed or
otherwise mechanically reproduced and, in such event, a certificate so signed is as valid as
if signed manually, notwithstanding that any person whose signature 1s so printed or mechan—
ically reproduced shall have ceased to hold the office that he is stated on such certificate
to hold at the date of the 1lssue of a share certificate.

2.4 Every share certificate issued by the Company shall be in such form as the
Directors approve and shall conply with the Company Act.

2.5 Except as required by law, statute or these Articles, no person shall be recognized
by the Company as holding any share upon any trust, and the Company shall not be bound by or
compelled in any way to recognize (even when having notice thereof) any equitable, contin=~
gent, future or partial interest in any share or in any fractional part of a share or
(except only as by law, statute or these Articles provided or as ordered by a court of
competent jurisdiction) any other rights in respect of any share except an absolute right to
the entirety thereof in its registered holder. ~

ISSUE OF SHARES

3.1 Subject to Articles 3.2 and to any direction to the contrary contained in a resolu-
tion passed at a general meeting authorizing any increase or alteration of capital, the
shares shall be under the control of the Directors who may, subject to the rights of che
holders of the shares of the Company for the time being issued, issue, allot, sell or
vtherwise dispose of or grant options on or otherwise deal in, shares authorized but not
outstanding or share purchase Warrants at such times, to such persons (including directors),
in such manner, upon such terms and conditions, and at such price or for such consideration,
as they, in their absolute discretion, may determine. ‘

3.2 If the Company is, or becomes, a company which is not a reporting company and the
Directors are required by the Company Act before allotting any shares to offer them pro’
rata to the members, the Directors shall, before allotting any shares, comply with the
applicable provisions of the Company Act.

3.3 Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, the Company, or the Directors on
behalf of the Company, may pay a commission or allow a discount to any person i{in consider-
ation of his subscribing or agreeling to subscribe, whether absolutely or conditionally,
for any shares in the Company, or procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions, whether
absolutely or conditionally, for any such shares, provided that, 1f the Company is not a
specially limited company, the rate of the commission and discount shall not in the
aggregate exceed 257 of the amount of the subscription price of such shares.

3.4 No share may be issued until {t is fully paid and the Company shall have received
the full consideration therefor in cash, property or past services actually performed for
the value determined by the Directors by resolution to be, 1In all circumstances of the
transaction, the falr market value thereof.

SHARE REGISTERS

4.1 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept a register of members, a register of
transfers and a register of allotments within British Columbia, all as required by the
Company Act, and may combine one or more of such registers. If the Company's capital
shall consist of more than one class of shares, a separate register of members, reglister of
transfers uand register of allotments may be kept in respect of each class of shares. The
Directors on behalf of the Company may appoint a trust company to keep the register of
members, register of transfers and register of allotments or, 1f there is more than one
class of shares, the Directors may appoint a trust company, which need not be the same trust
company, to keep the register of members, the register of transfers and the register of
allotments for each class of share. The Directors on behalf of the Company may also appoint
Arma Ay anAava tfraet cramnaniee. includine the trust company which keeps the said registers of
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its shares or of a class thereof, as transfer agent for its shares or such class thereof, as
‘hOj;s:o may be, and the same or another trust company or companies as recistrar for 1its
shares or such class thereof, as the case may be., The Directors may terminate the
:zpointment of any such trust company at any time and may appoint another trust company in

8 place, .

4.2 Unless prohibited by the Company. Act, the Company may keep or cause to be kept one
or more branch reglsters of members at such place or places as the Directors may from time
to time determine.

6.3 The Company shall not at any time close its register of members.

SHARE TRAUSFRRS AND TRANSMISSIONS

S.1 Subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and of these Articles that may bLe
applicable, any member may transfer any of his shares by instrument in writin, executed by

or on behalf of such member and delivered to the Company or 1ts transfer o ent, 'fhe
insirument of tranirer of any share of the Company shall be in the form, 1f any, on the back
of the Compnny'sn share certificates or in such other form as the Directors may frow time to
time . rove. Except to Llhie exten:t that the Company Act may otherwise nrovide, the
transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of the shares until the name of the transferee
i8 entered in the rerister of mernihhers or a uranch rerister of members in reSpect thereof.

5,2 The sirnature of the re;ictlered owner of any shares, or his duly authorized attorney,
upon an authorized instrument of transfer shall constitute a complete and sufficient
authority to the Company, 1ts directors, officers and acents to register, in the nume of the
transferee as named in the instrument of transfer, the number of shares anecified therein

or, 1f no number 18 specified, all the shares of the reristered owner represented by shore
cartificatee deposited with the instrument af transfer. If no transferec 1is niined in the
inetrunment of trensfer, the instrumeunt of transfer shall conatitute a comnlete and sufficient
authority to the Company, 1itLs directors, officers and agents to register, in the name of the
person in whose behalf any certificate for the shares to be tranaferred 1s deposited with

the Company for the purpose of having the transfer registered, the number of shares

specified in the instrument of transfor or, if no number is specified, all the shares
represented by all share certificates deposited with the instrument of tranafer.

5.3 Neither the Company nor any director, officer or agent thereof shall be bound to
inquire into the title of the person named in the form of transfer as transferee, or, {f

no person 1s named therein as transferee, of the person on whose behalf the certiricate is
deposited with Lhe Company for the purpose of having the transfer registered or bLs» lialLle to
any claim by such repgistered owner or by any intermediate owner or holder of the certificate
or of any of the shares represented thereby or any interest therein for registerin~ the
transfer, and the transfer, when recgistered , shall confer upon the person in whose name the
shares have been registered a valid title to such shares.

3.4 Fvery instrument of transfer shall be executed by the transferor and left at the
recvistered office of the Company or at the office of its ‘ransfer agent or recistrar for
reygistration together with the share certificate for the shares %o be tranaferred and such
other evidence, 1f any, as the Directors or the transfer agent or registrar may require to
prove the title of the transferor or his right to transfer the shares and the richt of the
tranaferee to have the transfer registered. All instruments of transfer where the transfer
is registered shall be retained by the Company or its transfer agent or registrar and any
instrument of transfer, where the tranefer is not registered, shall be returned to the person
depoaiting the same together with the share certificate which accompanied the same when
tendered for regiatration. »

5.5 Shere shall Le paid to the Company in reapect of the registration of any transfer
such sum, not exceedin; that permitted by the Company Act, as the Directors may from time
to time determine. .

5.6 In the case of the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the deceased’
was a Jjoint reristered holder, and the legal personal representative of the deceased where
he wac the sole holder, shall be the only persons recocnized by the Company as having any
title to his interest in the shares. Before recognizing any leral persacnal representative
the Directors aay require him to obtsin a grant of probate or letters of administration in
British Colunbia.

5,7 Upon the deatlhh or bankruptcy of a member, his personal representative or trustee
in bankruptcy, althouch not a member, shall have the asme righte, privilegea and oblijations
that attach to tiie shares formerly held by the deceased or bdankrupt member 1f the documents
required by the Company Act shall have been deresited at the Company'sa recistered cffice.
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5.8 Any person who becomes entitled to a share as a result of the death or bankruptcy
of @ny member, upon producing the evidence required by the Company Act, or who becomes
ent’™fed to a share as a result of an order of a court of competent jurisdiction or a
statute, upon producing such evidence as the Directors think sufficient that he is so
entitled, may be registered as holder of the share or may transfer the share; but the
Directors shall, 'as regards a transfer by a personal representative or trustee in
bankruptcy, have the same right, if any, to decline or suspend registration of a transferee
as they would have in the case of a transfer of a share by the deceased or bankrupt person
before the death or bankruptcy.

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

6.1 The Company may b& ordinary resolution filed with the Registrar amend its
Memorandum to increase the authorized capital of the Company by:

(i) creating shares with par value or shares without par wvalue, or both;

(ii) increasing the number of shares with par value or shares without par value, or
both, or

(iii) 'increasing the par value of a class of shares with par value, if no shares of that

class are issued.

6.2 The Company may by special resolution alter its Memorandum to subdivide,
consolidate, change from shares with par value to shares without par value, or from shares
without par value to shares with par value, or change the designation of, all or any of its
shares but only to such extent, in such manner and with such consents of members holding a
class of shares which 1is the subject of or affected by such alteration, as the Company Act
provides.

6.3 The Company may alter its Memorandum or these Articles:

i) by special resolution, to create, define and attach special rights or restrictions
to any shares, and

(1id) by special resolution and by otherwise complying with any applicable provisions of
its Memorandum or these Articles, to vary or abrogate any special rights and restrictions
attached to any shares, and in each case by filing a certified copy of such resolution with
‘the Registrar but no right or special right attached to any issued shares shall be
prejudiced or interfered with unless all members holding shares of each class whose right
or special right is so prejudiced or interfered with consent thereto in writing, or unless
a resolution consenting thereto is passed at a separate class meeting of the holders of the
shares of each such class by . a majority of three-fourths, or such greater majority as may
be specified by the specilal rights attached to the class of shares, of the issued shares of
such class.

6.4 Notwithstanding such consent in writing or such resolution, no such alteration
shall be valid as to any part of the 1issued shares of any class unless the holders of the
rest of the issued shares of such class either all consent thereto in writing or consent
thereto by 'a resolution passed by the votes of members holding three—fourths of the rest of
such shares.

6.5 I1f the Company is or becomes a reporting company, no resolution to create, vary or
abrogate any special right of conversion attaching to any class of shares shall be
submitted to any meeting of members unless, if so required by the Company Act, the
Superintendent of Brokers, Insurance & Real Estate shall have consented to the resolution.

6.6 Unless these Articles otherwise provide, the provisions of these Articles relating
to general meetings shall apply, with the necessary changes and so far as they dre
applicable, to a class meeting of members holding a particular class of shares but the
quorum at a class meeting shall be one person holding or representing by proxy one-~third of
the shares affected.

SHARE PURCHASES AND REDEMPTIONS

7.1 Subject to the special rights and restrictions attached to any class of shares,
the Company may, by a resolution of the Directors and in compliance with the Company Act,
purchase or otherwise acquire any of its shares at the price and upon the terms specified
in such resolution or redeem any class of its shares in accordance with the special righrs
and restrictions attaching thereto. No such purchase, redemption or acquisition shall be
_made if the Company is insolvent at the time of the proposed redemption, purchase or

.~ Vo e . A vadoamntriarn nmiirecehace ar acaili eition wonnld render the Company
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insolvent. Unless the shares are to be purchased through a stock exchange or the Company
is rchasing shares from a bona fide employee or bona fide former employee of the Company
pursuant to the requirements of the Company Act or the Company is purchasing or acquiring
shares from dissenting members pursuant to the requirements of the Company Act, the Company
shall make its offer to purchase pro rata to every member who holds shares of the class or
scries to be purchased.

7.2 If the Company proposes at its optilon to redeecmn some but not all of the shares of
any class, the Directors may, subject to the special rights and restrictions attached to
such class of shares, decide the manner in which the shares to be redeemed shall be
selected.

7.3 Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, any shares purchased or redeemed by
the Company may be sold or issued by it, but, while such shares are held by the Company, 1t
shall not exercise any vote in respect of these shares and no dividend shall be paid
thereon.

BORROWING
8.1 The Directors may from time to time on behalf of the Company:
(i) borrow money in such manner and amount, on such security, from such sources and

upon such terms and conditions as they think fit;

(ii) issue bonds,; debentures and other debt obligations either outright or as security
for any liability or obligation of the Company or any other person; and

(iii) mortgage, charge, whether by way of specific or floating charge, or give other
security on the undertaking, or on the whole or any part of the property and assets, of the
Company (both present and future). ‘

8.2 Any bonds, debentures or other debt obligations of the Company may be issued at a
discount, premium or otherwise, and with any special privileges as to redemption,
surrender, drawing, allotment of or conversion into or exchange for shares or other
securities, attending and voting at general meetings of the Company, appointment of
Directors or otherwise and may by their terms be assignable free from any equities between
the Company and the person to whom they were issued or any subsequent holder thereof, all
as the Directors may determine.

8.3 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept within the Province of British Columbia
in accordance with the Company Act a register of 1ts debentures and a register of debenture
holders, which registers must be combined, and, subject to the provisions of the Company
Act, may keep or cause to be kept one or more branch registers of its debenture holders at
such place or places as the Directors may from time to time determine and the Directors may
by resolution, regulation or otherwise make such provisions as they think fit respecting
the keeping of such branch registers.

8.4 Every bond, debenture or other debt obligation of the Company shall be signed
manually by at least one director or officer of the Company or by or on behalf of a
trustee, registrar, branch registrar, transfer agent or branch transfer agent for the bond,
debenture or other debt obligation appointed by the Company or under any instrument under
which the bond, debenture or other debt obligation so signed is as valid as Lf signed
manually notwithstanding that any person whose signature is so printed or mechanically
reproduced shall have ceased to hold the office that he 1s stated on such bond, debenture
or other debt obligation to hold at the date of the issue thereof.

8.5 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept a register of its indebedness to every
director or officer of the Company or an associate of any of them in accordance with the
provisions of the Company Act.

GENERAL MEETINGS

9.1 Subject to any extensions of time permitted pursuant to the Company Act, the first
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held within fifteen months from the date of
incorporation and thereafter an annual general meeting shall be held once in every calendar
year at such time (not being more than thirteen months after the holding of the last
preceding annual general meeting) and place as may be determined by the Directors.

9.2 If the Company is, or becomes, a company which is not a reporting company and all
the members entitled to attend and vote at an annual general meeting consent in writing to
all the business which is required or desired to be transacted at the meeting, the meeting
need not bhe held.
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9.3 " All seneral meetings other than annual general meetinss shall uve called
extraordinary jenersl meetinzs.

9.4 The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an exiraordinnry rhneral
mesetin~. An extraordinary general meetin;, 1f requisitioned in accordance witn Ltue
Company Act, shall be convened by the Directors or, 1f not convened by ihe Directors, nay
Ve convened by the requisitionists as provided in the Company Act.

9.3 If the Company ie or becomes a reporting company, advance notice of any general
meeting at which Directors are to be elacted shall be published in the manner required by
the Compamy Act.,

.0 A notice convenin, a reneral meeting specifyin;; the place, the day, and tlhe hour

of the meetings, and, in case of svecial business, the general rature of that business, shall
be given as provided in the Company Act and in the manner hereinafter in these Articles
mentioned, or in such other manner (if any) as may be prescribed by ordinary resolution
(whether previous notice thereof has been glven or not), to such persons as are entitled by
law or under these Articles to receive such notice from the Company. Accidental omission

to ;51ve notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of notice of a meeting by, any member
shiall rot invalidate the proceedinss at that meeting.

3.7 All the members of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a general meeting may,
by unonimous consent in writin; riven before, during or after-the meeting, or if they are
present at the meeting by a unanimnuc vote, waive or reduce the period of notice of such
meeting and an entry in the minute ULoolt of such walver or reduction shall be sufficilent

evidence of the due convening of the meeting.

9.3 Except as otherwise provided by the Company Act, where any special business at a
ceneral meeting includes considering, aprroving, ratifying, ndopting or authorizing any
document or the execution thereof or the riving of effect therete, the notice conveninr

the meetin; shall, with respect to such document, be sufficient 1if it statec that a copny

of the document or proposed document is5 or will be available for inspection by members at
the re;;sistered office or records office of the Company or at some other place in Hritish
Columbia designated in the notice during usual business hours up to the date of such
general meeting,

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

10.1 All business shall be deemed special businessa which is transacted at:

(1) an axtracrdinary general meeting other than the conduct of and voting at,
such meetinr; and

(11) an annual general meeting, with the exception of the conduct of, and voting at,
such meeting, the consideration of the financial statement and of the respective reports
of the Directors and Auditor, fixing or changing the number of directors, approval of a
motion to elect two or more directors by a aingle resolution, the election of Directors,
the appointment of the Auditor, the fixing of the remuneration of the Auditor and such
other business an by these Articles or the Company Act may be transacted at a  enersl
meeting without prior notice thereof being given to the members or any busineas which 1s
brounht under consideration by the report of the Directors. )

10.2 No business, other than the election of the chairman or the adjournment of the
meeting, shall bLe transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members, oentitled
to attend and vote, is present at the commencement of the meeting, but the quorum need
not be present throughout the meeting.

10.3 Save as heroin otherwise provided, a quorum shall be two persons present and being,
or representing by proxy, members holding not less than one-twentieth of the shares which
may Le voted at the meeting. If there is only one member the quorum 1s one person present
and beinyg, or representins by proxy, such member. The Directors, the Secretary or, in

his 2bsence, an Assistant Secretary, and the solicitor of the Company shall be entitled to
attend at any general nesting but no such person shall be counted in the quorum or be
entitled to vote at any ceneral meeting unless he shall be a member or proxyholder

‘entitled to vote thereat, '

10.4 If within half an hour from the ti~e apnuinted for a general meeting a quorum is
not present, the meating, 1if convened upon the requisition of members, shall be dimsolved,
In any other case it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week, at the same
time and place, and, if at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an
hour from the time appointed for the meeting, the person or persons present and Leing,
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10.5 The Chriruen of the ‘loard, if any, or in his absence the President of the Zloubany
or, in his absence, a Vice-President of the Company, if any, shall be entitled .o nreside
23 chairman at every ."eneral meetin_ of the Comnany.

10.6 If at any general meeting neither the Chairman of the Board nor the President

nor a Vice-President 1s present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding
the meeting or is willing to act as chairman, the Directors present ashall choose some one
of thelr number to be chairman or if all the Directors present decline to take the chair or
shall fail to so choose or if no director be present, the members present shall choose one
of their number to be chairman.

10,7 The chairman may and shall, if so directed by the meeting, adjourn the meetiny
from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at any
adiourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the

ad journment took place. When a meeting 1s adjourned for thirty days or more, notice, but
not "advance notice"™, of the adjourned meeting shell be given as in the case of an original
meesting, Save as aforesaid, it shall not be necessary to give any notice of an adjourned
meeting or of the busineses to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

10.8 iHo motion proposed at a peneral meeting need be seconded and the chairman may
propose or gecond a motion. Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, atL any eneral
meatin, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands,
unless (before or on the declaration 6f the result of the show of hands) a poll is directed
by +he chairman or demanded by at least one member entitled to vote who is5 nresent 1n
person or Ly pProxy. The chairman shall declare to the meetin: the decision on every
question in accordance with the result of the show of hands or the poll, and such decision
shall Le entered in the book of proceedings of the Company. A declaration Ly the chairman
that a resolution has been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority,

or lost or not carried by a particular majority and an entry to that effect in the book of
the proceedings of the Company shall be conclumsive evidence of the fact, without proof of
the number or proportion of thasa votes recorded in favour of, or against, that resolution.
In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the chairman
of the meesting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll 1s demcnded
shall Le entitled to a second or casting vote,

10.9 No poll may be demanded on the election of a chairman, A poll demanded on a
queztion of adjournment shall be taken forthwith, A poll demanded on any other quesction
shall be taken as soon 2s, in the opinion of the chairman, is reasonably convenient, but in
no event later than seven days after the reetin” and ~t such time and place and in sucan
manner as the chairman of the meeting directs. . The result of the poll shall be deemed
to be the resclution of and pasased at the meeting at which the poll was demanded. Any
business other than that upon which the poll has been demanded may be proceeded with
pendin;r the taking of the poll. A demand for a poll may be withdrawn, In any diaspute
as to the admiasion or rejection of a vote the decision of the chairman made in (ood faith
shall be final and conclusive, On a poll a person entitled to cast more than one vote
need not, if he votes, use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the came way.
Every ballot cast upon a poll and every proxy appointing a nroxyholder who casts a ballot
upon a poll shall be retained by the Secretary for auch period and bo subject to such
inespection as the Company act uay provide.

10,10 Unleas the Company Act, the Memorandum or these Articles otherwise provide, any
action to be taken by a resolution of the members may be taken by an ordinary resoclution.

VOTES OF MEMHEERS

11.1 Subject to any special voting rights or reatrictions attached to any class of
shares and the restrictions on joint registered holders of shareas, on a show of hands every
member who is present in pesrson and entitled to vote thereat shall have one vote and on a
poll every member shall have one vote for each share of which he is the registered holder
and may exercise such vote either in person or by proxyholder.

1l.2 Any person who 1is not registered as a member but 1is entitled to vote at any general
meeting 1n respect of a share, may vote the share in the same manner as if he were a member:;
but, unless the Directore have previously admitted his right to vote at that particular
meeting in respect of the share, he shall satisfy the directors of his right to vote the
shares before the time for holding the meeting, or adjourned meeting, as the case may be,

at which he proposea to vote.

11.3 Any corporation not being a subaidiary which is a memdber of the Company may by
resolution of its directors or other governing becdy authorige such person as it thinks rit
to act as its representative at any general meeting or class meeting. The person so
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authorized shall be entitled to exercise in respect of and at suchimeetiny the $S32€ powers
on beiialf of the corporation which he represents as that corporation could exercise 11 it
were an individual member of the company personally present, includin,;, without limitatien,
the ri 'ht, unless restricted by such resolution, to appoint a proxyholder to renresent such
eorvworation, and shall be counted for the purpose of forming & quorum 1f DPresent at the
meetin:, Evidence of the appointment of any such representative may Le sent to the Comnany

"Ly written instrument, tele:ranm, telex or any method of trancmittin-' le7lbly recorded

megsares., Notwithastanding the foregoing, a corporation being a member may appoiut a
proxyholder. ) : . .
1l.4 In the case of joint repgistered holders of a share the vote of the senior who

exercises a vote, whether in person or by proxyhoclder, shall be accepted to the exclusior
of the votes of the othe-~ joint reristered holders; and for this purpose seniority shall be
determined LY the order in which the namee atand in the register of members. Several
legal personal representatives of a deceased member whose shares are recistered in his sole
name shall for the purpose of this Article be deemed joint registered holders.

11.5 A member of unsound mind entitled to attend and vote, in respect of whom an order
has been made by any court having jurisdiction, may vote, whether on a show of hands or

on a poll, by his committee, curator bonis, or other person in the nature of a committee
or curator bonis appointed by that court, and any such committee, curator bonis, or other
nerson may appoint a proxyholder. :

11.6 A member holding more than ones share in respect of which he 1s entitled to vote
shall Le entitled to appoint one or more (but not more than five) proxyholders to attend,
act and vote for him on the same occasion, If such a member nhoulq appoint more than one
proxyholder for the same occasion he shall specify the number of shares each proxyholder
shall Le entitled to vote. A memdber may also appoint one or more alternate proxyholders
to sct in the place and stead of an absent proxyholder.

11,7 A form of proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of hie
attorney duly authorized in writing, or, if the appointor 1s a corporation, either under
the seal of the corporatlon or under the hand of a duly authorized officer or attorney.
A proxyholder need not be a member of the Company 1f

(1) the Company is at the time a reporting company, or

(11) the memlLer appointing the proxyholder 1s a corporation, or

(111) the Company shall have at the time only one member, or

(iv) the persons present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the meeting by

resolution permit the proxyholder to attend and vote, and for the purpose of such
resolution the proxyholder shall be counted in the quorum bdbut shall not be entitled to vote,

and in all other cases a proxyholder must be a member.

11.3 A form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which
it 1is signed or a rotarially certified copy thereof shall he deposited at the registered
office of the Company or at such other place as is specified for that purpose in the notice
convening the meetin;, not leas than 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays)
Lefore the time for holding the mees:.ing in respect of which the person named in the instrument
is appointed. In addition to any cother method of depositing proxies provided for in these
Articles, the Directora may from time to time by resolution make regulations relating to
the depositinz of proxies at any place or places and fixing the time or times not exceeding
43 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) preceding the meeting or adjourned
meeting before which time proxies to be used at that meeting must be deposited, and
providing for particularas of such proxies to be sent to the Company or any agent of the
Company in writing or by letter, telegram, telex or any method of transmitting legibly
recorded messacgea 80 as to arrive befor~ the commencement of the meeting or adjourned
meeting at the office of the Company or of any agent of the Company appointed for the
purpose of receiving such particulars and providing that proxies so deposited may be acted
upon as though the proxies themselves were deposited as required by this Part and votes
given in accordance with such regulations shall be valid and shall be counted,

11.9 Unless the Company Aet or any other statute or law which is applicadble to the
Company or to any class of its shares requires any other form of proxy, & proxy, whether
for a specific meeting or otherwise, shall be in the form following, but may also be in an
other form that the Directors or the chairman of the meeting shall approve: .
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(Name of Company)

The undersigned, being a menber of the above naned Company, hereby appoints
of failing him
as proxyholder for the undersigned to attend, act and vote for and on behalf of the under=~
sicgned at the general meeting of the Company to be held on the day of
and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of s 19 .

(Signature of member).

11.10 A vote given in accordance with the terms of a proxy is valid notwithstanding the
pPrevious death or incapacity of the member giving the proxy or the revocation of the proxy
or of the authority under which the form of proxy was executed or the transfer of the shares
in respect of which the proxy is :;iven, provided that no notification in writinns of such
death, incapacity, revocation or transfer shall have been received at the rezistered office
wf the meeting or adjourned meeting for which the proxy

of thy Tsmpany or by the chutlrman

was (. 1lven,; before the vote 1s taken.,

11,11 Every proxy may be revoked by an instrument 1in writing

(1) executed by the member riving the same or by his attorney authorized in writing,

or, where the member 1s a corporation, by a duly authorized aofficer or attorney of the

corporation; and

(11) delivered either at the registered office of the Company at any time up to and
including the last business day preceding the day of the meeting, or any adjournment thereof
at which the proxy is to be used, or to the chairman of the meeting on the day of the
meetin,s or any adjournment thereof before any vote 1n respect of which the proxy is to be
used shall have been taken.

or in any other manner provided by law,

DIRECTORS
r

12.1 The subscribers to the Memorandum of the Company are the first Directors, The
‘Directors to succeed the first Directors may be appointed in writing by a majority of the
aubscribers to the Memorandum or at a meeting of the subscribers, or 1f not so appointed,
they shall be elected by the membera entitlied to vote on the election of Directors and the
number of Directors shall be the same as the numher of Directors so appointed or elacted,
The number of Directors, excluding additional Directors, may be fixed or changed from time
to time by ordinary resolution, whether previous notice thereof has been given or not, but
notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles the number of Directors shall never
be less than one or, 1f the Company is or becomes a reporting company, less than three.

12,2 The remuneration of the Directors aa such may from time to time be determined by the
Directors or, 1f the Directore shall so decide, by the members. Such remuneration asay bde
in addition to any salary or other remunerstion paid to any officer or employee of the
Company as such who ia also a Director, The Directors shall be repaid such reasonabdle
travelling, hotel and other expenses as they incur in and about the business of the

Company and if any Director shall perform any professiocnsal or other services for the
Company that in the opinion of the Directors are outside the ordinary duties of a Director
or shall otherwise be specially occupied in or about the Company's business, he may be paid
& remuneration to be fixed by the Board, or, at the option of such Director, by the Company
in general meeting, and such remuneration may be either in addition to, or in

substitution for,any other reamuneration that he may be entitled to receive. The Directors
on behalf of the Company, unless otherwise determined by ordinary resclution, may pay a
gratuity, pension or allowance on retirement toc any Director who has held any salaried
office or place of profit with the Company or to his spouse or dependants and mag make
contributions to any fund and pay premiums for the purchase or provision of any such

gratuity, pension or allowance.

12.3 A Director shall not be required to hold a share in the capital of the Company as
qualification for his office but shall bo qualified as required by the Company Act te
become or act as a Director.
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DIRECTORS: ELECTION, TERMINATION & REMOVAL

13.1 At each annual general meeting of the Company all the Directors shall retire and
the members entitled to vote thereat shall elect a Board of Directors consisting of the
sumber of Directors for the time being fixed pursuant to these Articles. If the Company

18, or becomes, a company that is not a reporting company and the business to be transacted
at any annual general meeting 1s consented to in writing by all the members who are entitled
to attend and vote thereat such annual general meeting shall be deemed for the purpose of
this Part to have been held on such written consent becoming effective. A retiring

Director shall bLe eliTible for re-election. '

13.2 ¥here the Company fails to hold an annual general meeting in accordence with the
Company Act, the Directors then 1in office shall be deemed to have been elected or
appointed as Directors on the last day on which the annual general meeting could have been
held pursuant to these Articles and they may hold office until other Directors are anpointed
or elected or until the day on which the next annual general meeting is held.

13.3 If at any general meeting at which there should be an election of Directors, the
places of any of the retirin; Directors are not filled by such election, such of the
retirings Directors who are not re-elected as may be requested by the newly-elected

Directors shall, if willing to do 50, continue in office to complete the number of Directors
for the time bein;” fixed pursuant to these Articles until further new Directors are

etected at a general meeting convened for the purpose. If any such election or

continuance of the Directors does not result in the election or continuance of the number

of Directors for the time being fixed pursuant to these Articles such number shall be fixed

at the number of Directors actually elected or continued in office,

13.4 Any casual vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by the
remaining Directore or Directore.

13.5 Between successive annual general meetings the Directors shall have power to
appoint one or more additional Directors but not more than one-third of the number of
Directors fixed pursuant to these¢é Articles and in effect at the last general meeting at
which Directors were elected. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company, but shall be eligible for election at
auch meeting and so long as he is an additional Director the number of Directors shall be

increased accordingly.

13.6 Any Director may by Lnetrunént in writing delivered to the Company appoint any
person to be his alternatée to act in his place at meetings of the Directors at which he 1is
not present unless the Directors shall have reasonadbly disapproved the appointment of such
person as an alternate Director and shall have given notice to that effect to the Director
appointing the alternate Director within a reasonable time after delivery of such instrument
to the Company. Every such alternate shall be entitled to notice of meetings of the
Directors and to attend and vote as a Director at a meeting at which the person appointing
him is not personally present, and, 1f he is a Director, to have a separate vote on behalf
of the Director he is representing in addition to his own. vote. A DMrector may at any time
by instrument, telegram, telex or any method of transamitting leglibly recorded messaces
delivered to the Company revoke the appointment of an alternate appointed by him. The
remuneration payable to such an alternate shall be payable out of the remuneration of the
Director appointing him.

137 The office of Director shall be vacated if the Director:

(1) resigns his office by notice in writing delivered to the registered office of the
Company; or

(11) 1i®s convicted of an indictable offence and the other Directors shall have resolved to
remove him; or

(1i1) ceases to be qualified to act as a Director pursuant to the Company Act.

13.8 The Company may by special resolution remove any Director before the expiration Sf

his period of office, and may by an ordinary resolution appoint another person in his stead,

POWERS DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

14.1 The Directors ghall manage, or superviss the monagement of, the affairs and business
of the Company and shall have the authority to exercise all such powers of the Company as
are not, oy the Company Act or by the Memorandum or these Articles, required to be

exercised by the Company in general meeting.
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142 The Directors may from time to time by power of attorney or other inatrument,

SUEBC any person to be the attorney of the Company for such purposes, and with auch powers,
1uthoritiﬂs and discretions (10t exceeding those vested in or exercisable by the Directors
under these Articles and excepting the powers of the Directors relating to the conatitution
of the Poard and of any of its committees and the appointment or removal of officers and the
nower to declare dividends) and for such period, with such remuneration and subject to such
conditions as the Directors may think fi1t, and any such appointment may be made in favour of
any of the Directors or any of the members of the Company or in favour of any corporation,
or of any of the members, directors, nominees or managers of any corporation, firm or Joint
venture and any such power of attorney may contain such provisions for the protection or
convenience of persons dealing with such attorney as the Directors think fit. Any such
attorney may be authorized by the Directors to sub-delegate all or any of the powers,
authorities and discretions for the time being vested in him.

DISCIOSURE OF INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

15.1 A Director who is, in any way, directly or indirectly interested in an existing

or proposed contract or transaction with the Company or who holds any office or possesses
any property whereby, directly or indirectly, a duty or interest might be created to
conflict with his duty or interest as a Director shall declare the nature and extent of his
interest 1n such contract or transaction or of the conflict or potential conflict with his
duty and interest as a Director, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of
the Company aect, :

13.2 A Director shall not vote in resvect of any such cohtract or transaction with the
Comnany in which he is interested and 1f he shall do so his vote shall not be counted,

but 'te shall be counted in the quorum present at the mesting at which such vote is taken.
Subject to the provisions of the Company . Act, the foregoins prohibitions shall not apply
Lto-

(1) where the contract or transaction relates to a loan to the Company, that a Director
or a specified corporation or specified firm in which he has an interest has ;juaranteed or
Joined in guaranteeing the repayment of the loan of any part of the loan;

(11) any contract or transaction made or to be made with, or for the benefit of a
holding corporation or a subsidiary corporation of which a Director is a director:

(444) any contract by a Director to subscribe for or underwrite shares or debentures to be
issued by the Company or a subeidiary of the Company, or any contract, arrangement or
transaction in which a Director is, directly or indirectly, interested if all the other
Directors are also, directly or indirectly interested in the contract, arrangement or
transaction;

(4iv) detarmining the remuneration of the Directors;

(v) purchasing and maintaining insurance to cover Directora against liability incurred
by them as Directors; or

(v1) the indemnification of any Director by the Company,

These exceptions may from time to time be suapended or amended to any extent approved by the
Conmrany 1in genernl meeting and permittad by the Company act, sither generally or in
respect of any particular contract or transaction or for any particular period.

15.3 A Director may hold any office or place of profit with the Company (other than the
office of auditor of the Company) in conjunction with hias office of Director for such period
and on such terms (as to remuneration or otherwise) as the Directors may determine and no'
Director or intended Director shall be disqualified by Iim office from contracting with

the Company either with regard to hia tenure of any such other office or place of profit

or as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, and, subject to compliance with the provisions of

the Company Act, no contract or transaction entered into by or on behalf of the Company

in which a pirector is in any way intereated shall de liadle to be voided by reason thereof.

15.4 Subject to compliance with the provisions of the Company Act, a Director or his
Zirm may act in a professional capacity for the Company (except as auditor of the Company)
and he or his firm shall be entitled to rewuneration for professional services as if he
were not a Director.
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545 A Director may be or become a director or other officer or employee of, or ntherwise

§l!ésted in, any corporation or firm in which the Company may be interested as a2 sShureholder
or otherwise, and subject to compliance with the provisions of the Company . Act, such
Director shall not be accountable to the Company for any remuneration or other benefits
received by him as director, officer of employee of, or from his interest in, suci other
corporation or firm, unless the Company in general meeting otherwise directs.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

16.1 The Chairman of the Board, if any, or in his absence, the President shall preside
as chairman at every meetinpg of the Directors, or if there is no Chairman of the hoard or’
neither the Chairman of the Board nor the President is present within fifteen minutes of
the time appointed for holdin; the meeting or is willing to act as chairman, or, if the
Chairman of the Board, if any, and the President have advised the Secretary that they will
not be present at the meeting, the Directors present shall choose one of their number to’
be chairman of the meeting.

16,2 The Directors may mcet torether for the dispatch of business, adjourn and otherwise
rerilate thelr meetings, as Lthey think fit, Questions arising at any meeting shall be
decided bv A majority of votes. Th cace of an equality of votes the chairman shall

have a second or castin;,: vote. Meetings of the Board held at regular intervals may be held
at such nlace, at such time and upon such notice {(1f any) as the BRoard may Ly resolution
from time to time determine.

1¢ .3 A Director may particinate in a meetin~ of the Board or of any committee of the
NDirectors by means of conference tclephones or other communications facilities Ly means

of which al) Directos participati~y in the meeting can hear each other and provided that

all such Directors agree to such participation. A Director participatin/,: in a meetiny

in accordance with this Article shall be deemed to be present at the meetin, and to have so
a-reed and shall be counted in the gquorum therefor and be entitled to speak and vote thereat,

16,4 A Director may, and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary upon request of a .
Director ehall, call a meetinig of the Roard at any time. Reasonable notice of such meeting
specifyins the place, day and hour of such meeting shall bas given by malil, postapse prepaid,
addressed to sach of the Directors and alternate Directors at his address as it appears on
the books of the Company or by leaving it at his usual business or resaidentisl address or
by telephone, telesram, telex, or any method of transmittins legibly recorded mesasages.

It shall not be necesgsary to give notice of a meeting of Diredtors to any Director or
alternate Director (1) who 1s at the time not in the Province of British Columbia or

(41) 1f such meetin, 18 to be held immediately following A general meetin;; at which such
Director shall have been elected or 18 the memting of Directors at which such Director

is appointed.

16,5 Any Director of the Company may file with the Secretary a document executed by him
waivins notice of any past, present or future meeting or meetings of the Directors heing,
or required to have been,sent to him and may at any time withdraw such wailver with reapect
to meetinge held thereafter. After fi1ling such waiver with respect to future meetingse and
until such waiver is withdrawn no notice need be given to such Director and, unless the
Director otherwise requires in writing to the Secretary, to his alternate Director of any
meeting of Directors and all meetings of the Directors so held shall be deemed not to be
improperly called or constituted by reason of notice not having bdeen given to such Director
or alternate Director.

16.6 The quorum necessary for the transaction of the busineas of the Directors may bve
fixed by the Directors and 1f not so fixed shall be two Directors or, if the number of
Directors 1s fixed at one, shall be one Director.

16.7 The continuins Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their body, but, 11
and so long as their number 1is reduced below the number fixed pursuant to these Articlem as
the necessary quorum of Directors, the continuing Directors may act for the purpose of
increasing the number of Directors to that number, or of summoning & general meeting of the
Company, but for no other purpose.

l6.8 Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, all acts done by any meeting of the
Directors or of a committee of Directors, or by any person acting as a Director, shall,
notwithstanding that 1t be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the
qualification, election or appointment of any such Directora or of the memders of such
committee or person acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be
as valid as if every such person had been duly elected or appointed and was qualified to

be a Director.
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16.9 A resolution consented to in writing, whether by document, telesram, telex nr any
n°;.““ of transmittins le;:ibLly recorded messages or other means, by all of the Directors
£hall be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meetin; of the Directors duly
called and held. Such resolution may be in two or more counterparts wihich to  ether chall
be deemed to constitute one resolution in writing, Such resolution shall bLe filed with the
minutes of the proceedings of the Directors and shall be effective on the date stated
thereon or on the latest date stated on any counterpart.

COMMITTEES

7.1 The Directors may by resolution appoint an Executive Committee to consist of such
member or membera of their body as they thimk fit, which Committee shall have, and may
exercise during the intervals betwecn the meetings of the Board, all the powers vested in the
FRoard except the power to fill vacancies in the Board, the power to change the membership
of, or f11l1 vacancies in, said Committee or any other committee of the Board and such other
rowers, if any, as may be especified in the resolution. The said Committee chall keepn
recular minutes of its transactions and shall cause them to be recorded in hooks kept for
that nurrose, and shall report the came to the Board of Directors at such times as the NRoard
of Directors may from time to time require, The Roard shall have the power at any time to
revolce or override the authority civen to or acts done by the Executive Committee axcent as
to nctls done before such revocation or overriding and to terminate the appointment or chanpe

the memvership of such Committee and to fill vacancies in 1t. The Executive Committee
may ialke rules for the conduct of its Lusiness and may appoint such assistants as it ma,
decmn necessary, A majority of the members of said Committee shall constitute » quorom

thereof.

17.2 The Directors may by resolution appoint one or more committees consisting of such
menuer or menuvers of their body as they think fit and may delejgate to any such cotunittee
heteen nmeetinrs of the Poard such powers of the RBoard (except the power to fill wacancies
in the iJoard and the power to chance the membership of or fi1ll vacancies in any committee
of the Board and the power to appolint or remove officers avpointed by the Board) subject
to such conditions as may be prescribed in such resolution, and all committees so appointed
shall keep recular minutes of their transactions and chall cause them to be recorded in
Loolkks kept for that purpoase, and shall report the same to the Board of Directors at such
times as the Roard of Directors may from time to time require. The Directors shall also
have power at any time to revoke or override any authority riven to or acts to he done uy
any such committees except as to acts done before such revocation or overriding and to
terminate the appointment or change the membership of a committee and to fill vacancies in
1z:. Comnittees may make rules for the conduct of theilr business and may appoint nuch
assistants as they may deem necessary., A majority of the members of a committee =hnll
conglitute a quorum thereof.

17.3 The Executive Committee and any other committee may meset and adjourn as it thinks
proper. Questions arisins, ot any meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes of the
members of the committee present, and in case of an equality of votes the chairman shall not
have a second or casting vote, A resolution approved in writiaog by all the members of the
Executive Committee or any other committee shall be aa valid and effective as 1f it had been
passed at a meeting of such Committee duly called and conatituted. Such resclution may be
in two or more counterparts which together shall be deemed to constitute one resolution in
writing, Such resolution shall be flled with the minutes of the proceedings of the
committee and shall bhe effective on the date stated thereon or on the latest date stated

in any counterpart.

OFFICERS

18.1 The Directors shall, from time to time, appoint a President and a Secretary and such
other officers, if any, as the Directors shall determine and the Directors may, at any time,
terminate any such appointment, No officer shall be appointed unless he is qualified 1in
accordance with the provisions of the Company Act,

18,2 One person may hold more than one of such offices except that the offices of
President and Secretary must be held by different persons unless the Company has only one
member, Any person appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the President or the Managing
Director shall be a Director. The other officers need not be Directors. The remuneration
of the officers of the Company as such and the terms and conditions of their tenure of office
or employment shall from time to time be determined by the Directors; such remuneration may
be by way of salary, fees, Wages, commission or participation in profits or 2ny other means
or all of these modes and an officer may, in addition to such resmuneration, be sntitled to
receive a pension or gratuity after he ceases to hold such office or leaves the employment

of the Company. The Directors may decide what functions and duties each officer shall
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Pergform and may entrust to and confer upon him any of the powers exercisable Lty them upon
such terms and conditiona and with such restrictions as they tiiink fit and may from tine
to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such functions, duties and powers
The Secretary shall, inter alia, perform the functions of the Secretary specified in the

Company Act.

138.3 Every officer of the Company who holds any office or possesses any property whereby,
whether directly or indirectly, duties or interests might bes created in conflict with his
duties or interests as an officer of the Company ahall, in writing, disclose to the President
the fact and the nature, character and extent of the conflict.

INbEHNITY AND PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS,
OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND CERTAIN AGENTS

19,1 Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, the Directors shall cause the
Comnany teo indemnify a Director or foramer Director of the Coampany and the Director may cause
the Company to indemnify a director or former director of a corporation of which the Comnany
1s or vr~ - shareholder and the heiliru and personal representatives of any such percon ayninst
all co:nte, charrfes and expenses, including an amount paid to settle an action or natisfy a
judrinient, actually and reasonably incurred by him or them including an amount paid to settle
an action or satisfy a Jjud~ment in a civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding
to wiiich he 18 or they are madec a party by reas~n of his being or having been a Director

of the “ompany or a director of such corporation, including any action brought by the
Conpany or any such corporation. Tach Director of the Company on heing elected or
apnointed shall Le deemed to have contracted with the Tompany on the terms of the foregoing

indemnity.

19,.°? Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, the Directors may cauase the
Comnanv to indemnify any officer, employee or agent of the Company or «f a corporation of
which the Company is or was a shareholder (notwithstanding that he is also a Director) and
his helirs and personal representatives against all costse, charges and expenses whatsoever
incurred by him or them and resulting from his acting as an officer, employee or apent of
the Company or such corporation. In addition the Company shall indemnify the Secretary or
an Assistant Secretary of the Company (if he ahall not be a full time employee of the
Company and notwithstanding that he is also a Director) and his respective heirs and lexal
representatives against all costa, char(es and expenses whatsoever incurred by him or them
and ari: ins out of the functions assigned to the Secretary by the Company Act or these
Articles and each such Secretary am Assistant Secretary shall on belng appointed be deemed
to have contracted with the Company on the terms of the foreproine indemnity.

19.3 The failure of a Director or officer of the Company to comply with the provisions
of the Company- A€t or of the Memorandum or these Articles shall not invalidate any
indemnity to which he is entitled under this Part,

19.4 The Directors may cause the Company to purchase and maintain insurance for the
benefit of any person who is or was serving as a Director, officer, employee or agent of the
Company or as a director, officer, employee or agent of any corporation of which the Company
18 or was a shareholder and his heirs or personal representatives against any liability
incurred by him as such Director, director, officer, employee or agent,

: DIVIDENDS

20.1 The Directors may from time to time declare and authorize payment of asuch dividends,
if any, as they may deem advisable and need not give notice of such declaration to any member.
No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of funds and/or asaets properly available

for the payment of dividenda and a declaration by the Directors as to the amount of such
funds or assets available for dividends shall be conclusive, The Company may pay any sauch
dividend wholly or in part by the distribution of specific assets and in particular by paid
up shares, bonda, debentures or other mecurities of the Company or any other corporation

or in any one or more such ways as may be authorized by the Company or the Directors and
where any difficulty arises with regard to such a distribution the Directors may settle the
same as they think expedient, and in particular may fix the value for distridbution of such
specific assets or any part thereof, and may determine that cash payments in substitution
for all or any part of the specific assets to which any members are entitled shall bde made
to any members on the basis of the value 80 fixed in order to adjuat the rights of all
parties and may vest any such specific assets 1in trustees far the persons entitled to the
‘dividend as may seem expedient to the Directoras, :

20.2 Any dividend declared on shares of any class by the Directors may be made payable
on such date as is fixed by the Diractors.
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20,3 Subject to the rights of members (if any) holding shares with speclal rirhts as
to dividends, all dividends on shares of any class shall be declared and paid according to
the number of such shares held,

20.4 The Directors may, before declaring any dividend, set aside out of the funds
Properly available for the payment of dividends such sums as they think proper as a reserve
or reserves, which shall, at the discretion of the Directors, be applicable for meeting
contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for any other purpose to which such funds of
the Company may be properly applied, and pending such application may, &t the like
discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in such
investments as the Directors may from time to time think fit. The Directors may also,
without placing the same in reserve, carry forward such funds, which they think prudent

not to diwvide.

20,5 If several persons are registered as Jjoint holders of any share, any one of them
may rive an effective receipt for any dividend, bonuses or other moneys payable in resnect

of the share,

20.6 iio dividends shall bear interest ajainst the Company. Where the dividend to
which a memuer is entitled includes a fraction of a cent, such fraction shall be disrerarded
in makins payment thereof and such payment shall Le deemed to be payment in full,

20,7 Any dividend, bonuses or other moneys payable in cash in respect of shares may be
paid by cheque or warrant sent through the post directed to the re(istered address of the
holder, or in the case of joint holders, to the registered address.of that one of the joint
holders who is first named on the rer,ister, or to such person and to such address as the holde
or joint holders may direct in writinrf. Every such cheque or warrant ghall be made p;ayable
to the order of the person to whom it is sent. The mailing of such cheque or warrant shall,
to the extent of the sum represented thereby (plus the amount of any tax required by law to

be deducted) discharse all liability for the dividend, unleas such cheque or warrant siaall

not Le pald on presentation or the amount of tax so deducted shall not be paid to Llhe

appropriate taxing authority.

20.8 Motwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the Directors may from time
to time capitalize any undistributed surplus on hand of the Company and may from time to
time issue as fully pald and non-assessable any unissued shares, or any bonds, debentures
or debt obli ations of the Company as a dividend representin,: such undisetributed surplus
on hand or any nart thereof,

RECORDS, DOCUNMENTS AND REPORTS

~1.1 The rTompany shall keen at its records office or at such other place as the Company
Act may permit, the documents, copies, registers, minutes, and records which the “ompany is
required by the Company Act to keep at its recorda office or such other place, an Lhe case
may be,

21.2 The Company shall cause to be kept proper booka of account and accounting records
in respect of all financial and other transactiocns of the Company in order properly to
record the financial affaire and condition of the Company and to comply with the Company
Act,

21.3 Unless the Directors determine otherwise, or unless otherwise determined by an
ordinary resolution, no member of the Company shall be entitled to inspect the accounting
recorde of the Companye.

21.4 The Directors shall from time to time at the expenss of the Company cause to be
prepared and laid before the Company in general meeting euch financial statements and
reports as are required by the Company Act.

21.5 Every member shall be entitled to be furnished once gratis on demand with a copy of
the latest annual financial statement of the Company and, if ®0 required by the Company

Act, a copy of each such annual financial statement and interim financial statement shall

be malled to each membdber,

NOTICES

22.1 A notice, statement or report may be given or delivered by the Company to any
member either by delivery to him personally or by sending it by mail to him to his address
a® recorded in the register of members, Where a notice, statement or report is sent by
mail, service or delivery of the notice, statement or report shall be deemed to be effected
by properly addresaing, prepaying and mciling the notice, statement or report and to have
been given on the day, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted, following the date of
mailling. A cartificate signed by the Secretary or other officer of the Company or of any
other corporation acting in that behalf for the Company that the letter, envelope or wrapper
rantainine the notice. statement or report was so addressed, prepald and aailed shall bde
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22,2 A notice, atatement or renort may be given or delivered by the Company to the joint
holders of a share by giving the notice to the joint holder first named in the register of
members in respect of the share,

22.3b’» A notice, statement or report may be given or delivered by the Company to the persons
entitled to a share 1n conmequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a member by
sending it through the mail prepaid addressed to them by name or by the title of representatives
of the deceased or incapacitated person or trustee of the bankrupt, or by any like description,
at the address (if any) supplied to the Company for the purpose by the persons claimin:t to be

80 entitled, or (until such address has been so0 subpliesd) by fiving the notice in a manner 1n
which the same might have lbeen iiven if the death, bankruptcy or incapacity had not occurred.

22.4 Notice of every general meeting or meeting of mefbers holding a class of shares shall
Le given in a manner hereinbefors authorized to svery member holding at the time of the issue
of the notice or the date fixed for determining the membiers entitled to such notice, whichever
is the earlier, shares which confer the right to notice of and to attend and vote at nny such
aeelin-. lo otlier verson except the auditor of the Commany and the Directors of the Comrany
shall Le entitled to receive notices of any such meeting.

23.1 The Directors may fix in advance a date, which Shall not Le nore than the naxiaun
nunber of days pernitted by the COmpany Act precedin:; the date of any nmeetin: of meithers or
any clans thereof or of the payment of any dividend or of the propoesed taldns: of o otier

proper nction requirin~ the determinntion of members,ac the record date for Lhe determination
of such members entitled to notice of, or to atiend and vote at, any such meetine and any
adjournnent thereof, or entitled to receive paryment of any such dividend or for any olher
purnone and, in such case, notwithstandin;; anything elsewhere contained in these Articles,
only menvers of record on the date 80 fixed shall be deemed to bhe members for the nurposes
aforesaid,

23.2 V/here no record date is so fixed for the determination of memvers as provided in the
precedins Article the date on which the notice is mailed or on which the resolution declaring
the dividend 15 adopted, ar the case may be, shall be the record date for such determination.

SEAL

24,1 ‘e Directors may provide a seal for the Company and, if they do so, shall provide
for the safe custody of the seal which shall not be affixed to any instrument except in the
presence of the following persons, nanely,

(i) any two Directors, or

(i1) one of the Chairman of the Board, the President, the llanaging Director, 2 Direstor aund
a Vice-President together with one of the Secretary, the Treasurer, the Secretiry-Treacurer,
an Assictant Secretary, an Assistant Treasurer and an Assistant Secretary-Treasurer, or

(111) 1f the Company shall have only one member, the President or the Secretary, or
(3v) such person or persons as the Director may from time to time by resolution anpoint,

and the said Directora, officers, person or persons in whooe presences the seal is so affixed to
an instrument shall sign such instrument., For the purpose of certifying under seal true coples
of any document or resclution, the seal may be affixed in the presence of any one of the
foregoing persons,

2442 To enable the seal of the Company to be affixed to any bonds, debentures, sharee
certificates, or other securities of the Company, whether in definitidve or interim form, on whic
facsinmil®8s of any of the signatures of the Directors or officers of the Company are, 1in
accordance with theCompany. Act and/or these Articles, printed or otherwise mechanically
reproduced,there may be delivered to the firm or company employed to engrave, lithograph or
print such definitive or interinm bonds, debentures, share certificates or other securities one
or more unmounted dies reproducing the Company's seal and the Chairman of the Foard, the
President, the Hanaging Director or a Vice-President and taue Secretary, Treasurer, Secretary-
Treagurer, an Assistant Secretary, an Assistant Treasurer or an Assistant Secretarv-Treacurer
may by a document authorize such firm or company to cause the Cobpany's seal to be affixed to
such definitive or interinm Londs, debentures, share certificates or other securities by the use
of such dies. Bonda, debentureas, share certificates or other securities to which the Company 'a
seal has bdeen sc affixed shall for all purposes be deemed to be under and to bear the Company'sa
seal lawfully affixed thereto,

24,3 The Company may have for use in any other province, state, territory or country an
official seal wihich shall have on ita face the name of the province, state, territory or country
where 1t 1s to ve used and all of the powers conferred by theCompany Act with respect

thereto may be exercised by the Directors or by a duly authorized agent of the Company,
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Full name, resident address
and occupation of subscriber

Number and class of shares
taken by subscriber

George Neville MQ:ES}//
4450 Osler Stree
Vancouver, B.C.
Barrister and Solicitor

One (1) share without
par value

Total shares taken One (1) share without

par value

L A M R L S N, L g

DATED the 24th day of September, 1980. ,/
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INTERPRETATION
1.1 In these Articles, unless there is something in the subject or context
inconsistent therewith:
"Roard"™, '""the Directors”™ or "the directors” mean the Directors or sole Director of the

Company for the time being;

Wompany Act™ means the Company Act of the Province of British Columbia from time to
time 1in force and all amendments thereto and includes the regulations made pursuant

thereto; *,
"seal” means the common seal of the Company, if the Compahy has one;
"month" means calendar month;

“reriatered owner®™ or "reglsteresd holder" when used with respect to a share in the
authorized capital of the Company means the person registerod in the regiater of members
in respect of such share.

1.2 Expressions roférring to writing shall be construed as including references to
printing, lithography, typewriting, photorsraphy and other modea of repressnting or
reproducing words in a visible form.

1.3 Words importing the sinrular include the plural and vice versa; and words
importings male persons include female persons and words importing persons shall include
corporations,

1.4 The definitions in the COmMpPany aAct shall with the necessary changee and so far
as applicable apply to these Articles. '

1.9 Subject to Article l.4, these Articles shall be construed in accordance with the
Interpretation Act of RBritish Columbia.

1.t The regulations contained in Table A in the First Schedule to the Company act
shall not apply to the Company.

SH S AND S ric

2.1 Every member is entitled, without charge, to one certificate representinag
the share or shares of each class held by him; provided that, in reepect of a share or
shares held Jointly by several persons, the Company shall not be bound to i1ssue more than
one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several joint
registered holders or to his duly authorized agent shall be sufficient delivery to all;
and provided further that the Company shall not be bound to issue certificates
representing redeesable shares, if auch shares are to be redeemed within one month of
the date on which they were allotted., Any share certificate may be sent through the mail
by regi s tered prepaid mail to the member entitled thereto, and neither the Company nor any
transfer agent shall be liable for any loss occasioned to the member owing to any such
share certificate so sent deing lost in the mall or stolen.

2.2 If a share certificate:-

(1) is worm out or defaced, the Directors shall, upon production to them of the said
certificate and upon such other terws, if any, as they may think fit, order the said
certificate to be cancelled and shall issue a new certificate in lieu thereof;

(11) is lost, stolen or destroyed, then, upon proof thereof to the satisfaction of the

Directors and upon -uch indemnity, 1f any, as the Directors deem adequate being given, &
‘s ma e 1l omse Phaman? ahal]l ha {fsanead ta *tha vareann antitiad te auvekh
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(1i1) represents more than one share and the registered owner thereof surrenders it to
the Company with a written request .that the Company issue in his name two or more certi-
ficates each representing a specified number of shares and in the aggregate representing the
same number of shares as the certificate so surrendered, the Company shall cancel the
certificate so surrendered and issue in lieu thereof certificates in accordance with such
request.

A sum, not exceeding that permitted'by the Company Act, as the Directors may from time to
time determine, shall be paid to the Company for each certificate issued under this Article.

2.3 Every share certificate shall be signed manually by at least one officer or
director of the Company, or by or on behalf of a registrar, branch registrar, traunsfer agent
or branch transfer agent of the Company and any addicional signatures may be printed or
otherwise mechanically reproduced and, in such event, a certificate so signed is as valid as
if signed manually, notwithstanding that any person whose signature is so printed or mechan-
ically reproduced shall have ceased to hold the office that he 1s stated on such certificate
to hold at the date of the issue of a share certificate.

2.4 Every share certificate issued by the Company shall be in such form as the
Directors approve and shall comply with the Company Acte.

2,58 Except as required by law, statute or these Articles, no person shall be recognized
by the Company as holding any share upon any trust, and the Company shall not be bound by or
compelled in any way to recognize (even when having notice_thereof) any equitable, contin-
gent, future or partial interest in any share or in any fractional part of a share or
(except only as by law, statute or these Articles provided or as ordered by a court of
competent jurisdiction) any other rights in respect of any share except an absolute right to
the entirety thereof in its registered holder. b

ISSUE OF SHARES

3.1 Sub ject to Articles 3.2 and to any direction to the contrary contained in a resolu-
tion passed at a general meeting authorizing any increase or alteration of capital, the
shares shall be under the control of the Directors who may, subject to the rights of the
holders . of the shares of the Company for the time being issued, 1issue, allot, sell or
otherwise dispose of or grant options on or otherwise deal in, shares authorized but not
outstanding or share purchase Warrants at such times, to such persons (including directors),
‘"in such manner, upon such terms and conditions, and at such price or for such conslderation,
as they, in their absolute discretion, way determine.

3.2 If the Company 1is, or becomes, a company which is not a reporting company and the
Directors are required by the Company Act before allotting any shares to offer them pro
rata to the members, the Directors shall, before allotting any shares, comply with the
applicable provisions of the Company Act,

3.3 Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, the Company, or the Directors on
behalf of the Company, may pay a commission or allow a discount to any person {n consider-
ation of his subscribing or agreeing to subscribe, whether absolutely or conditionally,
for any shares in the Company, or procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions, whether
absolutely or conditionally, for auny such shares, provided that, if the Company is not a
. specially limited company, the rate of the commission and discount shall not {n the
aggregate exceed 25% of the amount of the subscription price of such shares.

3.4 No share may be 1issued until {t is fully paid and the Company shall have recceived
the full consideration therefor in cash, property or past services actually pertormed for
the value determined by the Directors by resolution to be, In all circumstances f the
transaction, the falr market value thereof. '

SHARE REGISTERS

4.1 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept a register of members, a reglster of
transfers and a register of allotments within British Columbia, all as required by the
Company Act, and may combine one or more of such registers. If the Cowpany's capital
shall consist of more than one class of shares, a separate register of members, reglister of
transfers and register of allotments may be kept in respect of each class of shares. The
Directors on behalf of the Company may appoint a trust company to keep the reglster of
menbers, register of transfers and register of allotments or, 1f there is more than one
class of shares, the Directors may appoint a trust company, which need not be the same trust
company, to keep the register of members, the register of transfers and the register of
allotments for each class of share. The Directors on behalf of the Company may also appoint
one or more trust companies, including the trust company which keeps the said registers of
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its shares or of a class thersof, as transfer agent for its shares or such clase thereof, aa
“he case may be, and the same or another trust company or companies as registrar for its
ahares or such class thereof, as the case may be. The Directors may terminate the
:tpointnent of any such trust company at any time and may appoint another trust company in

8 place.

4.2 Unless prohibited by the Company. Act, the Company may keep or cause to be kept one
or more branch registers of members at such place or places as the Directors may from time
to time determine.

e 3 The Company shall not at any time close ita register of members.

SHARE TRANSFERS AND TRANSMISSIONS

5.1 Subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and of these Articles that may be
applicable, any member may transfer any of his shares by instrument in writin;, executed by

or on behalf of such pember and delivered to the Company or 1its transfer o.'ent,., ‘Che
inatrument of tran:rer of any share of the Company shall be in the form, if any, on the back
of the Compoany's share certificates or in such other form as the Directors may f{rowu time to
time . Tove. Fxcept to Lhe exten: that the Company Act may otherwise nrovide, the
. transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of the shares until the name of the transferee
18 entered in the refister of menmbiers or a uranch rersister of members in respect thereof.

5,2 The sivnature of the re;ictered owner of any shares, or his duly authorized attorney,
upon an authorized instrument of transfer shall conastitute a complete and sufficient

authority to the Company, 1ts direclors, officers and acents to regsgister, in the ncae of the
transferee as named in the instrument of transfer, the number of shares specified therein

or, 1f no number 18 specified, all the shares of the reristered owner represented by share
certificates deposited with the instrument of transfer. If no transferee is nimed in the
inctrunent of trensfer, the instrument of transfer shall constitute a comnlete and sufficient
authority to the Company, its directors, officers and agents to repgister, in t® name of the
person in whose behalf any certificate for the shares to be transferred is deposited with

the Company for the purpose of having the transfer registered, the number of shares

specified in the instrument of tranafer or, if no number i1is specified, all the shares
represented by all share certificates deposited with the inastrument of tranafer,

5,3 NHeither the Company nor any director, officer or agent thereof shall be bound to
inquire into the title of the person named in the form of transfer as transferee, or, 1if

no person 1s named therein as transferee, of the person on whose behalf the certiricate ia
deposited with the Company for the purpose of having the tranafer registered or be ltalle to
any claim by such registered owner or by any intermediate owner or holder of the certificate
or of any of the shares represented thereby or any interest therein for registerin~ the
transfer, and the transfer, when reristered , shall confer upon the person in whose name the
shares have been registered a valid title to such shares,

5.4 Fvery instrument of transfer shall be executed by the tranasferor and left at the
redistered office of the Company or at the office of its :ransfer agent or reristrar for
registration together with the share certificate for the shares to be transferred and such
other evidence, if any, as the Directors or the tranafer agent or registrar may require to
prove the title of the transferor or his right to transfer the shares and the richt of the
transferee to bave the transfer registered, All instruments of transfer where the transfer
is registered shall be retained by the Company or its transfer agent or registrar and any
instrument of transfer, where the tranaefer is not registered, shall be returned to the person
depositing the same together with the share certificate which accompanied the same when
tendared for regilstration.

5.5 %here shall Le paid to the Company in reapect of the registration of any transfer
such sum, not exceedin; that permitted by the Company Act, as the Directors may from time
to time determine,

" 5.6 In the case of the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the deceased’
was a jJoint registered holder, and the legal personal representative of the deceacsed where
ae wag the sole holder, shall be the only persons recornized by the Company as having any
title to his interest in the shares. Before recognizing any leral personal representative
the Directors omay require him to obtesin a grant of probate or letters of administration in
British Columbia.

5.7 Upon the deatii or bankruptcy of a member, his persconal representative or trustee
in bankruptcy, althouch not a member, shall have the same rights, privilees and obli ations
that attach to the shares formerly held by the derceased or bankrupt asmber 1f the documents
required by the Company act shall have been depesited at the Company's rezistered office.
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5.8 Any person who becomes entitled to a share as a result of the death or bankruptcy
of any member, upon producing the evidence required by the Company Act, or who becomes
entitled to a share as a result of an order of a court of competent jurisdiction or a
statute, upon producing such evidence as the Directors think sufficient that he is so
entitled, may be registered as holder of the share or may transfer the share; but the
Directors shall, as regards a transfer by a personal representative or trustee in
bankruptcy, have the same right, if any, to decline or suspend registration of a transferee
as they would have in the case of a transfer of a share by the deceased or bankrupt person
before the death or bankruptcy.

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

6.1 The Company may by ordinary resolution filed with the Registrar amend its
Memorandum to increase the authorized capital of the Company by:

(i) creating shares with par value or shares without par value, or both;

(i1) increasing the number of shares with par value or shares without par value, or
both, or :

(111) increasing the par value of a class of shares with par value, if no shares of that

class are issued.

6.2 The Company may by special resolution alter its Memorandum to subdivide,
consolidate, change from shares with par value to shares without par value, or from shares
without par value to shares with par value, or change the designation of, all or any of its
shares but only to such extent, in such manner and with such consents of members holding a

class of shares which is the subject of or affected by such alteration, as the Company Act
provides.

6.3 The Company may alter its Memorandum or these Articles:

(1) by special resolution, to create, define and attach special rights or restrictions
to any shares, and

(11) by special resolution and by otherwise complying with any applicable provisions of
its Memorandum or these Articles, to vary or abrogate any special rights and restrictions
attached to any shares, and in each case by filing a certified copy of such resolution with
"the Registrar but no right or special right attached to any issued shares shall be
prejudiced or interfered with unless all members holding shares of each class whose right
or special right is so prejudiced or interfered with consent thereto in writing, or unless
a resolution consenting thereto is passed at a separate class meeting of the holders of the
shares of each such class by a majority of three~fourths, or such greater majority as may
be specified by the special rights attached to the class of shares, of the issued shares of
such class.

6.4 Notwithstanding such consent in writing or such resolution, no such alteration
shall be valid as to any part of the issued shares of any class unless the holders of the
rest of the 1issued shares of such class either all consent thereto in writing or coasent
thereto by a resolution passed by the votes of members holding three-—fourths of the rest of
such shares.

6.5 If the Company is or becomes a reporting company, no resolution to create, vary or
abrogate any speclal right of conversion attaching to any class of shares shall be
submitted to any meeting of members unless, 1f so required by the Company Act, the
Superintendent of Brokers, Insurance & Real Estate shall have consented to the resolution.

6.6 Unless these Articles otherwise provide, the provisions of these Articles relating
to general meetings shall apply, with the necessary changes and so far as they are
applicable, to a class meeting of members holding a particular class of shares but the
quorum at a class meeting shall be one person holding or representing by proxy one-third of
the shares affected.

SHARE PURCHASES AND REDEMPTIONS

7.1 Subject to the special rights and restrictions attached to any class of shares,
the Company may, by a resolution of the Directors and in compliance with the Company Act,
purchase or otherwise acquire any of its shares at the price and upon the terms specified
in such resolution or redeem any class of its shares in accordance with the special rights
and restrictions attaching thereto. No such purchase, redemption or acquisition shall be
made if the Company is insolvent at the time of the proposed redemption, purchase or
acquisition or 1f the proposed redemption, purchase or acquisition would render the Company
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insclvent, Unless the shares are to be purchased through a stock exchange cor the Conmpany
is purchasing shares from a bona fide employee or bona fide former employee of the Company
pursuant to the requirements of the Company Act or the Company is purchasing or acquiring
shares from dissenting members. pursuant to the requirements of the Company Act, the Company
shall make its offer to purchase pro rata to every member who holds shares of the class or
series to be purchased.

7.2 If the Company proposes at its option to redeem some but not all of the shares of
any class, the Directors may, subject to the special rights and restrictions attached to
such class of shares, decide the manner in which the shares to be redeemed shall be
selected. :

7.3 Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, any shares purchased or redeemed by
the Company may be sold or issued by it, but, while such shares are held by the Company, it
shall not exercise any vote in respect of these shares and no dividend shall be paid
thereon.

BORROWING
8.1 The Directors may from time to time on behalf of the Company:
(i) borrow money in such manner and amount, on such security, from such sources and

upon such terms and conditions as they think fit;

(i1) issue bonds, debentures and other debt obligatiors either outright or as security
for any liability or obligation of the Company or any other person; and

(i1i) mortgage, charge, whether by way of specific or floating charge, or give other
security on the undertaking, or on the whole or any part of the property and assets, of the
Company (both present and future).

8.2 Any bonds, debentures or other debt obligations of the Company may be issued at a
discount, premium or otherwise, and with any special privileges as to redemption,
surrender, drawing, allotment of or conversion into or exchange for shares or other
securities, attending and voting at general meetings of the Company, appointment of
Directors or otherwise and may by their terms be assignable free from any equities between
the Company and the person to whom they were issued or any subsequent holder thereof, all
as the Directors may determine.

8.3 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept within the Province of British Columbia
in accordance with the Company Act a register of its debentures and a register of debenture
holders, which registers must be combined, and, subject to the provisions of the Company
Act, may keep or cause to be kept one or more branch registers of its debenture holders at
such place or places as the Directors may from time to time determine and the Direcctors may
by resolution, regulation or otherwise make such provisions as they think fit respecting
the keeping of such branch registers.

8.4 Every bond, debenture or other debt obligation of the Company shall be signed
manually by at least one director or officer of the Company or by or on behalf of a
trustee, registrar, branch registrar, transfer agent or branch transfer agent for the bond,
debenture or other debt obligation appointed by the Company or under any instrument under
which the bond, debenture or other debt obligation so signed is as valid as if signed
manually notwithstanding that any person whose signature is so printed or mechanically
reproduced shall have ceased to hold the office that he is stated on such bond, debenture
or other debt obligation to hold at the date of the issue thereof.

8.5 The Company shall keep or cause to be kept a register of its indebedness to every
director or officer of the Company or an associate of any of them in accordance with the
provisions of the Company Act. :

GENERAL MEETINGS

9.1 Subject to any extensions of time permitted pursuant to the Company Act, the first
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held within fifteen months from the date of
incorporation and thereafter an annual general meeting shall be held once in every calendar
year at such time (not being more than thirteen months after the holding of the lasc
preceding annual general meeting) and place as may be determined by the Directors.

9.2 If the Company is, or becomes, a company which 1is not a reporting company and all
the members entitled to attend and vote at an annual general meeting consent in writing to
all the business which is required or desired to be transacted at the meeting, the meeting
need not be held.
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9.3 All seneral meetings other than annual general meetinss shall ve called
extraordinary cgeneral meetingss.

9.4 The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an extiraordinary enernl
meetin~, An extraordinary general meetin:, 3f requisitioned in accordarnce witi Llhe
Company Act, shall be convened Ly the Directore or, if not convened by ihe Directors, oay
Le convened by the requisitionists as provided in the Company Act.

9.3 If the Company is or becomes a rsporting company, advance notice of any general
meetinz at which Directors are to be elected shall be published in the manner required by
the Compamy Act.

9.0 A notice convenin, a feneral meeting specifyin;; the place, the dzy, and the hour

of the meetins, and, in case of special buasiness, the general ~ature of that business, shall
be given as provided in the Company Act and in the manner hereinafter in these Articles
mentioned, or in such other manner (if any) as may be prescribed by ordinary resclution
(whether previous notice thereof has been given or not), to such persons as are entitled by
law or under these Articles to receive such notice from the Company. Accidental omission

to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of notice of a meetinsz by, any mewmber
shall rot invalidate the proceedin,ss at that meeting.

3.7 All the members of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a seneral meeting may,
by unonimous consent in writing riven before, during or aftar the meeting, or if they are
present at the meeting by a unanimouc vote, waive or reduce the period of notice of such
meeting and an entry in the minute Loolr of such waiver or reduction shall be sufficient
evidence of the due convening of the meeting.

S.8 Except as otherwise provided by the Company ~Act, where any special business at a
ceneral meeting includes considering, apnroving, ratifying, andopting or authorizins any
document or the execution thereof or the ;iving of effect thereté¢e, the notice conveninr

the meetin;: shall, with respect to such document, be sufficient 1f it statec that a cory

©of the document or proposed document is or will be available for inspection by members at
the re; istered office or records office of the Company or at some other place in Hritish
Columbia deaignated in the notice during usual business hours up to the date of such
general meeting, :

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

10.1 All business shall be deemed special business which is transacted at:

1) an extraordinary general meeting other than the conduct of and voting at,
such meetingc; and

(11) an annual general meeting, with the exception of the conduct of, and votiang at,
such meeting, the consideration of the financial statement and of the respective reports
of the Directors and Auditor, fixing or chansing the number of directors, approval of a
motion to elect two or more directors by a single resolution, the election of Directors,
the appointment of the Auditor, the fixing of the remuneration of the Auditor and such
other busineass as LY these Articles or the Company Act may be transacted at a (enersl
meeting without prior notice therecf being given to the members or any business which 1is
brousht under consideration by the report of the Directors.

10.2 No business, other than the election of the chairman or the adjournment of the
meeting, shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members, entitled
to attend and vote, is present at the commencement of the meeting, but the quorum need
not be present throughout the meeting,

10.3 Save as herein otherwise provided, a quorum shall be two persons present and being,
or representing by proxy, members holding not less than one-twentieth of the shares which
may bLe voted at the meeting. If there is only one nember the quorum is one person present
and being, or representins by proxy, such member, The Directors, the Secretary or, in

his z2bsence, an Assistant Secretary, and the solicitor of the Coapany shall be entitled to
attend at any general mesating but no such perscn shall be counted in the guorum or be
entitled to vote at any ceneral meeting unless he shall be a member or proxyholder

entitled to vote thereat, :

10.4 If within half an hour from the ti=e appcinted for a general meeting a quorum is
not present, the meetins, 1f convened upon the requisition of members, shall dbe dissolved,
In any other case 1t shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week, at the sanme
time and place, and, if at the adjourned meeting & quorum is not present within half an
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10.5 The Chelruen of the ‘loard, if any, or in his abeence the President of the Zloulany
‘or, in his absence, a Vice-President of the Comnany, 1f any, shall be entitled .o »reside
as chairman at every -eneral meetin_ of the Company.

10.6 If at any general meetin( neither the Chairman of the Board nor the President

nor a Vice-President is present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding
the meeting or is willing to act as chairman, the Directors present shall choose some one
of theilr number to be chairman or 4f all the Directors present decline to take the chair or
shall fail to so choose or if no director be present, the members present shall choose one
of their number to be chairman.

10,7 The chairman may and shall, if so directed by the meeting, adjourn the nmeeting
from time to time and from place to place, but no business shall be transacted at any
adiourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the

ad journment took place. When a meeting 18 adJourned for thirty days or more, notice, but
not "advance notice’, of the adjourned meeting shrll be given as in the case of an original
meeting. Save am aforesaid, it shall not be necessary to gilve any notice of an adjourned
meeting or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

10.8 ilo motion'propoeed at a peneral meeting need be seconded and the chalrman may
propose or gacond a motion. Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, 8L any 'eneral
meetin, 2 resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands,
unless (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands) a poll is directed
by +he chairman or demanded by at least one member entitled to vote who is nresent 1in
person or LY proxy. The chairman shall declare to the meetin: the decision on every
question in accordance with the result of the show of hands or the poll, and such decision
shall Le entered in the book of proceedings of the Company. A declaration by the chairman
that a resolution has been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority,

or lost or not carried by a particular majority and an entry to that effect in the book of
the proceedings of the Company shall be conclusive evidence of the fact, without proof of
the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of, or against, that resolution.
In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the chairman
of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll is demcnded
shall Le entitled to a msecond or casting vote,

10,9 No poll may be demanded on the slection of a chairman, A poll demanded on a
quezstion of adjournment shall be taken forthwith. A poll demanded on any other question
shall be taken as soon &8s, in the opinion of the chairman, is reasonably convenient, but in
no event later than saven days after the reetin~ and rt such time and nlace anrd tn nuca
manner as the chairman of the meetingz directs. . The result of the poll shall be deemed
to be the resclution of and passed at the meeting at which the poll was demanded, Any
business other than that upon which the poll has been demanded may be proceeded with
pending the taking of the poll, A demand for a poll may be withdrawn, In any dispute
as to the admission or rejection of a vote the decision of the chairman made in rood faith
shall be final and conclusive. On a poll a person entitled to caat more than cne vote
need not, if he votes, use all his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the caome way.
Every ballot cast upon a poll and every proxy appointing a nroxyholder who casts a ballot
upen a poll shall be retained by the Secretary for such perliod and be subject to such
inspection as the Company Act may provide. :

10.10 Unless the Company act, the Memorandum or these Articles otherwise provide, any
action to be taken by a resolution of the members may be taken by an crdinary resolution.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

11.1 SubJect to any spectial voting rights or restrictions attached to any claes of

- shares and the restrictiona on joint registered holders of ahares, on a show of hands every
member who 1ia present in person and entitled to vots thereat shall have one vote and on a
poll every member shall have one vote for each share of which he is the registered holder
and may exercise such vote either in person or by proxyholder.

1.2 Any person who 1s not registered as a member but is entitled to vote at any general
meeting in respect of a share, may vote the share in the same manner as if he were a aember;
but, unless the Directors have previously admitted his right to vote at that particular
meeting in respect of the share, he shall satisfy the directors of his right to vote the
shares before the time for holding the meeting, or adjourned meeting, as the case may bde,

at which he proposea to vote.

11.3 Any corporation not being a subsidiary which is a member of the Company may by
resolution of its directors or other governing body Aauthorise such perscn as it thinks it
to act as ite representative at any general meeting or class meeting. The person 8o
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authorized shall be entitled to exercise in respect of and at suchmeetiny the S3ale powern
-on beilalf of the corporation which he represents as that corporation could exercise if it
were an individual member of the company personally present, including, Without limitatien,
the ri ht, unless restricted by such resolution, to appoint a proxyholder to rerresent such
eorworation, and shall be counted for the purpose of forming & quorum 1f present at the
meetin:;. Evidence of the appointment of any such representative may be sent to the Comnany
LY written instrument, teledram, telex or any method of transmittin lesibly recorded

megsa es, ‘Notwithstanding the foregoing, a corporation being & member nay appoint a
proxyholder,
11.4 In the case of joint registered holders of a share the vote of the senicr who

exercises a vote, whether in person or by proxyholder, ahall be accepted to the exclusiornr
of the votes -of the othe~ joint reristered holders; and for this purpose seniority shall be
determined by the order . in which the names stand in the register of members. Several
legal personal representatives of a deceased member whose shares are registered in his sole
name shall for the purpose of this Article be deemed joint registered holders.

11.5 A member of unsound mind entitled to attend and vote, in respect of whom an order
has been made by any court having jurisdiction, may vote, whether on a show of hands or

on a poll, by his committee, curator bonis, or other person in the nature of a committee
or curator bonis appointed by that court, and any asuch committee, curator bonis, or other
nerson may appoint a proxyholder.

11.0C A member holding more than one share 1in respect of .which he is entitled to vote
shall be entitled to appoint one or more (but not more than five) proxyholders to attend,
act and vote for him on the same occasion. If such a member ahoulq appoint more than one
proxyholder for the same occasion he shall epecify the number of shares each proxyholder
shall Le entitled to vote. A wmember may also appoint one or more alternate proxyholders
to act in the place and stead of an absent proxyholder.

11.7 A form of proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his
attorney duly authorized in writing, or, if the appointor ie a corporation, either under
the seal of the corporation or under the hand of a duly authorized officer or attorney.
A proxyholder need not be a member of the Company 1f

(1) the Company ias at the time a reporting company, or

(11) the member appointing the proxyholder is a corporation, or

(114) the Company shall have at the time only one member, or

(iv) the persons present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the meetin; by

resolution permit the proxyholder to attend and vote, and for the purpose of such
resolution the proxyholder shall be counted in the quorum but shall not be entitled to vote,

and in all other cases a proxyholder must be a member,

11.3 A form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which
it is signed or a rotarially certified copy thereof shall be deposited at the registered
office of the Company or at such other place as is specified for that purpose in the notice
convening the meetint, hot less than 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays)
Lefore the time for holding the mee:ing in respect of which the person named in the instrument
is appointed. In addition to any cother method of depositing proxies provided for in these
Articles, the Directors may from time to time by resolution make regulations relating to
the depositinz of proxies at any place or places and fixing the time or times not excseding
43 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) preceding the meeting or adjourned
meeting before which time proxies to be used at that meeting must be deposited, and
providing for particulars of such proxies to be sent to the Company or any agent of the
Company 1in writing or by letter, telegram, telex or any method of transmitting legidbly
recorded messages so as to arrive before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned
meeting at the office of the Company or of any agent of the Company appointed for the
purpose of receiving such particulars and providing that proxies so deposited may be acted
upon as though the proxies themselves were deposited as required by this Part and votes
given in accordance with such regulations shall be valid and shall be counted,

11.9 Unless the Company Aet or any other statute or law which is applicable to the
Company or to any class of its shares requires any other form of proxy, & proxy, vhsther
for a specific meeting or otherwise, shall be in the form following, but may also be in any
other form that the Directors or the chairman of the meeting ahall approve:
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(Name of Company)
The undersigned, being a member of the above named Company, hereby &appoints

of failing him
as proxyholder for the undersigned to attend, act and vote for and on behalf of the under-

sisned at the general meeting of the Company to be held on the day of
and at any adjournment thereof.
Signed this day of sy 19 .
(Signature of member).
11.10 A vote givﬁn in accérdance with the terms of a proxy is valid notwithstanding the

previous death or incapacity of the member giving the proxy or the revocation of the proxy
or of the authority under which the form of proxy was executed or the transfer of the shares
in respect of which the proxy is ;iven, provided that no notification in writins of such
death, incapacity, revocation or transfer shall have bsen received at the recistered office
wf the meeting or adjourned meeting for which the proxy

of the 7T~mpany or by the chutrman

was  tvenn, before the vote is taken.

11.11 Every proxy may be revoked by an instrument in writing

(1) executed by the member siving the same or by his attorney authorized in writing,

or, where the member is a corporation, by a duly authorized officer or attorney of the
corporation; and '

(11) deliversd either at the registered office of the Company at any time up to and
including the last dbusiness day preceding the day of the meeting, or any adjournment thereof
at which the proxy is to be used, or to the chairman of the meeting on the day of the
meetin;; or any adjournment thereof before any vote 1n respect of which the proxy is to be
used shall have beaen taken,

or in any other manner provided by law.

DIRECTORS

12.1 The subscribers to the Memorandum of the Company are the first Directors, The
Directors to succeed the first Directors may be appointed in writing by a majority of the
subscribers to the Memorandum or at a meeting of the subscridbers, or if not so appointed,
they shall be slected by the members entitled to vote on the election of Directors and the
number of Directors shall be the same as the number of Directors so appointed or elacted.
The number of Directors, excluding additional Directors, may be fixed or chanced from time
to time by ordinary resolution, whether previocus notice thereof has been given or not, but
notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles the number of Directors shall never

be less than one or, if the Company is or becomes a reportins company, less than three.

12,2 The remuneration of the Directors as such may from time to time be determined by the
Directors or, 1f the Directors shall so decide, by the memdbers. Such remuneration may be
in addition to any salary or other remuneration paid to any officer or employee of the
Company as such who is also a Director. The Directors ahall be repaid such reasonabdle
travelling, hotel and octher expenses as they incur in and about the business of the

Company and if any Director shall perform any professional or other servicea for the
Company that in the opinion of the Directors are ocutaide the ordinary duties of a Director
or shall otherwise be specially occupied in or about the Company's business, he may de paid
a remuneration to be fixed by the Board, or, at the option of such Director, by the Company
in general meeting, and such remuneration may be either in addition to, or in ‘
substitution for,any other remuneration that he may be entitled to receive. The Directors
on behalf of the Company, unless otherwise determined by ordinary reeolution, may pay a
gratuity, pension or allowance on retirement to any Director who has held any salaried
office or place of profit with the Company or to his spouse or depsndants and mag make
contributions to any fund and pay premiums for the purchase or provision of any such
gratuity, pension or allowance.

12.3 A Director shall not be required to hold a share in the capital of the Company as
qualification for his office but shall be qualified as required by the Company Act to
become or act as a Director.
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DIRECTORS: ELECTION, TERMINATION & REMOVAL

13.1 At each annual general meeting of the Company all the Directors shall retire and
the members entitled to vote thereat shall elect a Board of Directors consisting of the
number of Directors for the time being fixed pursuant to these Articles. If the Company

is, or becomes, a company that ie not a reporting company and the business to be transacted
at any annual general meeting ia consented to in writing by all the members who are entitled
to attend and vote thereat such annual general meeting shall be deemed for the purpose of
this Part to have been held on such written consent becoming effective. A retiring

Director shall be elicible for re-election.

13.2 WVhere the Company fails to hold an annual general meeting in accordence with the
Company Act, the Directors then in office shall be deemed to have been elected or
appointed as Directors on the last day on which the annual general meeting could have been
held pursuant to these Articles and they may hold office until other Directors are anpointed
or elected or until the day on which the next annual general meeting 1s held.

13.3 If at any general meetin: at which there should be an election of Directors, the
places of any nof the retiring Directors are not filled by such election, such of the
retirings Directors who are not re-elected as may be requested by the newly-elected

Directors shall, if willinzg to do so, continue in office to comnlete the number of Directors
for the time bein:;' fixed pursuant to these Articles until further new Directorsc are

elected at & general meeting convened for the purpose. If any such election or

continuance of the Directors does not result in the election or continuance of the number

of Directors for the time being fixed pursuant to these Articles such number shall be fixed
at the number of Directors actually elected or continued 1in office.

13.4 Any casual vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by the
remaining Directors or Director.

13.5 Between successive annual general meetings the Directors shall have power to
appoint one or more additional Directors but not more than one-~third of the number of
Directors fixed pursuant to these Articles and in effect at the last general meeting at’
which Directors were elected. Any Director @o appointed shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company, but shall be eligible for election at
such meeting and so long as he is an additional Director the number of Directorsa shall be
increased accordingly.

13.6 Any Director may by ingtrument in writing delivered to the Company appoint any
person to be his alternatée to act in his place at meetinegs of the Directors at which he 1s
not present unless the Directors shall have reasonably disapproved the appointment of such
person as an alternate Director and shall have given notice to that effect to the Director
appointing the alternate Director within a reasonable time after delivery of such instrument
to the Company. Every such alternate shall be entitled to notice of meetings of the
Directors and to attend and vote as a Director at a meeting at which the person appointing
him is not personally present, and, if he is a Director, to have a separate vote on behalf
of the Director he is representing in addition to his own vote, A Director may at any time
" by instrument, telegram, telex or any method of transmitting legibly recorded messares
delivered to the Company revoke the appointment of an alternate appointed by him. The
remunsration payable to such an alternate shall be payable out of the remuneration of the
Director appointing him,

13.7 The office of Director ashall be vacated 1f the Director:

(1) reéigna his orffice by notice in writing delivered to the registered office of the
Company; or

(11) is convicted of an indictable offence and the other Directors shall have resolved to
remove him; or

(111) ceases tc be qualified to act as a Director pursuant to the Company act.

13.8 Tho Company may by special resolution remove any Director before the expiration of

his period of office, and may by an ordinary resolution appoint another person in his stead.

POWERS DU S OF DIREC TORS

14.1 The Directors shall manage, Oor supervise the mannagement of, the affairs and business
of the Company and shall have the authority to exercise all such powers of the Company as
are not, vy the Company Act or by the Memorandum or thess Articles, required to be

exercised by the Company in general meeting,
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14,2 The Directors may from time to time by power of attorney or other instrument,
appoint any person to be the attorney of the Company for such purposes, and with such powers,
authoritiss and discretions (not exceading thogse vested in or exercisable by the Directors
under these Articles and excepting the powers of the Directors relating to the constitution
of the Board and of any of its committees and the appointment or removal of officers and the
power to declare dividends) and faor such period, with such remuneration and subject to such
ctonditions as. the Directors may think fit, and any such appointment may be made in favour of
any of the Directors or any of the members of the Company or 1in favour of any corporation,
or of any of the memdbers, directors, nominees or managers of any corporation, firm or joint
venture and any such power of attorney may contain such provisions for the protection or
convenience of persons dealing with such attorney as the Directors think fit. Any such
attorney may be authorized by the Directors to sub-~delegate all or any o{ the powers,
authorities and discretions for the time being vested in him.

DISCIOSURE OF INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

15.1 A Director who is, in any way, directly or indirectly interested in an existing

or propomsed contract or transaction with the Company or who holds any office or possesses
any property whereby, directly or indirectly, a duty or interest might be created to
conflict with his duty or interest as a Director shall declare the nature and extent of his
interest in such contract or transaction or of the conflict or potential conflict with hie
duty and interest as a Director, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of
the Company aert, '

15,2 A Director shall not vote in respect of any such contract or transaction with the
Commany in which he i8 interested and 1if he ghall do so his vote shall not be counted,

but e shall be counted in the quorum present at the meeting at which such vote is taken,
Suuiect to the provisions of the Company. Act, the foregoinsg prohibitions shall not apply
LOo-

(i) where the contract or transaction relates to a loan to the Company, that a Director
or & specified corporation or aspecified firm in which he has an interest has ;uaranteed or
Joined in guaranteeing the repayment of the loan of any part of the loan;

(11) ' any contract or transaction made or to be made with, or for tho benefit of a
holding corporation or a subaidiary corporation of which a Director 18 a director;

(44i) any contract by a Director to subscribe for or underwrite shares or debentures to be
issued by the Company or a subsidiary of the Company, or any contract, arrangement or
transaction in which a Director is, directly or indirectly, intereated 1f all the other
Directors are also, directly or indirectly interested in the contract, arrancement or
transaction;

(iv) determining the remuneration of the Directors;

(v) purchasing and maintaining insurance to cover Directors againat 1liadbility tncurred
by them as Directors; or

(v1) the indemnification of any Director by the Company,

These exceptions may from time to time be suspended or amended to any extent -pprovod.by the
Comrany in genernl meeting and permitted by the Company Act, eilther generally or in
respect of any particular contract or transaction or for any particular period.

15.23 A Director may hold any office or place of profit with the Company (other than the
office of auditor of the Company) in conjunction with his office of Director for such period
and on such terms (as to remuneration or otherwise) as the Directors may determine and ne’
Director or intended Director shall be disqualified by kim office from contracting with

the Company either with regard to his tenure of any such other office or place of profit

or as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, and, sudject to compliance with the provisions of

the Company Act, no contract or transaction entered into by or on bshalf of the Company
in which a pDirector is in any way interessted shall be liable to be voided by reascon thereof.

15.4 Subject to compliance with the provisions of the Company Act, & Director or his
firm may act in a professional capacity for the Cowpany (except as auditor of the Company)
and he or his firm shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as 1f he
were not a Director, : '
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15.5 A Director may be or become a director or other officer or enmployee of, or ntherwise
interested in, any corporation or firm in which the Company may be interested as 2 siureholder
or otherwise, and subject to compliance with the provisions of the Company . Act, such
Director shall not be accountable to the Company for any remuneration or other benefits
received by him as director, officer of employee of, or from his interest ln, suca other
corporation or firm, unless the Company in general meeting otherwise directs.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

16,1 The Chairman of the Board, 1f any, or in his absence, the President shall preside
as chairman at every meeting of the Directors, or if there is no Chairman of the Board or’
neither the Chairman of the Board nor the President is present within fifteen minutes of
the time appointed for holding the meeting or is willing to act as chairman, or, if the
Chairman of the Board, 1f any, and the President have advised the Secretary that they will
not be present at the meeting, the Directors present shall choose one of their number to’

- be chairman of the meeting.

16.2 The

Directors may mecet torether for the dispatch of business, adjourn and otherwise

reritlate theilr meetings, as they think frit, Questions arising at any meetins shall be

decided bv a

ma jority of votes, Th case of an equality of votes the chairman shall

bave a second or castin/; vote., Meetings of the Board held at regular intervals may be held
at such nlace, at such time and upon such notice (if any) as the Roard may Ly resolution

from time to

time determine,

1¢.3 A Director may participate in a meeting of the Bodrd or of any committee of the

Directors by
of which al?l

means of conference tclephones or other communications facilities LYy means
Directo~s participati=,;; in the meeting can hear each other and vprovided that

all such Directors arree to such participation. A Director participatin,s in a meetin
in accordance with this Article shall be deemed to be present at the meetin;” and to have so
a“reed and shall be counted in the quorum therefor and be entitled to speak and vote thereat.

16.4 A Director may, and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary upon request of a
Director shall, call a meetini of the Board at any time. Reasonable notice of such meeting
specifyings the place, day and hour of such meeting shall be given by mall, postage prepaid,

addressed to
the books of

by telephone,

It shall not

@sach of the Directors and alternate Directors at his address aa 1t appears on
the Company or by leaving it at his usual business or residential sddress or
telegram, telex, or any method of transmittings legibly recorded me=msases,

be necesmsary to give notice of a meeting of Directors to any Director or

alternate Director (1) who is at the time not in the Province of British Columbia or
(114) 1f such meetins 18 to be held immediately following a general meeting at which such
Director shall have been elected or is the meating of Directors at which such Director

18 appointed.

16.5 Any

Director of the Company may file with the Secretary a document executed by him

waivinr notice of any past, present or future meeting or meetings of the Directora uneing,
or required to have been,sent to him and may at any time withdraw such wajiver with respect
to meetings held thereafter. After filing such waiver with reapect to future meetings and
until such waiver is withdrawn no notice need be given to such Director and, unless the
Director otherwise regquires in writing to the Secretary, to his alternate Director of aay
meeting of Directors and all meetings of the Directors so held shall be deemead not to de
improperly called or constituted by reason of notice not having been given to such Director

or alternate
16.6 The
fixed b) the
Directors is

16.7 The

Director.

quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the Directors may be
Directors and 1f not so fixed shall be two Directors or, if the number of
fixed at one, shall be one Director.

continuins Directors may act notwithetanding any vacancy in their body, bdut, 1t

and so long as their number is reduced below the number fixed pursuant to these Articles aas
the necessary quorum of Directors, the continuing Directors may act for the purpose of
increasing the number of Directors to that number, or of summoning a general meeting of the

Company, but

for no other purpose.

16.8 Sudbject to the provisions of the Company 4Act, all acte done by any meeting of the
Directors or of a committee of Directors, or by any person acting as a Director, shall,
notwithstanding that 1t be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the
qualification, election or appointment of any such Directors or of the members of such
committee or perscn acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disgualified, be
as valid as 1f every such person had been duly elected or appointed and was gqualified to

be & Director.
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16.9 A resolution consented to in writinr, whether by document, teleram, telex or any
netliod of transmittin~ le;ibLlv recorded messages or other means, by all of “he Directors
5hall be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meetini; of the Directors duly
called and held, Such resolution may be in two or more counterparts wihich to_ ether chall
be deemed to constitute one resolution in writing, Such resolution shall Ve filed with the
minutes of the proceedings of the Directors and shall be effective on the date stated
thereon or on the latest date stated on any counterpart.

COMMITTEES

17.1 The Directors may by resolution appoint an Executive Committee to consist of such
member or members of their body as they thimk fit, which Committee shall have, and may
exercise during the intervals betwecn the meetings of the Board, all the powers vested in the
FBoard except the power to fill vacancies in the Board, the power to change the membership
of, or fill vacancies in, said Committee or any other committee of the Board and such other
rowers, if any, as may be specified in the resolution. The said Committee shall keep
recular minutes of 1its transactions and shall cause them to be recorded in hooks kept for
that nurnose, and shall report the same to the Board of Directors at such times as the Roard
of Directors may from time to time require. The Roard shall have the power at any time to
revolle or override the authorits given to or acts done by the Executive fommittee excent as
to ncts done bhefore such revocation or overriding and to terminate the appointment or change
the membership of such Committee and to fill vacancies in 1t. The Executive Committee

may nalke rules for the conduct of its business and may appoint such assistants as it ma,
decm necessary, A majority of the members of said Committee shall constitute o quorom

thereof, i

17.2 The Directors may by resolution appoint one or more committees consisting of such
mem.er or menvers of their body as they think fit and may delej;ate to any such conmittee
betveen nmeetinrs of the Board such powers of the RBoard (except the power to fill wvacancies
in the Board and the power to chance the membership of or fill vacancies in any committee
of the Board and the power to appoint or remove officers appointed by the BRoard) subject
~to such conditions as may be prescribed in such resolution, and all committees so appointed
shall keep regular minutes of their transactions and chall cause them to be recorded in
Looks kept for that purpose, and shall report the same to the Board of Directors at such
times as the Roard of Directors may from time to time require. The Directors shall nlso
have power at any time to revoke or override any authority riven to or acts to e done LYy
any such comnittees except as to acts done before such revocation or overriding and to
terminate the appointment or chaniie the membership of a comnmittee and teo fi1ill vacancien in
1c. Conmnittees may make rules for the conduct of their business and may appoint such
assistants as they may deem necessary. A ma jority of the members of a committee Shinll
constitute a quorum thereof.,

17.3 The Executive Committee and any other committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks
proper, Questions arisins at any meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes of the
members of the committee present, and in case of an equality of votes the chairman shall not
have a second or casting vote, A resolution approved in writing by all the members of the
Executive Committee or any other committee shall be as valid and effective ams 1f 1t nad been
passed at a meeting of such Committes duly called and conastituted, Such resolution may bve
in two or more counterparts which together shall be deemed to constitute one resolution in
writing, Such resolution shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the
committee and shall bhe effective on the date stated thereon or on the latest date stated

in any counterpart,

OFFICERS

18.1 The Directors shall, from time tc time, appoint a President and a Secretary and such
other officers, 1f any, as the Directors shall determine and the Directors may, at any time,
terminate any such appointment, No officer shall be appointed unless he 18 qualified in
accordance with the provisions of the Company Act.

18,2 One person may hold more than one of such offices except that the offices of
President and Secretary must be held by different persons unlees the Company has only one
member., Any person appointed as the Chairman of the Board, the President or the Managing
Director shall be a Director. The other cfficers need not be Directors, The remuneration
of the officers of the Company as such and the terms and conditions of their tenure of office
or employment shall from time to time be determined by the Directors; such remunerstion may.
be by way of salary, fees, Wages, commission or participation in profitas or 2ny other means
or all of these modes and an officer may, in addition to such remuneration, be entitled to
receive a pension or gratuity after he ceases to hold such office or leaves the employment

of the Company, The Directors may decide what functions and duties each officer shall
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Perform and may entrust to and confer upon him any of the powers exercisable bty them uypon
such terms and conditions and with such restrictions ae they tiink fit and may from tinme
to time revoke, -ithdraw,’alter or vary all or any of such functions, duties and powers.
The Secretary shall, inter alia, perform the functions of the Secretary specified in the

Company Acte.

18.3 Every officer of the Company who holds any office or possesses any property whereby,
whether directly or indirectly, duties or interests might be created 1n conflict vwith his
duties or interests as an officer of the Company shall, in writing, disclose to the President
the fact and the nature, character and extent of the conflict.

INDEMNITY AND PROTECTION OF DIRECTORS,
OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES AND CERTAIN AGENTS

19.1 Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, the Directors shall cause the
Comnany to indemnify a Director or former Director of the Company and the Director may cause
the Companv to indemnify a director or former director of a corporation of which the Commany
1s or wvn~ o shareholder and the hecirs and personal representatives of any such person agoinst
all conre, charsfes and expenses, including an amount paid to settle an action or natisfy a
judriient, actuallyv and reasonably incurred by him or them including an amount paid -to saettle
an action or satisfy a Judrment in a civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding
to which he 18 or they are made a party by reas~n of his being or having been a Director

of the Zompany or a director of such corporation, including any action brought by the
Conmpany or any such corporation. Cach Director of the Company on beins elected or
aprointed shall be deemed to have contracted with the Company on the terws of the foregoing
indemnity.

19,7 Subject to the provisions of the Company Act, the Directors may cauee the
Compny to indemnify any officer, employee or agent of the Company or ¢f a corporation of
which the Company is or was a shareholder (notwithatanding that he is also a Director) and
his heirs and personal representatives againat all coests, charges and expenses whatsoever
incurred by him or them and resulting from his acting as an officer, employee or a;jent of
the Company or such corporation. In addition the Company shall indemnify the Secretary or
an Asaistant Secretary of the Company (if he shall not be a full time employee of the
Company and notwithstanding that he ies also a Diresctor) and his respective heirs and lexal
representatives against all costs, char;es and sxpsnses whatsoever incurred by him or them
and ari: inc out of the functions assigned to the Secretary by the Company Act or these
. Articles and each such Secretary arml Assistant Secretary shall on being appointed be deemead
to have contracted with the Company on the terms of the foregolng indemnity.

18.3 The fallure of a Director or officer of the Company to comply with the provisions
of the company- A€t or of the Memorandum or these Articles shall not invalidate any
indemnity to which he 18 entitled under thims Part.

19,4 The Directors may cause the Company to purchase and maintain inasurance for the
benefit of any person who im or was serving as a Director, officer, employse or agent of the
Company or as a director, officer, employee or agent of any corporation of which the Company
18 or was a sharsholder and his heirs or personal representatives against any liability
incurred by him as such Director, director, cofficer, employee or agent,

’ DIVIDENDS

20.1 The Directors may from time to time declare and authorize payment of such dividends,
'4f any, as they may deem advisable and need not give notice of such declaration to any member.
No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of funds and/or assets properly available

for the payment of dividends and a declaration by the Directors as to the amcunt of auch
fundes or assets available for dividends shall be conclusive. The Company may pay any such
dividend wheolly or in part by the distridbution of apecific assets and in particular by paid
up shares, bonds, debentures or other securities of the Company or any other corporation

or in any one or more such ways as may be authorized by the Company or the Directors and
where any difficulty arises with regard to such a distridbution the Directore may msettle the
same as they think expedient, and in particular may fix the value for distridbution of such
specific asseta or any part thereof, and may determine that cash payments in substitution
for all or any part of the specific assets to which any memders are entitled shall be =zmade
to any members on the basis of the value soc fixed 1in order to adjust the rights of all
parties and may vest any such specific assets in trustees far the persons entitled to the
dividend as may seem expedient to the Directors.

20,2 Any dividend declared on shares of any class by the Directors may be made payabdle
on such date as is fixed by the Directors.
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20,3 Subject to the rights of members (if any) holding shares with special rirhts as
to dividends, all dividends on shares of any class shall be declared and paid according to
the number of such shares held.

20.4 The Directors may, before declaring any dividend, set aside out of the funds
Properly available for the payment of dividends such sums as they think proper as a reserve
or reserves, which shall, at the discretion of the Directors, be applicable for meeting
contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for any other purpose to which such funds of
the Company may be properly applied, and pending such appllcation may, at the like
discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in such
investments as the Directors may from time to time think fit. The Directors may also,
without placing the same in reserve, carry forward such funds, which they think prudent

not to divide.

20,5 If several persons are registered as joint holders of any share, any one of them
may cive an effective receipt for any dividend, bonuses or other moneys payable in resnect
of the share.,

20,6 o dividends shall bear interest ajxgainst the Company. Where the dividend to
which a member is entitled includes a fraction of a cent, such fraction shall be disrerarded
in making payment thereof and such payment shall be deemed to be payment in full.

20,7 Any dividend, bonuses or other moneys payable in cash in respect of shares may be
paid by cheque or warrant sent through the post directed to the rejistered addresc of the
holder, or in the case of joint holders, to the registered address of that one of the yoint
holderas who is first named on the resiater, or to such person and to such address as the holde:
or joeint holders may direct in writinr, Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable
to the order of the person to whom it is sent. The mailing of such cheque or warrant shall,
to the extent of the sum represented thereby (plus the amount of any tax required by law to

be deducted) discharge all liability for the dividend, unlesa such cheque or warrant siall

not be paid on presentation or the amount of tax so deducted shall not be paid to lLine
appropriate taxin; authority.

20.8 Nlotwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the Directors may from time
to time capiltalize any undistributed surplus on hand of the Company and may from time to
time issue as fully paild and non-assessable any unissued shares, or any bonds, debentures
or debt obli.;ations of the Company as a dividend representin,; such undistributed surplus
on hand or any vnart thereof.

RECORDS, DOCUMENTS AND REPORTS

~1l,.2 The Company shall keen at 1te records office or at such other place as the COmpany
Act may permit, the documents, coples, registers, minutes, and records which the Company {is

required by the Company Ac¢t to keep at its records office or such other place, 1= the case
may be.

2l.2 The Company shall cause to be kept proper books of account and accountin(g records
in respect of all financial and other transactions of the Company in order properly to
record the financial affairs and condition of the Company and to comply with the Company
Act.

22.3 Unless the Directors determine otherwise, or unleass otherwise determined by an
ordinary resolution, no member of the Company shall be entitled to inspect the accounting
records of the Company.

21,4 The Directors shall from time to time at the expense of the Company cause to be
prepared and laid before the Company in general meeting such financial statements and
reports as are required by the Company Act.

21.5 Every member shall be entitled to be furnished once gratis on demand with a copy of
the latest annual financial atatement of the Coapany and, if @0 required by the Company

ACt, & copy of each such annual financial statement and interim financial statement shall

be mailed to each member,

NOTICES

22.1 A notice, statement or report may be given or delivered by the Company to any
mesber either by delivery to him personally or by sending it by sail to him to his address
as recorded in the register of membders. Where & notice, statement or report is sent by
mail, service or delivery of the notice, statement or report shall be deemed to be effected
by properly addressing, prepaying and mnailing the notice, statement or report and to have
been given on the day, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays excepted, following the date of
salling,. A certificate signed by the Secretary or other officer of the Company or of any
other corporation acting in that behalf for the Company that the letter, envelope or wrapper
~amtadnines tha notice. statement or report was so addressed, prepald and sailed shall bde
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22,2 A notice, statement or report may be given or delivered by the Company to the joint
holders of a share by giving the notice to the joint holder first named in the register of
members in respect of the share.

22,3 A notice, statement or report may be glven or delivered by the Company to the persons
entitled to a share in consequence of the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of a member by

sending it through the mail mrepaid addressed to them by name or by the title of representatives
of the deceased or incapacitated person or trustee of the bankrupt, or by any like description,
at the address (if any) supplied to the Company for the purpose by the persons claimin:t to be

80 entitled, or (until such address has been so supplied) by siving the notice in a manner 1in
whichi the same might have lLeen iiven if the death, bankruptcy or incapacity had not occurred.

22.4 Notice of every general meetinr, or meeting of members holding a class of shares shall
be given in a manner hereinbefore autliorized to every member holding at the time of the issue
of the notice or the date fixed for determining the members entitled to such notice, whichever
is the earlier, shares which confer the right to notice of and to attend and vote at nny such
neetin ;. llo other person except the auditor of the Commany and the Directors of the Conpany
shall Le entitled to receive notices of any such meeting.

23.1 The Directors may fix in advance a date, which shall not Le nore than the naxinun
nunber of days permitted Ly the Company Act precedin:: the date of any neetin: of reniers or
any clases thereof or of the payment of any dividend or of the proposed taldnr of aan. otaer

prorer nction requirin~ the determinntion of members,as the record date for the determination
of such members entitled to notice of, or to attend and vote at, any such meetina and any

ad journment ihereof, or entitled to receive payment of any such dividend or for any oiher
purnose and, in such case, notwithstandin,;; anythin/ elsewhere contained in these ﬁrticles.
only nenberu of record on the date B0 fixed shall be deemed to he members for the nurmposes
aforesaid.

23.2 /here no record date is so fixed for the determination of members as provided in the
precedin- Article the date on which the notice is mailed or on which the resolution declarin;
the dividend is adopted, acz the case may be, shall be the record date for such determination.

SEAL \

24,1 The Directors may provide a seal for the Company and, if they do so, shall provide
for the safe custody of the seal which shall not be affixed to any 1nstrunent excent in the
presence of the following persons, nanmely,

(1) any two Directors, or

(11) one of the Chairman of the Board, the President, the lanaginsg Director, a Direntor and
a Vice-President together with one of the Secretary, the Treasurer, the Secretsry-Treacurer,
an Assistant Secretary, an Assistant Treasurer and an Assistant Secretary-Treasurer, or

(111) if the Company shall have only one member, the President or the Secretary, or
(1v) such person or persons as the Director nay from time to time by resclution anpoint,

and the said Directors, officers, person or persons in whose presence the seal is so affixed to
an instrument shall sign such instrument, For the purpome of certifying under seal true copies
of any document or resolution, the seal may be affixed in the presence of any one of the
foreroing persons,

24,2 To enable the seal of the Company to be affixed to any bonds, debenturee, shares
certificates, or other securities of the Cowpany, whether in definitive or interim form, on whic!
faceinil P8 of any of the signatures of the Directors or officers of the Company are, in
accordance with theCompany Act and/or these Articles, printed or otherwise mechanically
reproduced,there may be delivered to the firm or company eaployed to engrave, lithograph or
print such definitive or interin bonds, debentures, share certificates or other securities one
or more unmounted dies reproducing the Company's seal and the Chairsan of the FPoard, the
Fresident, the Manasing Director or a Vice-President and the Secretary, Treaaurer, Secretary-.
Treasurer, an Assistant Secretary, an Aasistant Treasurer or an Assistant Secretary-Treasurer
may by a document authorize such firm or company to cause the Company's seal to bde affixed to
such definitive or interin bonds, dedbentures, share certificates or other securities by the uae

. of such dies. PBonds, debentures, share certificates or other securities to which the Company 's
seal has deen sc affixed shall for all purposes be deemed to be under and to bear the Company'as
seal lawfully affixed thereto.

24.3 The Company may have for use in any other province, state, territory or country an
official seal wihich shall have on its face the name of the province, state, territory or country
where 1t 18 to Le used and all of the povers conferred by theCompany  pect with respect

thereto may be exercised by the Directors or by a duly authorized agent of the Company,




Number and class of shares
taken by subscriber

Full name, resident address
and occupation of subscriber

One (1) share without
par value

\!
\_X—

George Neville Munro[(\'////
4450 Osler Street,
Vancouver, B.C.

Barrister and Solicitor

One (1) share without
par value

Total shares taken

— et el et et e e

DATED the 24th day of September, 1980.
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Incorporation Number:

BC0217074 Filed and Registered on October 15, 2003
Company Nama:
VAULT MINERALS INC.
Reglstered Office Address: Date of Incorporation,
Amalgamation or Continuation:
430 580 HORNBY ST September 298, 1880
VANCOUVER BC Date of Annusi Report: o
vaCiBe ' September 29, 2003 <3
This Company is a Reporting Company. under the Company Act E’E
t
Directors and Officers <2
Name Residentlal Address & Postal Code -
CHATER, ANDREW M. 8 DENIHAM DRIVE ““;
RICHMOND Hit.t, -

TIORONTO, ON | L4C 61

&

a 1

Dirgctor; Yes Officer. No
HEMSWORTH, H. BARRY 3850 WESTRIDGE AVE
WEST VANCQUVER BC , V7V 2H56
Director: Yes Officer: No
MACKEY, J MICHAEL 2084 WESTERN PARKWAY
VANCOUVER BC |, VBT 1V5
Director; Yes Officer; Yos Title: PRESIDENT
REES, DAVID WILLIAM 12835 GIL.DEN STREET
MADEIRA PARK BC , VON 2HD
Director: Yes Officer: Yas Titie: SECRETARY
SCHMIDT, WILLIAM E. 2820 WEST 20TH AVENUE
‘ YANCOUVER BC , vBL 1H5
Divector: Y&s Officer: No

End o Anniual Report
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Inoorporation Number:

BC0217074 Flled and Registered on October 22, 2002
company Name:

VAULT SYSYEMS INC.
Reglstorad OMfice Addross: Date ot Incorporation,

: Amaigamation ar Cantinuntion:

430 5680 HORNBY ST Septembeor 20, 1080

VANC OUVERBC Date of Annunl Report:

V6C3B6 September 29, 2002

This Company Is @ Reporting Company under the Company Act

Virectors and Officers )
Namo Rosidontlal Addrass & Postel Code

HEMSWOR'TH, H. BARRY 3850 WESTRIDGE AVE »
: WEST VANCOUVER BG , VIV 2115

Dirgctor; Yes Ctficer; No

MACKEY, J MICHAEL 2034 WESTERN PARKWAY
VANCOUVER BC , VBT 1V

Director: Yee Officer; Yos Title: PRESIDENT

REES, DAVID WILLIAM 128356 GILDEN STREET
MADEIRA PARK BC , YON 24D

Director: Yés OHicer, Yes Title: SECRETARY

SCHMIDT, WILLIAM E. 2020 WEST 20TH AVENUE
VANCOUVER BC ,VBL {114
Direotor: Yog Otficer. NO

End of Annual Report
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Location:

7! Ministry of Fi Mailing Address:
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OLUMBIA Property Registries Victoria BC VBW §V3
2nd floor - 840 Blanshard Street

Telephone 250 356-8826 Vicioria 8C
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ours: 8:30 -4:30 - Friday)

R TP

NOTICE OF DIRECTORS
FORM /9
{Sections 113 and 132) Company Act

S

‘NSTRUCTIONS: E CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION NO.

Please type or print clearly in block lettars and ensure that the form Is signed and dated In ink.
Compiets aif areas of the form. The Registry may have to return documents that do not meet this
standard. Attach an additional sheet If more space is required.

In Box A, enter the exact name of the company as shown on the Certificate of incorporation, Amaigamation,
Continuation or Change of Name.

in Box D, E and F, enter the last name, first name, and any initials of the company's directors as indicated.
In Box F, the residential address of a director must be a completa physical address. You may includs
general delivery, post office box, rural route, site or comp. number as part of the addresag;'\.n! Registry
cannot accept this information as a complete address. You must also include a postal codexif 3 W does
not have street names or numbers, provide a description that would readily allow a person to ioSxti) the
director.

If changes occurred on more than one date, you must compiete a separate Notica of Directors form for each
date.

An indlividual who has ceased being a director cannat sign this form,

Flllng fee: $20.00. Submit this form with a cheque or money order payable (o the Minister of Finances, or
provide the Registry authorization to dedit the fee from a BC Online Deposit Account.

Additional information and forms are available on the intemet at www.fin.gov.bc.ca/registries.

217074

OFFICE USE ONLY - DO NOT WRITE IN THIS AREA

SENT TE_ REGISTRAR
Date ”—J{)k/% (’fl(-)}

Initlals .. S’C

B

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act
(FIPPA): The personal information requestad on this form is
ymade available to the public under the authority of the

n FULL NAME OF COMPANY ICompany Act. Questions about how the FIPPA applies to this
personal information car; be direc:gto r:eRAdn;;:sua?vzes o
Corporats and Personai i al
VAULT SYSTEMS INC. QQA‘Z?« PO Box 9431 Stn Prov Gopv: Vtct;ng‘a BC VaW aVv3
& DATE OF CHANGE
YYY!  mm/ 0o
2003 05 . 16
m Full names of new directors appointed: ?3
LAST NAME FIRST NAME & INITIALS (IF ANY) C“s
CHATER . : ANDREW M. =
) Cad
s
[ Fuilnames of persons who have ceased to be direciors:
LAST NAME FIRST NAME & INITIALS (IF ANY)
N/A ' N/A
B Full names and addressas of all the officers of the company as at the date of changs listed above:
LAST NAME FIRST NAME & INITIALS (IF ANY) RESOIENTIAL ADDRESS (INCLUDE POSTAL / ZIP COO8)
HEMSWORTH ' H. Barry 3850 Westridge Avenue, West Vancouver, BC V7V 3HS
REES, David William 12835 Gilden Street, Madeira Park, BC VON 2HO
MACKEY J. Michael 2084 Western Parkway, Vancouver, BC V6T 1V$
SCHMIDT William E. 2920 West 20th Avenue, Vancouver, BC V6L I HS
CHATER . Andrew M. 6 Denham Drive, Richmond Hill, Toronto, Ontario L4C 6J1
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B. Certificate of Incorporation Number
217074

Office Use Only - Do Not Write in this Area

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act The personal information requested
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Corporate and Personal Property Registries at (250) 356-0944, PO Box 9431 Stn Prov Gowt,
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A. FULL NAME OF COMPANY

VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
C. DATE OF CHANGE
Y M D
2000 Jul 10
D. Full names of new directors appointed: )
LAST NAME FIRST NAME AND INITIALS (if any)
MACKEY J. Michael

E. Full names of persons who have ceased to be directors:

LAST NAME FIRST NAME AND INITIALS (if any)
ROCHFORT Terrence J.
DENTON John N.

F. Full names and addresses of all the directors of the company as at the date of change listed above:

LAST NAME FIRST NAME & INITIAL (if any) RESIDENTIAL ADDRESS (include postal/zip code)
HEMSWORTH H. Barry 3850 Westridge Avenue, West Vancouver, BC V7V JH5
REES Dayid William 12835 Gilden Street, Madeira Park, BC VON 2HO
MACKEY J. Michael 2084 Western Parkway, Vancouver, BC V6T I VS$
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Signature of a current Director, Officer or Company Solicitor
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General Meeting held May 16, 2003;




VAULT SYSTEMS INC. RN
430 — 580 Hornby Street ' 40
Vancouver, British Columbia
Telephone: (604) 687-4456
Fax: (604) 687-0586

NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING OF MEMBERS

TAKE NOTICE that an Annual and Special General Meeting (the "Meeting") of the Members of
VAULT SYSTEMS INC. (the "Company") will be held at 1600 - 609 Granville Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia V7Y 1C3 on May 16, 2003 at 10:00 a.m., Vancouver time, for the following purposes:

.

To receive and consider the Report of the Directors and to receive and consider the Audited
Financial Statements for the period ended December 31, 2002 together with the Auditor's Report
thereon.

To fix the number of directors for the ensuing year at five (5).
To elect Directors for the ensuing year,

To appoint Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration to
be paid to the Auditors.

To consider, and if thought fit, pass, with or without amendment a special resolution
consolidating the common shares of the Company on the basis of six (6) common shares before
consolidation becoming one (1) common share after consolidation and thereafter increasing the
number of authorized common shares of the Company to 100,000,000 common shares without
par value, as more particularly described under the heading “"Particulars of Other Matters To Be
Acted Upon" in the accompanying Information Circular.

To ratify, confirm and approve the agreement dated March 13, 2003 made between the Company
and Goldaur Resources Inc. ("'Goldaur"), a privately held Ontario company, whereby the
Company will acquire Goldaur, as more particularly described under the heading "Particulars of
Other Matters To Be Acted Upon" in the accompanying Information Circular.

To approve a special resolution to change the name of the Company to "Vault Minerals Inc." as
more particularly described under the heading "Particulars of Other Matters To Be Acted Upon"
in the accompanying Information Circular.

To approve the amendment of the Company's existing stock option plan and to set the maximum
number of common shares for issuance pursuant to options thereunder at 20% of the issued and
outstanding common shares of the Company upon completion of the proposed consolidation,
acquisition and related transactions, as more particularly described under the heading "Particulars
of Other Matters To Be Acted Upon" in the accompanying Information Circular.

To transact such other business as may properly come before the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

If you are unable to attend the Meeting in person, you may still vote on the above items by submitting a
Proxy. A form of Proxy has been provided in this package, together with an Information Circular. Please
refer to the Notes to the Proxy for instructions on completing the Proxy. To be effective, the Proxy must
be completed, dated, signed and returned within the time limits and in accordance with the instructions set
out in the Notes.




As stated in the Notes to the Proxy, the enclosed Proxy is solicited by or on behalf of management of the
Company, and the persons named as proxyholder are nominees selected by management. You may
appoint another to represent you at the Meeting by striking out the names of the persons in the enclosed
Proxy and inserting, in the space provided, the name of the person you wish to represent you at the

Meeting.
DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia this 17th day of April, 2003.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

"J. Michael Mackey"

J. MICHAEL MACKEY
President and Director




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 — 580 Homby Street
Vancouver, British Columbia
Telephone: (604) 687-4456
Fax: (604) 687-0586

INFORMATION CIRCULAR
(containing information as at April 16, 2003)

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This Information Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies (the “Proxies”)
by the Management of VAULT SYSTEMS INC. (the "Company") for use at the Annual and Special
General Meeting (the "Meeting') to be held on May 16, 2003, at the time and place and for the
purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Meeting. While the solicitation will be made primarily
by mail, Proxies may be solicited personally or by telephone or facsimile by the regular employees of the Company
at nominal cost. The cost of solicitation will be borne by the Company.

No person is authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this

Information Circular and, if given or made, such information or representations should not be relied upon as
having been authorized.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

The persens named in the enclosed form of Proxy are nominees selected by the Company's
Management. A shareholder has the right to appoint a person to represent and vote for the
shareholder at the Meeting other than the persons designated in the enclosed form of Proxy. To
exercise this right, a shareholder shall strike out the names of the persons named in the enclosed
form of Proxy and insert the name of the shareholder’s nominee in the blank space provided, or
complete another proper instrument of Proxy. Such other person need not be a shareholder of the
Company.

A Proxy must be signed by the shareholder or by the shareholder’s attorney authorized in writing, or, if the
shareholder is a corporation, it must either be under its common seal or signed by a duly authorized officer.
Evidence of the authority of such attorney or officer, as applicable, must accompany the Proxy.

The completed Proxy must be deposited with the Company's registrar and transfer agent, Computershare Trust
Company of Canada, located at 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3B9 (the “Transfer Agent™),
or with the Company's registered office, located at Suite 1600, 609 Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia,
V7Y 1C3 (the “Registered Office™), at least 48 hours before the time of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof at
which the Proxy is to be used, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.

VOTING AND EXERCISE OF DISCRETION OF PROXIES

The securities represented by a Proxy will be voted or withheld from voting in accordance with the instructions of
the shareholder on any ballot that may be called for, and if the shareholder specifies a choice with respect to any
matter to be acted upon the securities will be voted accordingly.




2.

In the absence of any instructions on how the securities represented by the Proxy are to be voted,
the proxyholder will have discretionary authority to vote on such unspecified matters. The persons
named in the enclosed form of Proxy intend to vote in favour of the motions proposed to be made at
the Meeting as stated in the Notice and in this Information Circular.

The form of Proxy enclosed confers discretionary authority with respect to amendments or variations to the
matters disclosed in the Notice and in this Information Circular, or any other matters which may properly be
brought before the Meeting. At the time of the printing of this Information Circular, the Company's Management
is not aware of any such amendments, variations or other matters to be presented for action at the Meeting. If,
however, any amendments, variations or other matters which are not now known to the Company's Management
should properly come before the Meeting, the Proxies hereby solicited will be exercised on such matters in
accordance with the best judgment of the proxyholder on such matters.

REVOCATION OF PROXIES

A shareholder may revoke a proxy on any matter on which it has not been previously exercised:

(a) by depositing an instrument in writing executed by him or by his attorney authorized in writing,
or, if the shareholder is a corporation, it must either be under its common seal or signed by a
duly authorized officer, with evidence of the authority of such attorney or officer, as applicable,
accompanying the Proxy (i) with the Transfer Agent or the Registered Office at any time up to
and including the last business day before the day of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof at
which the Proxy is to be used, or (ii) with the Chairman of the Meeting at the scheduled
commencement of the Meeting or adjournment thereof at which time the Proxy is to be used, or

() in any other manner permitted by law.

Revocation of Proxies may also be done electronically. Shareholders who wish to revoke Proxies electronically
are urged to contact the Transfer Agent to determine the availability, and instructions for the use, of this option.

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

Except as otherwise disclosed herein, none of:

(2) the directors or senior officers of the Company at any time since the beginning of the last
financial year of the Company;

(b) the proposed nominees for election as a director of the Company; or

(c) any associate or affiliate of the foregoing persons,

has any material interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of securities or otherwise, in any
matters to be acted upon at the Meeting other than the election of directors or the appointment of Auditors.

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS

The Company's authorized capital consists of 100,000,000 common shares without par value. On April 16, 2003
(the “Record Date”), there were 8,397,371 common shares issued and outstanding.

Unless otherwise permitted by law, only those shareholders of record holding common shares on the Record Date
shall be entitled to vote at the forthcoming Meeting or any adjournment thereof in person or by Proxy. On any
poll, each shareholder of record holding common shares on the Record Date is entitled to one vote for each
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common share registered in his or her name on the list of sharcholders as at the Record Date, which Jist will be
available for inspection during normal business hours at the Transfer Agent and at the Meeting.

To the knowledge of the directors and senior officers of the Company, no persons beneficially own, directly or

indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, voting securities carrying more than 10% of the voting rights
attached to any class of voting securities of the Company on the Record Date.

ADDITIONAL COPIES OF MEETING MATERIALS

Additional copies of the materials for the Meeting, comprising the Notice of Meeting, this Information Circular,
the Company's Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2002, together with the
Auditor's Report thereon, the Company's Report to the Shareholders, and the form of Proxy, will be available
from the Transfer Agent and the Registered Office during normal business hours.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2002, together with the
Auditor's Report thereon, and the Company's Report to the Shareholders, are being mailed to the shareholders of
record together with this Notice of Meeting and Information Circular, and will be presented to the shareholders at
the Meeting. ‘

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The shareholders of the Company will be asked to pass an ordinary resolution to set the number of directors of
the Company for the ensuing year at five (5). The persons named in the enclosed Proxy intend to vote for a
Board of Directors comprised of five (5) persons.

The persons identified below and named as candidates for directorship in the enclosed Proxy are nominees of
management. The persons named in the enclosed Proxy intend to vote for the election of these management
nominees. The names of further nominees for director may come from the floor at the Meeting. The Company
has received no nominations for directors in response to the Advance Notice of Meeting published in accordance
with the Company Act (British Columbia) (the "Company Act").

Each director elected will hold office unti! the next Annual General Meeting unless his office is earlier vacated in
accordance with the Company Act and the Articles of the Company.

INFORMATION CONCERNING NOMINEES SUBMITTED BY MANAGEMENT

No. of Voting

Securities
Present Principal Date First Beneficially

Name, Jurisdiction of Ordinary Occupation or Employment Elected or Owned or

Residence'” and Positions Held with the and During the Past Five Appointed as a Controlled as at
Company Years" Director Record Date")

J.MICHAEL MACKEY Management Consultant. 2000 Nil
Vancouver, B.C. Since July 10, 2000,
Canada President of Vault Systems

Director and President Inc.




No. of Voting
Securities
Present Principal Date First Beneficially
Name, Jurisdiction of Ordinary Occupation or Employment Elected or Owned or
Residence'” and Positions Held with the and During the Past Five Appointed as a Controlled as at
Company Years™ Director Record Date"
H. BARRY HEMSWORTH Barrister and Solicitor; 2000 83,273
Vancouver, B.C. Director of numerous public
Canada companies
Director
DAVID WILLIAM REES Businessman; 1980 80,187
Madeira Park, B.C. Secretary of Vault Systems
Canada Inc.
Director & Secretary
WILLIAM E. SCHMIDT Barrister and Solicitor 2002 20,000
Vancouver, B.C.
Canada
Director
ANDREW M. CHATER, B.Sc., Ph.D. Professional Geologist; Nominee Nil
Toronto, Ontario President of Teddy Bear
Canada Valley Mines, Limited
Director Nominee

(1) The information as to jurisdiction of ordinary residence, principal occupation or employment during the past five
years and the number of voting securities beneficially owned or controlled as at the Record Date for each of the
nominees has been furnished by the respective nominees themselves. Five year disclosure of principal occupation
or employment is not required if the proposed director was elected to his present term of office by a vote of
securityholders at a meeting, the notice of which was accompanied by an information circular.

The Company does not, at present, have an Executive Commiittee.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained under this heading is provided in compliance with the requirements of Form 51-904F
of the Rules promulgated pursuant to the Securities Act (British Columbia) and under equivalent provisions of the
Securities Acts of all applicable jurisdictions.

During the financial year ended December 31, 2002, the Company had one (1) "Named Executive Officer",
namely its President, Mr, J. Michael Mackey.

Definitions
For the purpose of this Information Circular:

"CEO'" of the Company means an individual who served as chief executive officer of the Company or acted ina
similar capacity during the most recently completed financial year;

"equity security" means securities of the Company that carry a residual right to participate in earnings of the
Company and, upon liquidation or winding up of the Company, its assets;

"Executive Officer" of the Company for the financial year, means an individual who at any time during the
year was,




(@

(®)

(c)
(d)

(©)

the chair of the Company, if that individual performed the functions of the office on a full-time
basis,

a vice-chair of the Company, if that individual performed the functions of the office on a full-
time basis,

the president of the Company,

a vice-president of the Company in charge of a principal business unit, division or function such
as sales, finance or production, or

an officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other person who performed a
policy-making function in respect of the Company;

"Named Executive Officers' means,

(a)
(b)

(©)

each CEO, despite the amount of compensation of that individual;

each of the Company's four most highly compensated executive officers, other than the CEO,
who were serving as executive officers at the end of the most recently completed financial year,
provided that disclosure is not required under Form 51-904F for an executive officer whose total
salary and bonus, as determined does not exceed $100,000; and

any additional individual for whom disclosure would have been provided under (b) above, but for
the fact that the individual was not serving as an executive officer of the Company at the end of
the most recently completed financial year end.

"Long Term Incentive Plan' ("LTIP's") means any plan providing compensation intended to serve as an
incentive for performance to occur over a period longer than one financial year whether the performance is
measured by reference to financial performance of the Company or an affiliate, or the price of the Company's
shares or any other measure, but does not include option or stock appreciation rights plans or plans for
compensation through restricted shares or units.

"Stock Appreciation Right" ("SAR") means a right, granted by an issuer or any of its subsidiaries as
compensation for services rendered or otherwise in connection with office or employment, to receive a payment
of cash or an issue or transfer of securities based wholly or in part on changes in the trading price of the
Company's shares.

Summary Compensation Table for Named Executive Officer

Annual Compensation Long Term Compensation
Awards Payouts
Restricted
Other Securities Shares or All
Annual Under Restricted Other
Name and Compen- Options Share LTIP Compen-
Principal Salary | Bonus sation Granted Units Payouts sation
Position Yeart) ) ) $) #) ) (%) )]
J. Michael 2002 Nil Nil Nil Nil N/A N/A N/A
Mackey 2001 $67,500 Nil Nil Nil N/A N/A N/A
. 2000 Nil Nil Nil Nil N/A N/A N/A
President
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(1) Based on the Company's financial year ending December 31.

Long Term Incentive Plans

No long term incentive plan awards were made by the Company or any subsidiary thereof to the Named Executive
Officer during the most recently completed financial year.

Option/SAR Grants During the Most Recently Completed Financial Year

No stock options to acquire securities of the Company or any subsidiary thereof, or any stock appreciation rights,
were granted to the Named Executive Officer during the most recently completed financial year.

Aggregated Option/SAR Exercises During the Most Recent Completed Financial Year and
Financial Year End Option/SAR Values

No options were exercised and there were no options outstanding during the most recently completed financial
year end.

Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Contracts

During the most recently completed financial year, there were no employment contracts between the Company or
its subsidiaries and the Company's Executive Officers.

Compensation of Directors

Except as otherwise disclosed herein, there were no standard arrangements, or other arrangements in addition to
or in lieu of standard arrangements, under which the directors were compensated by the Company or any
subsidiary thereof for services in their capacity as a director (including any additional amounts payable for
committee participation or special assignments), or for services as consultants or experts, during the most
recently completed financial year, other than the granting of stock options.

There are no arrangements for compensation with respect to the termination of the directors in the event of a
change of control of the Company.

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

Other than "routine indebtedness"” as defined in BC Form 54-901F of the British Columbia Securities Commission,
none of:

(a) the directors, executive officer or senior officers of the Company at any time since the beginning
of the last financial year of the Company;

(b) proposed nominees for election as a director of the Company; or

©) any associates or affiliates of the foregoing persons,

is or at any time since the beginning of the most recently completed financial year has been indebted to the
Company or any subsidiary of the Company or is at any time since the beginning of the most recently completed
financial year has been a person whose indebtedness is or has been the subject of a guarantee support agreement,
letter of credit or other similar agreement or understanding provided by the Company or any subsidiary of the
Company.
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INTEREST OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed herein or previously disclosed in an information circular, none of:

(a) the directors or senior officers of the Company;
(b) no proposed nominee for election as a director of the Company;
() any person holding 10% or more of the voting securities of any class of voting securities of the

Company; or
(d) any associate or affiliate of the foregoing persons,
has any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction since the beginning of the last financial year of the

Company or any proposed transaction which has materially affected or will materially affect the Company or any
subsidiary of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Shareholders will be asked to pass an ordinary resolution to re-appoint Davidson & Company, Chartered
Accountants, located at the 12th Floor, 609 Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, as auditors for the
Company, to hold office until the next Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders at a remuneration to be fixed
by the Board of Directors. Management of the Company recommends the re-appointment of Davidson &
Company as auditors for the Company. The persons named in the enclosed Proxy intend to vote for such
reappointment.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Management functions of the Company and any subsidiary thereof are not, to any substantial degree, performed
by a person or persons other than the directors or senior officers of the Company or subsidiary thereof.

PARTICULARS OF OTHER MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

Reactivation

The Company was declared inactive by the TSX Venture Exchange (the "TSE-VE" or the "Exchange") on
November 22, 2001. Since that time the Company has been investigating various acquisitions for resource
properties which would form the basis for its reactivation. The Company is now in a position to proceed with its
reactivation and has entered into an agreement which would result in it acquiring various mineral interests in
Ontario, as described in more detail below. The following describes the reactivation (the "Reactivation”) that the
Company is proposing to undertake.

Overview of Reactivation

On March 13, 2003, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire Goldaur Resources Inc. ("Goldaur"), a
privately held Ontario company (the "Acquisition"). The proposed Acquisition is by way of statutory
amalgamation under which a newly formed Ontario incorporated subsidiary of the Company would amalgamate
with Goldaur. The resulting company will be a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Under the
amalgamation Goldaur shareholders will receive an aggregate 0f 2,500,000 common shares (post-consolidation) of
the Company and warrants entitling them to acquire an additional 2,500,000 common shares of the Company at a
price equal to the lesser of $1.50 per share and 300% of the price per share at which the Company completes its
first equity financing following the private placement of convertible notes referred to below. Goldaur shareholders
will also receive contingent rights to receive an additional 500,000 shares if the Company has not raised
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$1,000,000 of new equity financing by December 31, 2003 and a further 500,000 shares if the requisite
$1,000,000 of new equity financing has not been raised by June 30, 2004. The Company will pay a finder's fee
of 100,000 common shares on completion of the Acquisition.

In addition to the Acquisition described above, the Company will also undertake the following additional steps,
subject to certain regulatory approvals:

1. As part of the reactivation, the Company will be completing a consolidation of its outstanding share
capital on a six (6) old shares for one (1) new share basis. Accordingly, the Company will seek
shareholder approval for a consolidation of its share capital on a 6:1 basis. This will consolidate all of the
8,397,371 currently issued shares into 1,399,561 post-consolidation shares. The Company will also seek
shareholder approval to increase its post-consolidation authorized share capital to 100,000,000 common
shares.

2. The Company will undertake a private placement of up to 5,200 one (1) year 8% Convertible Notes at a
price of $100.00 per Note for aggregate principal proceeds of $520,000. The Notes will be convertible
into units on the basis of one unit for every $0.20 of principal outstanding. Each unit will consist of a
common share (post-consoclidated) and a warrant entitling the holder to purchase an additional common
share (post-consolidation) for two years at $0.30 per share. The Convertible Notes will be automatically
converted upon completion of the Acquisition.

3. The Company will change its name to "Vault Minerals Inc." or such other name as the Registrar of
Companies and the TSX-VE may approve, to more accurately reflect the business of the Company.

Shareholder and Regulatory Approval

The Reactivation is subject to TSX-VE approval which is in process of being sought. There is no assurance that
such approval will be obtained.

The TSX-VE also requires that certain elements of the Reactivation be approved by the shareholders.

Shareholders should be aware that all of these transactions are interdependent and the Company
may choose not to complete the Reactivation should some of these transactions not be approved by
the shareholders. Therefore, careful consideration should be given to these matters before voting.

Acgquisition of Goldaur Resources Ltd.

Goldaur is a private corporation duly incorporated and organized on January 16, 1997, and subsisting under the
laws of the Province of Ontario.

Goldaur is the owner of the Attawapiskat Property consisting of 26 contiguous unpatented mining claims (6,464
hectares) comprising 404 units that are situated in the Attawapiskat area of northeastern Ontario. Goldaur also
owns 27 contiguous claim units and has rights to acquire 33 more contiguous claim units, subject to certain
royalties and future cash payments, that are collectively referred to as the Lebel Project, and are situated in the
Kirkland Lake area, Ontario.

Following completion of the proposed Share Consolidation, Acquisition and Private Placement referred to under
the heading Overview of Corporate Reactivation”, the Company will have 6,599,561 shares outstanding
(12,854,561 fully diluted). As such, Goldaur shareholders will hold 37.9% of the Company's outstanding
common shares.

Shareholder Approval of Acquisition
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The TSX-VE has required that the Company seek the approval of its shareholders by way of ordinary resolution,
to the Acquisition. The shareholders of the Company will therefore be requested at the Meeting to approve the
Acquisition by passing the following ordinary resolution, which requires an affirmative vote of a majority of the
votes cast by shareholders at the Meeting;:

"WHEREAS the Company is proposing to reactivate by undertaking a variety of transactions and has, in this
regard, entered into an agreement (the "Acquisition Agreement”) with Goldaur Resources Inc.;

AND WHEREAS the Acquisition Agreement provides that the Goldaur shareholders will receive an aggregate of
2.5 million common shares (post-consolidation) of the Company, 2.5 million warrants, and contingent rights to
receive an additional 500,000 (post-consolidation) shares if the Company has not raised $1,000,000 of new equity
financing by December 31, 2003 and a further 500,000 (post-consolidation) shares if the requisite $1,000,000 of
new equity financing has not been raised by June 30, 2004;

AND WHEREAS the Company wishes to secure such general and specific approvals for the Acquisition
Agreement as required by the TSX-VE;

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION, THAT:

1. the entering into and the execution of the Acquisition Agreement by a director on behalf of the Company,
be ratified and confirmed; .

2. the issuance of shares, warrants and rights of the Company as provided for in the Acquisition Agreement
be approved;

3. the Company be aithorized to abandon or terminate all or any part of the acquisition of Goldaur if the
Board of the Company deems it appropriate and in the best interests ‘of the Company to do so; and

4, any one or more of the directors and officers of the Company be authorized and directed to perform all
such acts, deeds and things and execute, under the seal of the Company or otherwise, all such
documents and other writings as may be required to give effect to the true intent of this resolution."

Director Discretion

The directors of the Company reserve the right to abandon the transactions contemplated in the above resolution
should they deem it appropriate and in the best interest of the Company to do so.

Share Consolidation and Increase in Authorized Capital

Management proposes to present to the shareholders at the meeting, a special resolution to consolidate its share
capital on the basis of one (1) new common share without par value for every six (6) existing common shares
without par value and thereafter to increase the Company's authorized share capital back up to 100,000,000
common shares.

The completion of the share consolidation and increase in authorized capital is subject to TSX-VE approval.
Shareholder Approval of the Share Consolidation and Increase in Authorized Capital

The shareholders of the Company will be requested at the Meeting to approve the share consolidation and increase
in authorized capital by passing the following special resolution, which requires an affirmative vote of not less than

three-quarters of the votes cast by shareholders at the Meeting:

"WHEREAS the Company would like to consolidate its share capital on the basis of one (1) new common share
without par value for every six (6) existing common shares without par value;
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AND WHEREAS the Company would like to thereafter increase the Company's authorized share capital to
100,000,000 common shares;

AND WHEREAS the directors and officers wish to secure such general and specific approvals for the share
consolidation and increase in authorized capital as may be required by the Company Act (British Columbia) and the
TSX-VE;

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION, THAT:
1. all of the 100,000,000 common shares without par value, both issued and unissued, be consolidated into

16,666,666 common shares without par value, every six (6) of such shares before consolidation being
consolidated into one share;

2. the authorized capital be increased from 16,666,666 common shares without par value t0100,000,000
common shares without par value and that paragraph 2 of the Memorandum of the Company be altered
accordingly;

3. the Company be authorized to abandon or terminate all or any part of the share consolidation and increase

in authorized capital if the Board of the Company deems it appropriate and in the best interests of the
Company to do so; and

4, any one or more of the directors and officers of the Company be authorized and directed to perform all
such acts, deeds and things and execute, under the seal of the Company or otherwise, all such
documents and other writings as may be required to give effect to the true intent of this resolution.”

Director Discretion

The directors of the Company reserve the right to abandon the transactions contemplated in the "Share
Consolidation and Increase in Authorized Capital" resolution should they deem it appropriate and in the best
interest of the Company to do so.

Name Change

Management of the Company have determined that, assuming the Acquisition referred to above is approved by the
shareholders, the name of the Company be changed to more accurately reflect the business of the Company.

Shareholder Approval of the Name Change

If the shareholders approve the Acquisition described above, Management of the Company will wish to change the
name of the Company to "Vault Minerals Inc." to reflect its new business following completion of the Acquisition.
If the shareholders do not approve the Acquisition and if the Company does not receive all regulatory approvals
as are necessary for completion of the Acquisition, the change of name shall not proceed. Shareholders will
therefore be asked to approve the name change by passing the following special resolution, which requires an
affirmative vote of not less than three-quarters of the votes cast by shareholders at the Meeting:

"WHEREAS the Company is undergoing a reorganization which will include a change in the name of the
Company;

AND WHEREAS the directors and officers wish to secure such general and specific approvals for the name
change as may be required by the TSX-VE or pursuant to the Company Act;
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IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION, THAT

1. the name of the Company be changed from Vault Systems Inc. to Vault Minerals Inc. or such other
name as the Registrar of Companies and the TSX-VE may approve AND THAT paragraph 1 of the
Memorandum of the Company be altered to read as follows:

"1 The name of the Company is Vault Minerals Inc."

2. the Company be authorized to abandon or terminate all or any part of the name change if the Board of the
Company deems it appropriate and in the best interests of the Company to do so; and

3. any one of more of the directors and officers of the Company be authorized and directed to perform all
such acts, deeds and things and execute, under the seal of the Company or otherwise, all such
documents and other writings as may be required to give effect to the true intent of this resolution."

Director Discretion

The directors of the Company reserve the right to abandon the transactions contemplated in the "Name Change"
resolution should they deem it appropriate and in the best interest of the Company to do so.

Amendment of Stock Option Plan

The Company currently has a stock option plan (the "Option Plan") pursuant to which its directors, officers,
employees and consultants may be granted options to acquire common shares of the Company as an incentive
mechanism to foster their interest in the success of the Company and to encourage their proprietary ownership of
the Company.

Pursuant to the policies of the TSX Venture Exchange, the Company is seeking shareholder approval to amend the
Option Plan to accommodate recent changes to the Exchange's policy governing stock options, as well as to reset
the number of common shares of the Company reserved for issuance pursuant to the Option Plan to be 20% of
the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company upon completion of its proposed reactivation as
described elsewhere in this Information Circular, as determined on the date of the Meeting. Some of the key
provisions of the proposed Stock Option Plan are as follows:

(a) the Option Plan will reserve for issuance a fixed maximum number of common shares equal to
20% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company as determined on the date of
the Meeting, with mandatory vesting to be determined at the time of option grant;

(b) no more than 5% of the common shares outstanding at the time of grant may be reserved for
issuance to any one individual in any 12 month period;

(c) no more than 2% of the common shares outstanding at the time of grant may be reserved for
issuance to any Consultant (as defined by the Exchange) in any 12 month period;

(d) no more than an aggregate of 2% of the common shares outstanding at the time of grant may be
reserved for issuance to any Employee (as defined by the Exchange) conducting Investor
Relations Activities (as defined by the Exchange) in any 12 month period,;

(e) without disinterested shareholder approval, the number of common shares that may be reserved
for issuance to the insiders of the Company (i) at the time of grant, or (ii) within a one year
period, mat not exceed 10% of the outstanding Common Shares calculated at the time of the
grant;
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(h)
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the minimum exercise price of a stock option cannot be less than the applicable Market Price (as
determined by the Exchange) of the common shares less any discount permitted pursuant to the
Policies of the Exchange;

disinterested shareholder approval must be obtained to reduce the exercise price of an option
granted to a person who was an insider at the time of grant or is an insider at the time of
amendment;

options may have a maximum exercise period of five years, unless the Company is listed on Tier
1 of the Exchange in which event options may have a maximum exercise period of ten years;

options are non-assignable and non-transferable; and

the Option Plan contains provisions for adjustment in the number of common shares or other
property issuable on exercise of a stock option in the event of a share consolidation, split,
reclassification or other capital reorganization, or a stock dividend, amalgamation, merger or
other relevant corporate transaction, or any other relevant change in or event affecting the
common shares.

Shareholders will be asked to approve the following ordinary resolution:

"IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT subject to completion of the Company's proposed reactivation plan as
described in this Information Circular, the Company's Stock Option Plan be amended to reserve for issuance an
aggregate of 1,319,912 post-consolidation common shares for issuance pursuant to the Plan."

In order to be passed, a majority of the votes cast at the Meeting in person or by proxy must be voted in favour of
the resolution. The persons named in the enclosed Proxy intend to vote for such resolution.

Other Matters to be Acted Upon

At the time of the printing of this Information Circular, the Company's Management is not aware of any other
matters to be presented for action at the Meeting other than those referred to in the Notice. If, however, any
other matters properly come before the Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed form of
Proxy to vote on same in accordance with the best judgment on such matters.
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CERTIFICATE

The foregoing contains no untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit to state a material fact that is
required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances in
which it was made.

DATED this 17th day of April, 2003.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

“J. Michael Mackey"

J. MICHAEL MACKEY
President and Director

"David William Rees"

DAVID WILLIAM REES
Secretary and Director
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B 2.

Notice, Information Circular and Proxy for Annual General Meeting held June 26,
2002;




VAULT SYSTEMS INC. R

NOTICE OF ANNUAL & EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

TAKE NOTICE that the Annual and Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of Vault Systems Inc. (hereinafter
called the “Company™) will be held at 430 - 580 Hornby Street, in the City of Vancouver, Province of British
Columbia, on Wednesday, the 26th day of June, A.D. 2002 at the hour of 10:30 o’clock in the forenoon
(Vancouver time), for the following purposes:

(a) To receive the Annual Report of the directors to the shareholders, the Financial
Statements of the Company and the Auditors Report thereon;

() To set the number of directors at four (4);
(©) To elect directors (either by single resolution or separate votes as the Meeting decides);
(d) To appoint auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the directors to fix the

remuneration to be paid to the auditors;

(e) As a special resolution, (1) to ratify and approve the exercise of any stock options granted
in the previous year or as granted hereunder, (2) to authorize and approve the granting and
exercise of stock options in the forthcoming year, subject to the approval by the TSX
Venture Exchange, and (3) to authorize the directors to renegotiate or cancel any existing
stock options;

€3] To approve, as a special resolution, the stock option plan dated May 15, 2002, a copy
of which is attached;
(8) To ratify, confirm and approve all acts, deeds and things done by and the proceedings of
the directors and officers of the Company on its behalf since the last Annual General
Meeting of the Company;
AND

To transact such further and other business as may properly come before the Meeting or
any adjournments thereof.

Accompanying this Notice of Meeting is a Financial Statement, Information Circular and Proxy Instrument.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the Meeting in person are requested to complete and to date and
sign the enclosed form of Instrument of Proxy. If a shareholder desires to be represented at the
Meeting by Proxy, the Instrument of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at Computershare Trust
Company of Canada, 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B9 not less than 48 hours before the time
for the holding of the Meeting.

The directors of the Company have previously fixed and advertise May 22, 2002 as the record date for the
~ determination of shareholders entitled to receive this Notice.

DATED at the City of Vancouver, in the Province of British Columbia, this 22nd day of May, A.D. 2002.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

INFORMATION CIRCULAR

ISSUED IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOLICITATION OF PROXIES FOR THE ANNUAL AND
EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON THE 26TH DAY OF JUNE, 2002.

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This Information Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation by the management of Vault
Systems Inc. (hereinafter called the “Company”) of proxies to be used at the time and place and for the
purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Meeting. It is expected that this solicitation will be
primarily by mail and possibly supplemented by telephone or other personal contact to be made without
special compensation by regular officers and employees of the Company. The cost of solicitation by
management will be borne by the Company.

REVOCABILITY OF PROXY

A person giving a proxy has the power to revoke it. In addition to revocation in any other manner
permitted by law, a proxy may be revoked by instrument in writing executed by the shareholders or by his
attorney authorized in writing or if the shareholder is a corporation, under its corporate seal or by an officer
or attorney thereat duly authorized, deposited at the business office of the Company at430 - 580 Hornby
Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B6 at any time up to and including the lastbusiness day preceding the date
of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof and upon either of such deposits the proxy is revoked.

YOTING SHARES REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY

Ifthe instructions of the shareholders given in the accompanying form of proxy are certain and the proxy
is duly completed and delivered and has not been revoked the shares represented thereby will be voted
onany poll except where the instruction of the shareholder is to withhold the vote. Where the shareholder
has specified in the proxy a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, the shares will be voted
onany poll inaccordance with the specifications so made. WHENEVER A SHAREHOLDER HASNOT
SPECIFIED IN RESPECT OF A MATTER IDENTIFIED IN THE FORM OF PROXY A CHOICE
ASTO HOW THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY ARE TO BE VOTED, THE SHARES
REPRESENTED BY THE PROXY WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF ANY SUCH MATTER, OR
FOR THE ELECTION OF THE DIRECTORS OR THE APPOINTMENT OF THE AUDITORS
NOMINATED BY THE MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY, AS THE CASE MAY BE.

The accompanying form of proxy when duly completed and delivered and not revoked confers authority
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upon the persons named as proxyholder therein to vote according to their discretion on any amendment
or variations to any of the matters identified in the accompanying Notice of Meeting and to vote according
to their discretion on any other matters which may properly come before the Meeting. At the time of
printing this Information Circular, the management of the Company does not know of any amendments or
variations to any of the matters identified in the accompanying Notice of Meeting or of any additional
matters to be presented for action at the Meeting.

INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

No director or senior officer, past, present or nominated, or any associate of such persons or any person
on behalf of whom this solicitation is made has any interest, direct or indirect, in any matter to be acted
upon at the Meeting, involved in the normal business of the Meeting, or the general affairs of the company,
save and except the special resolutions in respect to stock options as described herein.

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

None of the directors or senior officers of the Company have had any material interest, direct or indirect
in any material transaction of the Company since the commencement of the Company’s last completed
financial year or in any proposed transaction which in either such case, has materially affected or will
materially affect control of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, save and except:

D the incentive stock options described below;

(2)  aprivate placement completed on January 8, 2002 whereby each of H. Barry Hemsworth, David
Rees and the holding company of J. Michael Mackey’s wife purchased 200,000 shares at $0.05
per share and received a share purchase warrant to purchase an additional 200,000 shares at a
price of $0.10 per share up to January 8, 2003;

(3)  aprivate placement completed on January 21, 2002 whereby H. Barry Hemsworth purchased
200,000 shares, David Rees purchased 400,000 shares and the holding company of J. Michael
Mackey’s wife purchased 300,000 shares at $0.10 per share and received a share purchase
warrant to purchase the same number of shares at a price of $0.10 per share up to January 21,
2004.

VOTING SHARES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,000 shares without par value of which 8,397,371 shares are
issued and outstanding. There is one class of shares authorized only. Each share carries the right to one
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vote so that the aggregate number of votes attaching to all the outstanding shares is 8,397,371.

Shareholders registered prior to the close of business on May 22, 2002 (the “record date™) will be entitled
to receive notice of the meeting and to attend and vote thereat. If a shareholder transfers common shares
after said date or additional shares are issued, the person who acquires the common shares may vote these
common shares at the meeting if, not later than June 15, 2002, that person requests the Company to add
his or her name to the list of shareholders entitled to vote at the meeting and establishes that he or she owns
the common shares. If a shareholder desires to be represented at the Meeting by Proxy, the Instrument
of Proxy duly complete must be mailed or deposited at Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 510
Burrard Street, Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B9 and must be received at that office not less than 48 hours,
excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, before the time for the holding of the Meeting.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors and officers of the Company, as of the date of this
Information Circular, no person or company beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, equity shares carrying
more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all equity shares of the company, save and except:

No. of Shares | Percentage of Shares
Name and Address Type of Ownership Owned Outstanding

DAVID REES Direct, Beneficial 1,070,187 12.74%
Madeira Park, B.C.

STATEMENT OF EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Annual Compensation Long Term Compensation
Awards Payouts
Securities
Other Under Restricted All

Name and Annual Options/ Shares or Other
Principal Compen- | SARs Restricted LTIP Compen-
Position Year | Salary Bonus | sation Granted Share Units Payouts sation

® $) ®) #) & ® ®
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) ® (& (h) ()
DAVID REES 2001 ) 45,000 | N/A N/A 90,000 N/A N/A N/A
Former 20001 ] 52,500 90,000
President/COO 999 7,500 N/A
and Secretary




Annual Compensation Long Term Compensation
J. MICHAEL 2001 67,500 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
MACKEY 0]
President and
Director

(1) Received by an associated party.

Number of Executive Officers of the Company: 1

Aggregate cash consideration paid or payable to
Executive Officers or associated parties for management
services during the fiscal year for management services
was $112,500. There are no directors stock options at
this time.

The guidelines for determining the number of share of the
company reserved for options are set out in policies of
the B.C. Securities Commission and the policies of the
TSX Stock Exchange.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company are annually elected and hold office until the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company or until their successors are appointed, unless a director ceases to hold office pursuant to
Section 130 of the Company Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, Chapter 62, as amended, or his office is vacated
pursuant to the Articles of the Company. In accordance with Section 111 of the said Company Act,
Advance Notice of the Annual General Meeting was published in the Vancouver Province on April 29,

2002. In the absence of instructions to the contrary, the enclosed proxy will be voted for the nominees
herein listed.

THE MANAGEMENT DOES NOT CONTEMPLATE THAT ANY OF THE NOMINEES WILL BE
UNABLE TO SERVE AS ADIRECTOR. IN THEEVENT THAT PRIOR TO THE MEETING ANY
VACANCIES OCCUR IN THE SLATE OF NOMINEES HEREIN LISTED ITIS INTENDED THAT
DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY SHALL BE EXERCISED BY MANAGEMENT TO VOTE THE
PROXY FOR THE ELECTION OF AN OTHER PERSON OR PERSONS AS DIRECTORS.




The following table set out the information concerning management nominees for the office of Director, all

of whom are ordinarily resident in Canada.

Past and Present

Period for which
Nominee has been

Approximate No. of
shares Beneficially
Owned Directly or

Name and Place Term Principal Occupation a Director of the Indirectly as at
of Residence Expires for last 5 Years Company May 22,2002
DAVID REES * At the Businessman; former September 29, 1980 1,071,187
Madeira Park, B.C. Next President of Vault to Present
DIRECTOR AND Annual Systems Inc.
COO General
Meeting
J. MICHAEL MACKEY Atthe Businessman; President July 7, 2000 to 0
* Next of Vault Systems Inc. Present
Vancouver, B.C. Annual
PRESIDENT AND General
DIRECTOR Meeting
WILLIAM E. At the Barrister and Solicitor; New Appointment 21,676
SCHMIDT Next Director of numerous
Vancouver, B.C. Annual public companies
NEW APPOINTMENT  General
Meeting
H. BARRY At the Barrister and Solicitor; January 24,2000to 761,091
HEMSWORTH * Next Director of numerous Present
West Vancouver, B.C. Annual public companies
DIRECTOR General
Meeting

* Member of the Audit Committee.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, the aggregate management fees and consulting and
professional fees paid to directors or officers or associated parties of the Company is $154,629.

No pension or retirement benefit plans have been instituted by the Company and none are proposed at this
time.

During the past fiscal year, there were outstanding directors and employees stock option agreements with
the following persons for the number of common shares as is set out opposite the name of each person:




No.of  Exercise Date of No. of Shares
Optionee Shares Price $ Grant Expiry Date  Exercised
H. Barry Hemsworth 90,000 1.55 Feb. 21/00 Feb. 21/02 Nil
David Rees 90,000 1.55 Feb. 21/00 Feb. 21/02 Nil
John N. Denton 110,000 1.55 Feb. 21/00 Feb. 21/02 Nil
Terence Rochfort 20,000 1.55 Feb. 21/00 Feb. 21/02 Nil

None of the directors or senior officers of the company or associate or affiliate of any of them have
been indebted to the Company since the beginning of the last completed financial year.

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

It is intended to vote the proxy to appoint Davidson & Company, Chartered Accountants, of 1200 - 609
Granville Street, Vancouver, B.C. V7Y 1G6 as Auditors of the Company, and to authorize the directors
to fix their remuneration. They have been auditors of the Company since 2001.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No person other than a director or executive officer or their holding company have a management contract
with the Company.

OTHER MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
There shall be moved at the Meeting the following resolutions:

1. A special resolution, (1) to ratify and approve the exercise of any stock options granted to
directors, officers and/or employees of the Company and/or its subsidiaries during the previous
year or as granted hereunder, (2) to authorize and approve the granting and exercise of stock
options that the Company might see fit in their discretion to grant to directors, officers and/or
employees of the Company and/or its subsidiaries during the forthcoming year at such prices and
upon such terms as may be acceptable to the TSX Venture Exchange and to ratify the exercise of
any options so granted, and (3) to authorize the directors to renegotiate or cancel any existing stock
options.

2. Shareholders will be asked to consider and, if thought fit, to approve a stock option plan (the
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“Plan”). Management is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Company to

implement the Plan. The Plan, if approved by the Shareholders and the TSX Venture Exchange
(the “Exchange”), will become effective upon such approval.

The Plan has been prepared in accordance with the policies of the Exchange. It reserves
1,679,472 common shares for issuance pursuant to the exercise of options granted pursuant to
the Plan being less than 20% of the number of common shares expected to be issued and
outstanding as at the effective date of the Plan. Any common shares subject to a share option
which for any reason is cancelled or terminated without having been exercised shall again be
available for grant under the Plan.

The Plan provides that eligible persons thereunder include any director, officer, employee (full or
part-time), consultant or management company employee of the Company or any affiliate of the
Company designated by the directors under the Plan. The definition of consultant is the same as
that contained in the policies of the Exchange.

The Plan will be administered by the board of directors or a committee thereof. The board of
directors will have the authority to determine, among other things, the persons to whom options are
granted and the number of such options. At the time an option is granted, the board will also
determine the exercise price of the option which, subject to a minimum price of $0.10, shall be
equal to the closing price of the common shares on the Exchange on the day immediately
preceding the date of grant, and any vesting criteria or other restrictions with respect to the
exercisability of the option. Ataminimum, unless the approval of the Exchange isreceived, options
will vest in equal installments, either monthly, quarterly or bi-annually, at the discretion of the board
over a period of 18 months. Subject to any restrictions contained in the Plan, the board may also
impose suchother terms and conditions as it shall deem necessary or advisable at the time of grant.

The term of the options will be determined by the board, but in any case must be no more than five
years from the date of grant. Options are not transferable other than by will or the laws of descent
and distribution. If an optionee ceases to be an eligible person for any reason whatsoever, the
option (to the extent that it has vested at the time of termination) is exercisable for a period of 90
days or until the option’s expiration date, whichever is earlier, after which time the options will
terminate and be of no further force andeffect. If an optionee dies, the legal representative of the
optionee may exercise the option (to the extent that it has vested at the time of death) until the
earlier of one year after the date of death and the option’s expiration date.

The Plan provides that the maximum number of common shares which may be reserved for
issuance to any participant pursuant to options may not exceed 5% of the common shares
outstanding at the time of grant (on a non-diluted basis) less the aggregate number of common
shares reserved for issuance to such person under any other option to purchase common shares
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under any other share compensation arrangement. Under the Plan, the maximum number of
common shares that may be issued to any participant, or to one insider

and the insider’s associates, within a one year period pursuant to option exercises may not exceed
5% of the outstanding issue.

The maximum number of common shares which may be reserved for issuance to all the insiders of
the Company pursuant to share options is limited to 20% of the common shares outstandingat the
time of the grant (on a non-diluted basis) less the aggregate number of common shares reserved
for issuance to insiders under any other share compensation arrangement.

The Company will not provide any optionee with financial assistance in order to enable such
optionee to exercise share options granted under the Plan. Other than outstanding stock options,
the Company has no other compensation plans or arrangements in place and none are currently
contemplated. '

A copy of the Plan is attached to this Information Circular as Schedule “A”.

The text of the resolution which Shareholders will be asked to consider is set forth below. The
affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast in respect thereof is required in order to pass such
resolution. Additionally, the Plan is subject to the prior approval of the Exchange.

“BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. Subject to receipt of requisite regulatory approval, including the approval of the TSX
Venture Exchange, the Company be authorized to establish and implement a Stock Option
Plan consistent with the terms disclosed in the Company’s Information Circular dated May
22,2002.

2. Any one director or officer of the Company be and he is hereby authorized and directed
to do all such acts and things and to execute and deliver under the corporate seal or
otherwise all such deeds, documents, instruments and assurances as in his opinion may be
necessary or desirable to give effect to this resolution.”

3. An ordinary resolution to ratify, confirm and approve all acts, deeds and things done by and the
proceedings of the directors and officers of the Company on its behalf'since the last Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

To pass the proposed special resolutions, an affirmative vote of not less than seventy-five (75%) per cent
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of the votes cast by the shareholders of the Company present in person or by proxy at the Meeting is
required.

THE MANAGEMENT KNOWS OF NO OTHER MATTERS TO COME BEFORE THE MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS OTHER THAN REFERRED TO IN THE NOTICE OF MEETING. SHOULD
ANY OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE MEETING, THE SHARES
REPRESENTEDBY THEPROXY SOLICITED HEREBY WILL BE VOTED ON SUCHMATTERS
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE BEST JUDGMENT OF THE PERSONS VOTING THE PROXY.

DATED this 22nd day of May, A.D. 2002.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

INSTRUMENT OF PROXY
SOLICITED BY MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

The undersigned members of VAULT SYSTEMS INC. (hereinafter called the “Company”) hereby appoints
David Rees, a Director of the Company, or failing him, William E. Schmidt, the Solicitor of the
Company, or instead of both of them as Proxy of the undersigned, with power of
substitution, to attend and thereat to represent, vote and act for and on behalf of the undersigned in respect
to all shares in the capital stock of the Company registered in the name of the undersigned in respect to all
matters that may come before the Annual and Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the members of the
Company (“Meeting”) to be held at 430 - 580 Homby Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, on Wednesday,
the 26th day of June, 2002 at the hour of 10:30 o’clock in the forenoon (Vancouver time), and at any and all
adjournment(s) thereof, in the same manner to the same extent and with the same powers as if the
undersigned were present at the said meeting or any adjournment or adjournments thereof, and without
limiting the general authorization and powers hereby given, the person(s) above named are specifically
directed to vote upon the following matters as indicated:

1. To set the number of directors at four (4);

2. COMPLETE EITHER A, B OR C:

A. Vote for the election as Directors of all the
nominees named in the Management
Information Circular as Director; ( )

B. Do not vote to elect as a Director any of
the nominees named in the Management
Information Circular; C )

C. Vote to elect as Directors only those
nominees named  in the Management
Information Circular who are indicated below;

David Rees

H. Barry Hemsworth
J. Michael Mackey
William E. Schmidt

PN AN N N
e N S e

3. FOR ( ) WITHHOLD ( ) A resolution appointing Davidson & Company, Chartered
Accountants, as Auditor for the ensuing year;

4. FOR ( ) AGAINST ( ) A resolution authorizing the Directors to fix the Auditors
remuneration;




5. FOR{ ) AGAINST ( ) A special resolution, (1) to ratify and approve the exercise of
any stock options granted in the previous year or as granted
hereunder, (2) to authorize and approve the granting and
exercise of stock options in the forthcoming year, subject to
the approval by the TSX Venture Exchange and (3) to
authorize the directors to renegotiate or cancel any existing
stock options;

6. FOR( ) AGAINST ( ) A special resolution to approve the Stock Option Plan dated
May 15, 2002, a copy of which is attached to the Information
Circular dated May 22, 2002;

7. FOR ( ) AGAINST ( ) Anordinary resolution to ratify, confirm and approve all acts,
deeds and things done by and the proceedings of the directors
and officers of the Company on its behalf since the last
Annual General Meeting of the Company;

8. IN his discretion upon amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice of Annual and Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting of Members and upon such other business as may properly come before and be
transacted as the Meeting, or any adjournment(s) thereof, without notice.

The undersigned hereby revokes any Instrument of Proxy heretofore given with respect to the said Meeting
or any adjournment(s) thereof.

Each completed form of proxy to be used and voted at the Meeting must be delivered to the Company at
Computershare Trust Company of Canada, at 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, not less than
forty-eight (48) hours, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, before the time for holding the Meeting
or any adjournment(s) thereof, failing which it shall not be treated as being valid or effective. This proxy must
be executed by the member or his attorney authorized in writing, or, if the member is a corporation, by an
officer or attorney thereof duly authorized.

Members who are unable to be present at the Meeting are requested to COMPLETE, DATE, SIGN AND
RETURN THIS PROXY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.

The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the Notice of Annual and Extra-Ordinary General Meeting
of Members and the Information Circular furnished herewith dated May 22, 2002.

A MEMBER HAS THE RIGHT TO APPOINT A PERSON WHO NEED NOT BE A MEMBER, TO
ATTEND AND ACT FOR HIM AND ON HIS BEHALF AT THE MEETING OTHER THAN THE
PERSON(S) DESIGNATED IN THIS INSTRUMENT OF PROXY. A MEMBER DESIRING TO
APPOINT SOME OTHER PERSON SHOULD STRIKE OUT THE PRINTED NAMES AND INSERT
THE DESIRED PERSONS NAME AND ADDRESS IN THE BLANK SPACE PROVIDED FOR THAT
PURPOSE IN THIS INSTRUMENT OF PROXY OR BY COMPLETING ANOTHER PROPER FORM
OF PROXY.

DATED this day of , A.D.2002.

Members Signature
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Notice Information Circular and Proxy for Annual General Meeting held June 29,
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VAULT SYSTEMS INC. Ve

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Members of VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
(the "Company"), will be held at Suite 1600 - 609 Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, on
Friday, the 29th day of June, 2001, at the hour of 10 o'clock in the forenoon for the following purposes:

1.

To receive and consider the Report of the Directors and to receive and consider the Audited
Financial Statements for the period ending December 31, 2000 together with the Auditor's Report
thereon.

To fix the number of Directors for the ensuing year at six (6).
To elect Directors for the ensuing vear.

To ratify, confirm and approve the share option plan to be administered by the Company's Board
of Directors, as more particularly described under the heading +Particulars of Other Matters to be
Acted Upone, in the accompanying Information Circular.

To approve amendments to the terms of any existing or future stock options to Insiders of the
Company that may occur between now and the next annual general meeting of the Company, as

more particularly described under the heading *Particulars of Other Matters To Be Acted Upone,
in the accompanying Information Circular.

To ratify, confirm and approve the changing of the Company's Auditors from KPMG, LLP,
Chartered Accountants to Davidson & Company, Chartered Accountants, and to authorize the
Directors to fix the remuneration to be paid to the Auditors, as more particularly described under
the heading "Change of and Remuneration of Auditors", in the accompanying Information
Circular.

To consider, and if thought fit, pass a special resolution approving a change in name of the
Company to Medelink Systems Inc. or to such other name as may be acceptable to the Board of
Directors of the Company and the regulatory authorities, as more particularly described under the
heading "Particulars of Other Matters To Be Acted Upon” in the accompanying Information
Circular.

To transact such other business as may properly be transacted at such meeting or at any
adjournment thereof.

If you are unable to attend the Annual General Meeting in person, please read the Notes accompanying
the Instrument of Proxy enclosed herewith and then complete and return the proxy within the time set out
in the Notes. As set out in the Notes, the enclosed Proxy is solicited by Management, but, you may
amend it, if you so desire, by striking out the names listed therein and inserting in the space provided, the
name of the person you wish to represent you at the Meeting.

DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, this 22nd day of May, 2001.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

"J. Michael Mackey"
J. Michael Mackey
President and Chief Operating Officer




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

INFORMATION CIRCULAR
(containing information as at May 15, 2001)

For the Annual General Meeting
To Be Held on June 29, 2001

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This Information Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Management
of VAULT SYSTEMS INC. (the "Company"), for use at the Annual General Meeting (the "Meeting"), of
the Members of the Company, to be held at the time and place and for the purposes set forth in the
accompanying Notice of Meeting and at any adjournment thereof. The cost of solicitation will be borne
by the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES

The persons named in the accompanying form of Proxy are directors and/or officers of the Company. A
MEMBER HAS THE RIGHT TO APPOINT A PERSON TO ATTEND AND ACT FOR THE
MEMBER ON THE MEMBER'S BEHALF AT THE MEETING OTHER THAN THE PERSONS
NAMED IN THE ENCLOSED INSTRUMENT OF PROXY. TO EXERCISE THIS RIGHT, A
MEMBER SHALL STRIKE OUT THE NAMES OF THE PERSONS NAMED IN THE
INSTRUMENT OF PROXY AND INSERT THE NAME OF THE MEMBER'S NOMINEE IN
THE BLANK SPACE PROVIDED, OR COMPLETE ANOTHER INSTRUMENT OF PROXY.
THE COMPLETED PROXY MUST BE DEPOSITED WITH THE COMPANY'S REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER AGENT, COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA
(FORMERLY MONTREAL TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA), 510 BURRARD STREET,
VANCOUVER, BRITISH COLUMBIA, V6C 3B9, OR SENT BY FAX TO THE PROXY
DEPARTMENT, COMPUTERSHARE TRUST COMPANY OF CANADA, AT (604) 683-3694,
OR DEPOSITED WITH THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT SUITE 430 — 580
HORNBY STREET, VANCOUVER, BRITISH COLUMBIA, AT LEAST 48 HOURS
(EXCLUDING SATURDAYS, SUNDAYS AND HOLIDAYS) BEFORE THE TIME OF THE
MEETING OR ADJOURNMENT THEREOF.

The Instrument of Proxy must be signed by the Member or by the Member's attorney in writing, or, if the
Member is a corporation, it must either be under its common seal or signed by a duly authorized officer.
Evidence of such authorization must accompany the Instrument of Proxy.

A Member who has given a proxy may revoke it at any time before it is exercised. In addition to
revocation in any other manner permitted by law, a proxy may be revoked by instrument in writing
executed by the Member or by the Member's attorney authorized in writing, or, if the Member is a
corporation, it must either be under its common seal or signed by a duly authorized officer, and deposited
with the Registered Office of the Company at Suite 430 — 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, British
Columbia, or with the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent, Computershare Trust Company of
Canada, 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3B9, at any time up to and including the
last business day preceding the day of the Meeting (but prior to the commencement thereof), or any
adjournment thereof. Upon any such deposits, the proxy is revoked. In addition, an instrument of proxy
may be revoked by the Member personally attending the Meeting and revoking the proxy in writing.
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VOTING OF SHARES AND EXERCISE OF DISCRETION OF PROXIES

On any poll, the persons named in the enclosed Instrument of Proxy will vote the shares in respect of
which they are appointed. Where directions are given by the Member in respect of voting for or against
any resolution, the proxyholder will do so in accordance with such direction.

IN THE ABSENCE OF ANY INSTRUCTION IN THE PROXY, IT IS INTENDED THAT SUCH
SHARES WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF THE MOTIONS PROPOSED TO BE MADE AT
THE MEETING AS STATED UNDER THE HEADINGS IN THIS INFORMATION CIRCULAR.
The Instrument of Proxy enclosed, when properly signed, confers discretionary authority with respect to
amendments or variations to the matters which may properly be brought before the Meeting. At the time
of printing this Information Circular, the Management of the Company is not aware that any such
amendments, variations or other matters are to be presented for action at the Meeting. However, if any
other matters which are not now known to the Management should properly come before the Meeting, the
Proxies hereby solicited will be exercised on such matters in accordance with the best judgment of the
nominee.

VOTING SHARES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

The Company's authorized capital consists of 100,000,000 common shares without par value. On May
15, 2001, 5,607,371 shares were issued and outstanding, each share carrying the right to one vote.

Only those Members of record on May 15, 2001, holding common shares, who either persconally attend
the Meeting or any adjournment thereof, or who have completed and delivered a form of proxy in the
manner and subject to the provisions described above, shall be entitled to vote or to have their shares
voted at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Each Member is entitled to one vote for each common share registered in his/her name on the list of
Members, which is available for inspection during normal business hours at Computershare Trust
Company of Canada and will be available at the Meeting.

To the knowledge of the directors and senior officers of the Company, only the following persons own,
directly or indirectly, or exercise control or discretion over, shares carrying more than 10% of the voting
rights attached to all outstanding shares of the Company:

Name of Member" Number of Shares Percentage of Issued and
' Outstanding
CDS & Co. 1,970,033 35.13%
Pralin Trading SA 842,000 15.02%
1. Management of the Company is unaware of the beneficial owners of the shares.

The above information was supplied by the Registrar and Transfer Agent and by management for the |
Company.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The audited financial statements of the Company for the period ending December 31, 2000 (the

"Financial Statements"), together with the Auditor's Report thereon, will be presented to Members at the
Annual General Meeting. The Financial Statements, together with the Auditor's Report thereon, and the




Directors' Report to Members are being mailed to Members of record with this Information Circular.
Copies of the Financial Statements, together with the Directors' Report to Members, Notice of Meeting,
Information Circular and Proxy will be available from the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agent,
Computershare Trust Company of Canada, 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3B9,
or the Company's Registered Office, Suite 430 ~ 580 Homnby Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C
3B6.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The persons named in the enclosed Instrument of Proxy intend to vote for the election of a board of
directors comprised of six (6) persons.

The six persons identified as candidates for directorship in the enclosed Instrument of Proxy are the
nominees of management. The names of further nominees for directors may come from the floor at the
meeting. The Company has received no nominations for directors pursuant to Sections 153 and 154 of
the Company Act, (British Columbia) as set out in the Advance Notice of Meeting published in The
Province on May 4, 2001.

Each director elected will hold office until the next Annual General Meeting or until his successor is duly
elected, unless his office is earlier vacated, in accordance with the Articles of the Company.

The following table set forth the name of each person proposed to be nominated by Management of the
Company for election as a director, his principal occupation, business or employment, his current position
held with the Company, if any, the period of time for which he has been a director of the Company, and
the approximate number of shares of the Company beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or subject to
control or direction, by such person as of May 15, 2001.

INFORMATION CONCERNING NOMINEES SUBMITTED BY MANAGEMENT

Naxlne, Counfry of Principal Occupation Year First No. of Shares
Ordinary Residence . .
and Other Positions or Employm‘ent During Be.came a Beneficially
: . the Past Five Years Director Owned
if any held with the .

Company DlreFtly or
Indirectly
J. MICHAEL MACKEY Management Consultant. Since 2000 Nil
Vancouver, B.C. July 10, 2000, President of Vault
Canada Systems Inc.
Director, President & Chief
Operating Officer
H. BARRY HEMSWORTH Barrister and Solicitor, Director of 2000 361,091
Vancouver, B.C. numerous public companies
Canada
Director
DAVID WILLIAM REES President (until July 10, 2000) and 1980 670,187
Madeira Park, B.C. Secretary of Vault Systems Inc.
Canada
Director & Secretary
DR. BRIAN DAY Medical Surgeon and President Nominee Nil
Vancouver, B.C. and CEO of Cambie Surgery
Canada Corporation
Nominee




Nal.ne, Count.ry of Principal Occupation Year First No. of Shares
Ordinary Residence . .
" or Employment During Became a Beneficially
and Other Positions . .
. . the Past Five Years Director Owned
if any held with the .
Company Directly or
Indirectly
DR. KEITH CHAMBERS Assistant Clinical Professor of Nominee 50,000
Vancouver, B.C. Health Care and Epidemiology at
Canada University of British Columbia
Nominee
DR, INTESAR RAMLEY 1997 to present, President and Nominee Nil
Vancouver, B.C. Technical Director, INToo
Canada Software Corporation, from 1994
Nominee to 1996 independent consultant
developing software solutions and
providing senior project
management

Pursuant to Section 187 of the Company Act (British Columbia), the Directors of a reporting company are
required at their first meeting following each annual general meeting to elect an Audit Committee
comprised of not fewer than three directors, of whom a majority shall not be officers or employees of the
Company or an affiliate of the Company. As at May 15, 2001, Michael Mackey, Barry Hemsworth and
David Rees are members of the Company's Audit Committee.

Unless otherwise stated above, each of the above-named nominees has held the principal occupation or
employment indicated for the past five years.

The number of shares beneficially owned by nominees for directors, directly or indirectly, as of May 15,
2001 is based on information furnished by the nominees themselves,

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information contained under this heading is provided in compliance with the requirements of Form
41 of the Regulation promulgated pursuant to the Securities Act (British Columbia). For the purposes of
this Information Circular:

"CEO" of the Company means an individual who served as chief executive officer of the Company or
acted in a similar capacity during the most recently completed financial year;

"executive officer' of the Company for the financial year, means an individual who at any time during
the year was,

a) the chair of the Company, if that individual performed the functions of the office on a full-time
basis,

b) a vice-chair of the Company, if that individual performed the functions of the office on a full-
time basis,

¢)  the president of the Company,

d) a vice-president of the Company in charge of a principal business unit, division or function
such as sales, finance or production, or
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e)  an officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other person who performed a
policy-making function in respect of the Company;

"Named Executive Officers " mean,

a) each CEQ, despite the amount of compensation of that individual;

b) each of the Company's four most highly compensated executive officers, other than the CEQ,
who were serving as executive officers at the end of the most recently completed financial
year, provided that disclosure is not required under Form 41 for an executive officer whose
total salary and bonus, as determined does not exceed $100,000; and

c) any additional individual for whom disclosure would have been provided under (b) above, but
for the fact that the individual was not serving as an executive officer of the Company at the
end of the most recently completed financial year end.

During the most recently completed financial year ended December 31, 2000, the Company had two
Named Executive Officers, namely President, David William Rees and its President and Chief Operating
Officer, J. Michael Mackey. Mr. Rees resigned as President of the Company on July 10, 2000 and Mr.
Mackey was appointed in his stead.

The following table sets forth all annual and long-term compensation awarded, paid to or earned by the
Company's Named Executive Officers (to the extent required by the Rules under the Securities Act
(British Columbia)) during the three financial years of the Company ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and

2000:

Compensation of Named Executive Officers

Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation Long Term Compensation
Awards Payout
s
Securities | Restricted
Other Under Shares or
Annual Options/ | Restricted | LTIP All Other
Name and Compen- SARs Share Payout | Compen
Principal Salary Bonus sation Granted Units s —sation
Position Year ) )] ® # 3 ® 3
(a) ®) (¢) @ (¢) ® (® (h) (i)

David W. 1998 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Rees 1999 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Former 20009 | $52,50000 Nil Nil 90,000 Nil Nil Nil
President
J. Michael 1998 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Nil N/A
Mackey 1999 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Nil N/A
President & 20009 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Chief
Operating
Officer
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1. Pursuant to a Contract for Services dated April 1, 2000 the Company engaged David Rees to administer the
affairs of the Company jointly with Barry Hemsworth, for $5,000 each per month. The agreement is for a two
year period and is terminable by either party on 15 days notice.

2. David Rees resigned as President of the Company on July 10, 2000.

3. J. Michael Mackey was appointed President on July10, 2000.

Long-Term Incentive Plans —
Awards in most recently completed Financial Year

Long term incentive plan awards ("LTIP") means "any plan providing compensation intended to serve as
an incentive for performance to occur over a period longer than one financial year whether performance is
measured by reference to financial performance of the Company or an affiliate, or the price of the
Company's shares but does not include option or stock appreciation rights plans or plans for compensation
through restricted shares or units". The Company did not award any LTIPs to the Named Executive
Officers during the most recently completed financial year ended December 31, 2000.

Stock Appreciation Rights

Stock appreciation rights ("SARs") means a right, granted by an issuer to any of its subsidiaries as
compensation for services rendered or in connection with office or employment, to receive a payment of
cash or an issue or transfer of securities based wholly or in part on changes in the trading price of the
Company's shares. No SAR's were granted to, or exercised by, the Named Executive Officers of the
Company during the most recently completed financial year ended December 31, 2000.

Option/SAR Grants during the most recently completed Financial Year

The following table sets forth information concerning a stock option to purchase or acquire securities of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries granted to the Named Executive Officers during the most recently
completed financial year ended December 31, 2000, pursuant to the policies of the Canadian Venture
Exchange and in accordance with applicable securities legislation of British Columbia:

Market Value
of Securities
Securities % of Total Underlying

Under Options/SARs Options/SARs

Options/SARs Granted to Exercise or on the Date of

Granted Employees in Base Price Grant Expiration
Name #) Financial Year ($/Security) ($/Security)”” Date
(a) ®) © @ ©) ®
David W. Rees 90,000 29% $1.55 $0.72 Feb. 21,2002

1. The closing price of the Company's shares on February 8, 2000 being the last day the Company's shares traded
prior to the date of grant of the options.

Aggregate Option/SAR Exercises during the most recently completed Financial
Year and Financial Year End Option/SAR Values

No options were exercised by the Named Executive Officers during the most recently completed financial
year ended December 31, 2000. The following table sets forth details of the financial year-end value of
unexercised options for the Named Executive Officers on an aggregated basis:




Value of
Unexercised in
Unexercised the-Money
Options/SARs at Options/SARs at
FY-End FY-End"
Securities #) (%)
Acquired on Aggregate Value
Exercise Realized Exercisable/ Exercisable/
Name #) ($) Unexercisable Unexercisable
(a) ®) (c) d (e)
David W. Rees N/A N/A 90,000/Nil N/A/N/A

1. Calculated using the closing price of common shares of the Company on the Canadian Venture Exchange on
December 31, 2000 (being the Company's financial year end) less the exercise price of in-the-money options.
"In-the-money" means the excess of the market value of the Company’s common shares at financial year end
over the exercise price of the options

Table of Option and SAR Repricings

There were no options held by the Named Executive Officers that were repriced downward during the
most recently completed financial year ended December 31, 2001.

Pension Plan

The Company does not provide retirement benefits for directors or executive officers.

Termination of Employment,
Change in Responsibility and Employment Contracts

The Company has no other plan, arrangement or benefits with respect to the compensation of its Named
Executive Officers in the event of the resignation, or retirement or any other termination of the named
executive officer's employment with the Company or its subsidiaries or in the named executive officer's
responsibilities following a change of control of the Company.

Compensation Committee
The Company has no compensation committee.
Compensation of Directors

During the most recently completed financial year ended December 31, 2000, the Company had no
arrangements pursuant to which directors of the Company who are not Named Executive Officers were
compensated by the Company for services in their capacity as such or for services as consultants or
experts, nor were any amounts paid to the directors for committee participation or special assignments,
other than the granting of stock options or as otherwise disclosed herein.

As at December 31, 2000 the Company had an aggregate of 90,000 shares outstanding under options
exercisable at a price of $1.55 per share up to February 21, 2002 which were granted to directors who are
not Named Executive Officers of the Company.
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During the financial period January 1, 2000 to December 31, 2000, the Company paid $19,062 to a law
firm in which Barry Hemsworth, a director of the Company is a partner, for legal fees.

Pursuant to a Contract for Services dated April 1, 2000, the Company engaged David Rees to administer
the affairs of the Company jointly with Mr. Barry Hemsworth for $5,000 each per month. The agreement
is for a two year period and is terminable by either party on 15 days notice. During the financial period
April 1, 2000 to December 31, 2000 a total of $105,000 was paid pursuant to this agreement,

Other than as disclosed above, there were no Named Executive Officers serving as executive officers at
the end of the most recently completed financial year or executive officers who served during the
financial year whose salaries exceeded $100,000 per year.

No pension or retirement benefits plans have been instituted and none are proposed at this time.
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

No person who is, or was at any time during the most recently completed financial year a director,
executive officer or senior officer of the Company, nor any proposed nominee for election as a director
nor any associate of the foregoing, is or was at any time since the beginning of the most recently
completed financial year indebted to the Company or its subsidiaries.

APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

KPMG, LLP, Chartered Accountants, were re-appointed auditors of the Company at the Company's last
annual general meeting held on June 20, 2000. The Board of Directors, however, have determined not to
recommend the re-appointment of KPMG, LLP as the Company's auditors for the ensuing year.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors requested the resignation of KPMG, LLP (the "Former Auditor"),
effective as of January 29, 2001.

Davidson & Company, Chartered Accountants, (the "Successor Auditor") have agreed to act as auditors
for the Company, effective as of January 29, 2001. There have been no reportable disagreements with,
nor have there been any adverse or qualified opinion or denied opinion contained in the Former Auditors'
reports on the annual financial statements for the Company for the two fiscal years preceding the date of
the Notice of Change of Auditor delivered pursuant to National Policy 31 (the "Notice"), or any similar
reservation contained in any auditors' reports or comments on interim financial information for any
subsequent period preceding the date of the Notice. A copy of a letter from each of the Former Auditor
and the Successor Auditor stating their agreement with the information contained in the foregoing Notice
accompanies this Information Circular.

Management of the Company recommends to its members the appointment of Davidson & Company,
Chartered Accountants as auditors for the Company. The persons named in the enclosed Instrument of
Proxy will vote for the appointment of Davidson & Company, Chartered Accountants as auditors for the
Company, to hold office until the next Annual General Meeting of the Members, at a remuneration to be
fixed by the Board of Directors.

INTEREST OF INSIDERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

Except as otherwise disclosed herein, no Insider of the Company, no proposed nominee for election as a
director and no associate or affiliate thereof has had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any
transaction since the commencement of the Company's last financial year which has not been previously
disclosed in an information circular or in any proposed transaction which has materially affected or will
materially affect the Company or any of its subsidiaries.




MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Pursuant to a Contract for Services dated April 1, 2000, the Company engaged David Rees to administer
the affairs of the Company jointly with Mr. Barry Hemsworth for $5,000 per month each. The agreement
is for a two year period and is terminable by either party on 15 days notice.

Management functions of the Company are not, to any substantial degree, performed by a person or
persons other than the directors or senior officers of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF OTHER MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
Approval of Stock Option Plan

Members will be asked to consider and, if thought fit, approve a stock option plan (the <Plane)
Management is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Company to implement the Plan.

The Plan has been prepared in accordance with the policies of the Exchange and will reserve a number of
common shares for issuance pursuant to the exercise of options granted pursuant to the Plan, together
with shares issuable pursuant to the exercise of outstanding options, in the amount of 20% of the issued
and outstanding common shares as at the effective date of the Plan: Any common shares subject to a
share option which for any reason is cancelled or terminated without having been exercised shall again be
available for grant under the Plan.

The Plan provides that eligible persons thereunder include any director, officer, employee (full or part-
time), consultant or management company employee (as defined by the Exchange) of the Company or
any affiliate of the Company designated by the Board of Directors under the Plan.

The Plan will be administered by the Board of Directors or a committee thereof. The Board of Directors
will have the authority to determine, among other things, the persons to whom options are granted and the
number of such options. At the time an option is granted, the Board of Directors will also determine the
exercise price of the option, subject to a minimum price equal to the ediscounted market prices, as
defined by the Exchange, immediately proceeding the date of grant, and any vesting criteria or other
restrictions with respect to the exercisability of the option. Subject to any restrictions contained in the
Plan, the Board of Directors may also impose such other terms and conditions as it shall deem necessary
or advisable at the time of grant.

The term of the options will be determined by the Board of Directors, but in any case must be no more
than five years from the date of grant. Options are not transferable other than by will or the laws of
descent and distribution. If an optionee ceases to be an eligible person for any reason whatsoever, the
option (to the extent that it has vested at the time of termination) is exercisable for a period of 30 days or
until the options expiration date, whichever is earlier, after which time the options will terminate and be
of no further force and effect. If an optionee dies, the legal representative of the optionee may exercise
the option (to the extent that it has vested at the time of death) until the earlier of twelve months after the
date of death and the options expiration date. Options granted to an optionee who is engaged in investor
relations activity will expire 30 days after the optionee ceases to be employed to provide investor relations
activity.

The Plan provides that the maximum number of common shares which may be reserved for issuance to
any participant pursuant to share options may not exceed 5% of the common shares outstanding at the
time of grant (on a non-diluted basis) less the aggregate number of common shares reserved for issuance
to such person under any other option to purchase common shares under any other share compensation
arrangement. The maximum number of common shares which may be reserved for issuance to all the
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Insiders of the Company pursuant to share options is limited to 20% of the common shares outstanding at
the time of the grant (on a non-diluted basis) less the aggregate number of common shares reserved for
issuance to Insiders under any other share compensation arrangement. The aggregate number of shares
reserved for issuance under the Plan to consultants may not exceed 2% of the common shares outstanding
at the time of grant. The same restriction applies to persons employed in investor relations activities
unless the Exchange permits otherwise.

Under the Plan, an individual can receive grants of no more than 5% of the outstanding shares of the
Company on a yearly basis.

The maximum number of common shares that may be issued to any one Insider and such Insiders
associates within a one year period pursuant to option exercises may not exceed 5% of the outstanding
issue. The maximum number of common shares that may be issued to all of the Insiders of the Company
within a one year period pursuant to option exercises may not exceed 10% of the outstanding issue.

Any amendments to outstanding options will be subject to Exchange approval. If the amendment is a
reduction in the exercise price of an option held by a person who is an Insider at the time of amendment
disinterested shareholder approval will also be required. The Company will not provide any optionee with
financial assistance in order to enable such optionee to exercise share options granted under the Plan.
Other than outstanding stock options, the Company has no other compensation plans or arrangements in
place and none are currently contemplated.

A copy of the Plan is attached to this Information Circular as Schedule "A".

The text of the resolution which Members will be asked to consider is set forth below. The affirmative
vote of a majority of the votes cast in respect thereof is required in order to pass such resolution.
Additionally, the Plan is subject to the prior approval of the Exchange.

‘NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. Subject to receipt of requisite regulatory approval, including the approval of the Canadian
Venture Exchange, the Company be authorized to establish and implement a Stock Option Plan
consistent with the terms disclosed in the Company's Information Circular,

2. Any one director or officer of the Company be and he is hereby authorized and directed to do all
such acts and things and to execute and deliver under the corporate seal or otherwise all such
deeds, documents, instruments and assurances as in his opinion may be necessary or desirable to
give effect to this resolution.®

Amendment of Incentive Stock Options in favour of Insiders

Members, excluding "Insiders" (as defined below) and their associates, will be asked to approve generally
all amendments to the terms of any existing or future stock options to Insiders, as may be permitted by the
applicable regulatory authorities, that may occur between now and the next Annual General Meeting.

"Insider", as defined in the Securities Act (British Columbia), includes Directors, Senior Officers and
holders of greater than 10% of the issued share capital.

The purpose of this resolution in the general form to be presented to the Members is to save the Company
from calling a further meeting of the Members to approve any amendments to the terms of any existing or
future stock options to Insiders that may occur between now and the next Annual General Meeting. Due
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to the requirements of the regulatory authorities and the policies of the Canadian Venture Exchange,
management of the Company recommends that the Members approve this resolution.
Change of Name
Management proposes to change the name of the Company to “Medelink Systems Inc.” to more
accurately reflect the change in the nature of the Company’s business.

In order to approve the change of name, Members are requested to consider and, if thought fit, pass,
without or without amendment, the following special resolutions, which in order to be passed require that
75% of the votes present in person or by proxy be in favour of the resolution:

"BE IT RESOLVED, AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION THAT:

L The Company be authorized to change its name to Medelink Systems Inc. or to such other name
as may be acceptable to the Board of Directors of the Company and the regulatory authorities;
and

2. The Company be authorized to amend paragraph 1 of the Memorandum of the Company
accordingly."

Interest of Certain Persons In Matters To Be Acted Upon

Except as otherwise disclosed herein, no person who has been a director or senior officer of the Company

at any time since the beginning of the last financial year of the Company, nor any associate or affiliate of
the foregoing persons, has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of
securities or otherwise, in any matters to be acted upon at the Meeting,

Other Matters

Unless otherwise indicated, information contained herein is given as of May 15, 2001. Management of
the Company is not aware of any other matter to come before the Meeting other than as set forth in the
Notice of Meeting. Should any other matters properly come before the Meeting, the shares represented
by the Proxy solicited hereby will be voted on such matter in accordance with the best judgment of the
persons voting by proxy.

Approval of Circular

The contents and sending of this Information Circular have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors.

DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia this 22nd day of May, 2001.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
"J. Michael Mackey"

J. Michael Mackey
President and Chief Operating Officer
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VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
INSTRUMENT OF PROXY
FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

To be Held on June 29, 2001

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

the Undersigned, being a Member of VAULT

SYSTEMS INC. (the "Company"), hereby appoint J. MICHAEL MACKEY, President and a Director of
the Company, or failing him, DAVID WILLIAM REES, a Director and the Secretary of the Company, or
instead of either of the foregoing, , as my Proxy,
to vote for me at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on the 29th day of June, 2001,
and at any adjournment thereof, and to vote the shares in the capital stock of the Company registered in
the name of the Undersigned with respect to the matters set forth below:

1.

To fix the number of Directors for the ensuing year at six (6) and to authorize the Board of
Directors, in their discretion, to appoint from time to time, additional directors, to hold office
until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or until their successors are appointed.

IN FAVOUR AGAINST

For the election of Directors as follows:

IN FAVOUR WITHHOLD
J. MICHAEL MACKEY

H. BARRY HEMSWORTH
DAVID WILLIAM REES
DR. BRIAN DAY

DR. KEITH CHAMBERS
DR. INTESAR RAMLEY

To ratify, confirm and approve the share option plan to be administered by the Company's Board

of Directors, as more particularly described under the heading *Particulars of Other Matters to be
Acted Upone, in the accompanying Information Circular.

IN FAVOUR AGAINST

To approve amendments to the terms of any existing or future stock options to Insiders of the
Company that may occur between now and the next annual general meeting of the Company, as

more particularly described under the heading *Particulars of Other Matters To Be Acted Upone,
in the accompanying Information Circular.

IN FAVOUR AGAINST




5. To ratify, confirm and approve the changing of the Company's Auditors from KPMG, LLP,
Chartered Accountants to Davidson & Company, Chartered Accountants, and to authorize the
Directors to fix the remuneration to be paid to the Auditors, as more particularly described under
the heading "Change of and Remuneration of Auditors", in the accompanying Information

Circular.
IN FAVOUR WITHHOLD
6. To consider, and if thought fit, pass a special resolution approving a change in name of the

Company to Medelink Systems Inc. or to such other name as may be acceptable to the Board of
Directors of the Company and the regulatory authorities, as more particularly described under the
heading "Particulars of Other Matters To Be Acted Upon" in the accompanying Information
Circular.

IN FAVOUR AGAINST

The Undersigned hereby revokes any proxy previously given.

WITNESS my hand this day of , 2001.
NAME (PLEASE PRINT) SIGNATURE OF MEMBER
Address:




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
(the "Company'')

NOTES TO THE INSTRUMENT OF PROXY
FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
To be Held on June 29, 2001

THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED ON ITEMS 1 TO 6 AS
THE MEMBER MAY HAVE SPECIFIED BY MARKING AN "X" IN THE SPACES
PROVIDED FOR THAT PURPOSE. IF NO CHOICE IS SPECIFIED, THE SHARES WILL BE
VOTED AS IF THE MEMBER HAD SPECIFIED AN AFFIRMATIVE VOTE.

IF THE MEMBER DOES NOT WANT TO APPOINT THE PERSON NAMED IN THE
INSTRUMENT OF PROXY, HE SHOULD STRIKE OUT HIS NAME AND INSERT IN THE
BLANK SPACE PROVIDED, THE NAME OF THE PERSON HE WISHES TO ACT AS HIS
PROXY. SUCH OTHER PERSON NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

The Instrument of Proxy, when properly signed, confers discretionary authority with respect to
amendments or variations to the matters to be brought before the meeting, or any other matters,
which may properly be brought before the meeting. At the time of printing the Information
Circular, the Management of the Company was not aware that any such amendments, variations
or other matters are to be presented for action at the meeting. However, if any other matters
which are not now known to Management should properly come before the meeting, the Proxies
hereby solicited will be exercised on such matters in accordance with the best judgement of the
persons voting the proxy.

The Instrument of Proxy will not be valid unless it is dated and signed by the Member or by his
attorney duly authorized by him in writing, or, if the Member is a corporation, it must either be
under its common seal or signed by a duly authorized officer or officers.

The Instrument of Proxy, to be effective, must be deposited with the Registered Office of the
Company at Suite 1600 - 609 Granville Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, or with its Registrar
and Transfer Agent, Computershare Trust Company of Canada. (formerly Montreal Trust
Company of Canada), 510 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3B9, or sent by fax
to the Proxy Department, Computershare Trust Company of Canada. at (604) 683-36%4, at least
48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the time of the meeting or at any
adjournment thereof at which the Proxy is to be used. In the case of revocation, the signed
instrument revoking the Proxy must be deposited at any time up to and including the last business
day preceding the meeting or adjournment thereof at which the Proxy is to be used, or to the
Chairman of the meeting on the day of the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Please note that members who receive their meeting materials via Independent Investor
Communications Corporation (IICC) or ADP Proxy Services (ADP) MUST return the
proxy forms, once voted, to IICC or ADP for the proxy to be valid.

This Proxy is solicited on behalf of the Management of the Company.

(Name and Address as registered - please notify the Company of any change in your
address).
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VAULT MINERALS INC.
INTERIM BALANCE SHEETS
[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

As at
June 30, December 31
2003 2002

ASSETS

Current
Cash
Receivables

Mineral Properties (Note 6)

$ 296251 § 3,191

23.648 1,872
319,899 5,063
317,963 -

§ 637,862 % 5,063

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest bearing advances

Shareholders’ equity (deficiency)
Share capital (Note 3)
Subscriptions received in advance (Note 3)
Deficit

$ 123323 § 134,844
224,882 -
348,205 134,844

5,701,958 5,701,958
514,840 )
(5.927.141) _ (5.831,739)

289,657 (129.781)

$§ 637862 § 5,063

Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1)

On behalf of the Board:

"David Rees” Director “J. Michael Mackey”

Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

INTERIM STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
{ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

Six months ended June 30, Quarter ended June 30,
2003 2002 2003 2002
EXPENSES
$ $ $ $
Consulting fees 30,000 35,000 15,000 15,000
Interest and bank charges 5,093 768 4,609 104
Investor relations 8,595 9,255 5,458 7,583
Listing and transfer agent fees 14,703 6,694 11,221 1,240
Management fees 15,000 15,000 7,500 7,500
Office and miscellaneous 3,984 2,728 2,076 2,129
Professional fees 15,218 23,191 5,300 6,255
Travel 2.809 598 122 598
Loss for the period (95,402) (92,635) (51,286) (40,409)

Deficit, beginning of period

Deficit, end of period

(5.831.739) (5,393.823) (5,875.855) (5,446.048)

$ (5927,141) $ (5,487,057) S (5,927,141) $ (5,487,057)

Basic and diluted loss per common share

$ 0.07) $ (0.07) $ 0.04) 8 (0.03)

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding

1,399,561 1,399,561 1,399,561 1,399,561

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

INTERIM STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2003
[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

Six months ended June 30,

Quarter ended June 30,

2003 2002 2002
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year (95,402) $ (99,234) $ (41,009)
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Increase in accounts receivable (21,776) (2,557) 2,915
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities (11,521) {198.283) (41,955)
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating (128.699) (294.074) (80.049)
activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Interest bearing advances 224,882 - -
Proceeds from issuance of share capital - 93,000 -
Subscriptions received in advance 514,840 - -
Cash flows provided by financing activities 739,722 93.000 -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Investment in mineral properties (317,963) -
Investment in software - (196.590) (89.150)
Cash flows used in investing activities (317.963) (196.590) (89.150)
Change in cash during the period 293,060 (397,664) (169,199)
Cash, beginning of period 3.191 423.849 195,384
Cash, end of period 296,251 26,185 26,185

Cash paid for interest during the period

Cash paid for income taxes during the period

Supplemental disclosure with respect to cash flows (Note 7)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia. The Company was deemed
inactive by the TSX Venture Exchange ("TSX-V") but was focused on the development of software for the medical
profession and ancillary fields but is currently focused on its reactivation as a mineral exploration and development
company. Based on the information available to date, the Company has not yet determined whether the mineral
properties contain economically recoverable reserves.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued operations of the Company
are dependent on the Company's ability to receive continued financial support from related parties, to complete
public equity financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

June 30, December 31,

2003 2002
Deficit $ (5,927,141) $ (5,831,739)
Working capital (deficiency) (28,306) (129,781)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Research and software development

The Company has expensed research costs as they were incurred. Software development costs were expensed as
incurred until technological feasibility of the underlying software product was achieved, at which time any additional
costs would be capitalized and amortized prospectively over their estimated economic life.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date.
Income and expenses are translated at rates which approximate those in effect on transaction dates.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

{ Unaudited - prepared by management ]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd...)
Mineral Properties

The Company records its interest in mineral properties and areas of geological interest at cost. Costs relating to
these interests are capitalized on the basis of specific claim blocks or areas of geological interest until the properties
to which they relate are placed into production, sold or abandoned. These costs will be amortized over the proven
reserves available on the related property following commencement of production, or written off if the mineral
interests are sold or abandoned. The amounts shown for mineral properties represent costs incurred to date and are
not intended to reflect present or future values.

Deferred exploration costs

The Company defers expenditures directly attributable to the exploration and development of mineral properties,
pending a decision as to the commercial viability of a property. Amortization will be computed on the basis of units
produced in relation to the estimated reserves. Upon abandonment or sale of a project, all deferred costs relating to
the project will be expensed in the year of abandonment or sale.

The amounts shown for the deferred exploration costs shall represent costs incurred to date, and do not intend to
reflect present or future values.

The Company does not accrue the estimated future costs of maintaining its mineral properties in good standing.
Environmental protection and rehabilitation costs

Liabilities related to environmental protection and rehabilitation costs are accrued and charged to income when their
likelihood of incurrence is established. This includes future removal and site restoration costs as required due to
environmental law or contracts.

Stock-based compensation

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the new CICA Handbook Section 3870 “Stock-Based
Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments”, which recommends the fair value-based methodology for
measuring compensation costs. The new section also permits the use of the intrinsic value-based method, which
recognizes compensation cost for awards to employees only when the market price exceeds the exercise price at date
of grant, but requires pro-forma disclosure of earnings and earnings per share as if the fair value method had been
adopted. Any consideration paid by the option holders to purchase shares is credited to share capital. There is no
effect on the financial statements of either the current period or prior period presented.

Income taxes

The Company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future income taxes
are recognized for the future income tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying values and their respective income tax bases (temporary differences). Future income tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on future income tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is included in income in the period in which the change occurs. The amount of future income
tax assets recognized is limited to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management |

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd...)

Earnings (loss) per share

The Company uses the treasury stock method to compute the dilutive effect of options, warrants and similar
instruments. Under this method, the dilutive effect on earnings per share is recognized on the use of the proceeds
that could be obtained upon exercise of options and warrants and similar instruments. For the years presented, this
calculation proved to be anti-dilutive. It assumes that the proceeds would be used to purchase common shares at the
average market price during the period.

Basic earnings (loss) per share are calculated using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the
year.
Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current fiscal period’s presentation.

3. SHARE CAPITAL
Number
of Shares Amount
Authorized:
100,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued:
Balance as at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002 1,399,561 $ 5,701,958

During the six months ended June 30, 2003 the company received regulatory approval and consolidated its common
shares on the basis of 6 common shares before consolidation becoming 1 common share after consolidation and
thereafter increasing the number of authorized common shares of the Company to 100,000,000 common shares
without par value.

Included in issued share capital are 8,593 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and may not be
transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.

The Company has received advanced subscriptions in the amount of $ 514,840 toward the brokered private
placement of up to 2,630,000 units (of which 1,350,000 shall be flow-though) at a price of $0.20 per unit, for gross
proceeds in the amount of $ 526,000. Each unit will consist of a common share and a warrant entitling the holder to
purchase an additional common share for two years at $ 0.30 per share. As consideration, the brokerage agent shall
be entitled to a commission of up to $ 20,800 and 156,000 additional units.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

4. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the TSX-V, is authorized to grant options to executive officers and
directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding common
stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of the Company's stock as
calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term of 5 years.

At June 30, 2003, the Company was designated inactive, pursuant to the policies of the TSX-V, and was prohibited
from granting new incentive stock options. In addition, principals of the Company were prohibited from exercising
previously granted stock options. Subsequently the company was re-instated to active status and incentive stock
options were granted by the company ( see note 11).

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Weighted
Average
Number Exercise
of Shares Price
Qutstanding at December 31, 2002 nil $ nil
Granted - -
Expired/cancelled - -
Exercised - -
Outstanding at June 30, 2003 nil $ nil

The following share purchase warrants were outstanding at June 30, 2003:

Number Exercise
of Shares Price Expiry Date
155,000 $0.60 January 21, 2004

During the six months ended June 30, 2003, 310,000 non-transferable share purchase warrants expired. Each
warrant had entitled the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $ 0.60 per share on or before
January 8, 2003.




YAULT MINERALS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the six months ended June 30, 2003, the Company entered into the following transactions with related
parties:
a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $30,000 to a director or a company related to a director of the Company.
b) Paid or accrued management fees of $15,000 to a director of the Company.

¢) Included in accounts payable at June 30, 2003 is $8,025 due to a company controlled by a director and to
directors of the Company.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties,

6. MINERAL PROPERTIES
During the six months ended June 30, 2003 the Company incurred property acquisition costs in the amount of
$304,962 related to the staking of claims in the James Bay Lowland area of Ontario. The company also incurred
expenses associated with the preparation of a geological report in the amount of § 13,001.

7. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS

During the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2003, there were no significant non-cash transactions.

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company's financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency
or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of these financial instruments approximate
their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company conducts all of its operations in North America in one business segment.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:

Six months Year ended
ended  December 31,
June 30, 2002
2003
Loss for the period $ (95,402)) § (437,915)
Expected income tax (recovery) b (37,780) $ (173,414)
Non-deductible items for tax purposes 1,426 3,109
Unrecognised benefit of non-capital losses 36,354 170,305
Income tax recovery s - 8 -
The significant components of the Company's future income tax assets are as follows:
Six months Year ended
ended  December 31,
June 30, 2002
2003
Future income tax assets:
Non-capital loss carry-forwards $ 928,798 § 836,996
Resource expenditures 299.810 286,809
1,228,608 1,123,805
Valuation allowance (1.228.608) (1.123.803)
Net future income tax assets $ - $ -

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future tax assets. It
is reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and manner of the reversal
of future tax liabilities.

At June 30, 2003, the Company had approximately $2,200,000 in non-capital losses expiring through 2009, which
are available for carry-forward to reduce future taxable income. Subject to certain restrictions, the Company has
certain resource expenditures totalling approximately $762,000 available to reduce taxable income of future years.

The potential tax benefit of these losses and resource expenditures have not been recorded in these financial
statements.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

11.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to June 30, 2003, the company has completed its acquisition of Goldaur Resources Ltd. and the
concurrent equity financing of 2,630,000 units at $ 0.20 per unit. Pursuant to the acquisition, Goldaur has become a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The aggregate consideration paid by the Company consists of 2,500,000
common shares and 2,500,000 share purchase warrants to be issued to the existing shareholders of Goldaur on a pro-
rata basis. The warrants have a term of two years and an exercise price equal to the lesser of $ 1.50 per share and
300% of the price per share at which the Company completes its next equity financing. In addition, the Goldaur
shareholders are entitled to contingent rights to receive an additional 500,000 common shares if the Company has
not raised $1,000,000 of new equity financing by December 31, 2003 and a further 500,000 common shares if the
requisite $1,000,000 of new equity financing has not been raised by June 30, 2004. . The securities issued to the
Goldaur shareholders have no resale restrictions.

A finder’s fee of 100,000 shares was paid on the acquisition. The finder’s fee shares are subject to a hold period
expiring on November 23, 2003.

Concurrent with closing of the acquisition, the Company has completed a $ 526,000 equity financing, with the
issuance of 2,630,000 units consisting of one common share and one warrant at a price of $ 0.20 per unit. Haywood
Securities Inc. shall receive a finder’s fee of § 20,800 and 156,000 units of the Company. The shares and warrants
issued on the financing and as part of the finders fee are subject to a hold period expiring November 23, 2003,
1,350,000 of the units were issued on a flow-through basis.

The Company was declared Inactive by the exchange on November 21, 2001. As the Company’s reactivation plan
has now been completed to the satisfaction of the Exchange, the Company is subsequently no longer deemed Inactive
under TSX Venture Exchange Policy 2.6. The Company is now classified as a “Gold and Diamond Exploration”
company.

Subsequent to June 30, 2003 the company has announced the granting of an aggregate 1,150,000 incentive stock
options to certain directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company, pursuant to the Company’s stock
option plan. The options are exercisable for six months ( as to 300,000 options ) and two years ( as to 850,000
options ) at a price of $ 0.40 per share and are subject to the approval of the TSX Venture Exchange.
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Vault Minerals Inc.
For the quarter ended June 30,2003
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

Consulting

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 30,000

Other miscellaneous -
$30,000

Management fees

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 15,000

Professional fees

Accounting and audit $ 8,755

Legal 6,463

Other miscellaneous -
$15,118

During the six months ended June 30, 2003 the Company incurred property acquisition costs in the amount
of $304,962 related to the staking of claims in the James Bay Lowland area of Ontario. The company also
incurred expenses associated with the preparation of a geological report in the amount of § 13,001.
2. Related party transactions
During the period under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties
¢ Paid or accrued consulting fees to directors of the Company or companies related thereto, in the
amount of $ 30,000

¢ Paid or accrued management fees of $ 15,000 to a director of the Company

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.
During the six months ended June 30, 2003, 310,000 non-transferable share purchase warrants expired. Each
warrant had entitled the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $ 0.60 per share on or

before January §, 2003.

No other options, shares nor warrants were granted, issued nor exercised during the fiscal period under review.




4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

During the six months ended June 30, 2003 the company received regulatory approval and consolidated its
common shares on the basis of 6 common shares before consolidation becoming 1 common share after
consolidation and thereafter increasing the number of authorized common shares of the Company to
100,000,000 common shares without par value.

Included in issued share capital are 8,593 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and may
not be transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.

The Company has received advanced subscriptions in the amount of § 514,840 toward the brokered private
placement of up to 2,630,000 units (of which 1,350,000 shall be flow-though) at a price of $0.20 per unit,
for gross proceeds in the amount of § 526,000. Each unit will consist of a common share and a warrant
entitling the holder to purchase an additional common share for two years at § 0.30 per share. As
consideration, the brokerage agent shall be entitled to a commission of up to $ 20,800 and 156,000
additional units.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at June 30, 2003 1,399,561 $5,701,958
¢). Outstanding as at June 30, 2003 Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before January 21, 2004 155,000 $ 0.60 per share
d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares
Escrowed shares 8,593

List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary :

H. Barry Hemsworth Director

William Schmidt Director

Andrew Chater Director




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

1. General

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the un-audited financial statements and related notes of the
Company for the six months ended June 30, 2003.

2. Description of Business

The Company is incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia. The Company was deemed
inactive by the TSX Venture Exchange ("TSX-V") but was focused on the development of software for the medical
profession and ancillary fields but is currently focused on its reactivation as a mineral exploration and development
company. Based on the information available to date, the Company has not yet determined whether the mineral
properties contain economically recoverable reserves.

Subsequent to June 30, 2003 the Company completed a full reorganization, which included the acquisition of
Goldaur Resources Inc. (“Goldaur”), a privately owned Ontario company with two core mineral exploration projects
in Ontario. Pursuant to the acquisition, Goldaur has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Goldaur’s primary assets are the Attawapiskat Diamond Property situated in the Attawapiskat area in the James Bay
lowlands of Northern Ontario and the Lebel Gold Project consisting of 60 contiguous claim units strategically
located in the heart of the historic Kirkland Lake gold camp situate in the Kirkland Lake area, Ontario.

The Exchange declared the Company Inactive on November 21, 2001. The aforesaid property transaction
constitutes the basis for the Company’s reactivation plan that also included a name change during the period ended
June 30, 2003 from Vault Systems Inc. to Vault Minerals Inc. and a concurrent 6:1 consolidation of the Company’s
shares. The Company also announced a $ 526,000 private placement financing as part of the reorganization. As the
Company’s reactivation plan has been completed to the satisfaction of the Exchange, the Company is no longer
deemed Inactive under TSX Venture Exchange Policy 2.6. The Company is now classified as a “Gold and Diamond
Exploration” company.

The Attawapiskat Project — Diamonds

This 100% owned property is one contiguous 55,136 hectare block (140,000 acres) which lies from 40 to 70
kilometers southwest of the DeBeers mining company’s Victor kimberlite pipe. A diamond production decision for
the Victor pipe is expected by the end of this year.

Goldaur staked the core claim in early 2000. The following year a consortium of companies including Metalex,
Arctic Star, and Bid Red Diamond/Amtoro Joint Venture began acquiring land in the area, much of which is directly
tied onto the Vault claims. To date the consortium, under the direction of Chuck Fipke, has spent in excess of $4
million on this land and they report promising diamond indicator minerals from Kimberlites. Vault’s property
remains largely unexplored although samples collected in 2002 contain promising diamond indicator minerals. Pre
freeze-up reconnaissance work on this property is scheduled for September of this year with follow-up exploration to
begin early in the new year.

The Lebel Project — Gold

The Lebel project consists of 4 historic gold properties, 2 to 6 kilometers east of the town of Kirkland Lake. The
property is made up of 60 road accessible, contiguous claims that contain 8 shafts, including 2 past gold producers
along with numerous surface gold showings.




3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

The Company does not have operating revenues. Historically the Company has received revenues only from the
interest earned on cash reserves held. The Company expects to continue to rely upon equity financing as a
significant source of funding.

4. Subsequent events

Subsequent to June 30, 2003, the company has completed its acquisition of Goldaur Resources Ltd. and the
concurrent equity financing of 2,630,000 units at $ 0.20 per unit. Pursuant to the acquisition, Goldaur has become a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The aggregate consideration paid by the Company consists of 2,500,000
common shares and 2,500,000 share purchase warrants to be issued to the existing shareholders of Goldaur on a pro-
rata basis. The warrants have a term of two years and an exercise price equal to the lesser of § 1.50 per share or
300% of the price per share at which the Company completes its next equity financing. In addition, the Goldaur
shareholders are entitled to contingent rights to receive an additional 500,000 common shares if the Company has
not raised $1,000,000 of new equity financing by December 31, 2003 and a further 500,000 common shares if the
requisite $1,000,000 of new equity financing has not been raised by June 30, 2004. . The securities issued to the
Goldaur shareholders have no resale restrictions.

A finder’s fee of 100,000 shares was paid on the acquisition. The finder’s fee shares are subject to a hold period
expiring on November 23, 2003.

Concurrent with closing of the acquisition, the Company has completed a $§ 526,000 equity financing, with the
issuance of 2,630,000 units consisting of one common share and one warrant at a price of $ 0.20 per unit. Haywood
Securities Inc. shall receive a finder’s fee of $ 20,800 and 156,000 units of the Company. The shares and warrants
issued on the financing and as part of the finders fee are subject to a hold period expiring November 23, 2003.
1,350,000 of the units were issued on a flow-through basis.

As the Company’s reactivation plan has been completed to the satisfaction of the Exchange, the Company is no
longer deemed Inactive. The Company is now classified as a “Gold and Diamond Exploration” company.

Subsequent to June 30, 2003 the company has announced the granting of an aggregate 1,150,000 incentive stock
options to certain directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company, pursuant to the Company’s stock
option plan. The options are exercisable for six months ( as to 300,000 options ) and two years ( as to 850,000
options ) at a price of $ 0.40 per share and are subject to the approval of the TSX Venture Exchange.

5. Financing, principal purposes and milestones

The Company has reached agreement, subject to regulatory approval, for a non-brokered private placement of
2,630,000 units (of which 1,350,000 are flow-through) at a price of $ 0.20 per unit. Proceeds will be used for
staking mining claims and mineral exploration and development in northern Ontario and for working capital.

6. Liquidity and solvency

As at June 30, 2003 the company maintained a working capital deficiency balance of § $28,306. There is no

assurance that the Company will be successful in obtaining the required financing or that financing will be available
on terms and conditions acceptable to the company or that will not cause significant dilution to the shareholders.
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VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
INTERIM BALANCE SHEETS
[ Unaudited — prepared by management )

As at
March 31, December 31
2003 2002
ASSETS
Current
Cash $ 3,521 §$ 3,191
Receivables 6,668 1,872
10,189 5,063
Mineral Properties (Note 6) 265,000 -

§ 275,189 § 5,063

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities b 99.003 $ 134,844

Interest bearing advances

160,628 -
Shareholders' equity (deficiency)
Share capital (Note 3) 5,701,958 5,701,958
Subscriptions received in advance (Note 3) 189,455 -
Deficit _(5,875.855) _ (5.831.739)
15.558 (129.781)

§ 275,189 § 5,063

Nature and continuance of operations (Note 1)

On behalf of the Board:

""David Rees” Director “J. Michael Mackey” Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

INTERIM STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT
FOR THE FISCAL QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31

[ Unaudited — prepared by management )

2003 2002
EXPENSES
$ $

Consulting fees 15,000 20,000

Interest and bank charges 484 64

Investor relations 3,137 1,673

Listing and transfer agent fees 3,481 5,454

Management fees 7,500 7,500

Office and miscellaneous 1,908 597

Professional fees 9,918 16,936

Travel 2.688 -
Loss for the period (44,116) (52,224)

Deficit, beginning of year

Deficit, end of period

(5.831.739) (5,393.824)

$ (5,875,855) § (5,446,048)

Basic and diluted loss per common share

$ (0.01 § (00D

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

8,397,371 8,015,038

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

INTERIM STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31
{ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

2003 2002
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the year $ (44,116) $ (52,224)
Changes in non-cash working capital items:
Increase in accounts receivable (4,796) (5,473)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (35.841) (156,328)
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities (84.753) (214,025)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest bearing advances 160,628 -
Proceeds from issuance of share capital - 93,000
Subscriptions received in advance 189,455 -
Cash flows provided by financing activities 350,083 93.000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in mineral properties (265,000)
Investment in software - (107.440)
Cash flows used in investing activities (265,000) (107.440)
Change in cash during the period 330 (225,465)
Cash, beginning of period 3.191 423.849
Cash, end of period ‘ $ 3,521 § 195,384
Cash paid for interest during the perjod $ - 3 -
Cash paid for income taxes during the period $ - 3 -

Supplemental disclosure with respect to cash flows (Note 7)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

L NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia. The Company is deemed inactive
by the TSX Venture Exchange ("TSX-V"} but was focused on the development of software for the medical
profession and ancillary fields but is currently focused on its reactivation as a mineral exploration and development
company. Based on the information available to date, the Company has not yet determined whether the mineral
properties contain economically recoverable reserves.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued operations of the Company
are dependent on the Company's ability to receive continued financial support from related parties, to complete
public equity financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

March 31, December 31,

2003 2002
Deficit $ (5,875,855) § (5,831,739)
Working capital (deficiency) (88,814) (129,781)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of
revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Research and software development

The Company has expensed research costs as they were incurred. Software development costs were expensed as
incurred until technological feasibility of the underlying software product was achieved, at which time any additional
costs would be capitalized and amortized prospectively over their estimated economic life.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance

sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date.
Income and expenses are translated at rates which approximate those in effect on transaction dates.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC,

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd...)
Mineral Properties

The Company records its interest in mineral properties and areas of geological interest at cost. Costs relating to
these interests are capitalized on the basis of specific claim blocks or areas of geological interest until the properties
to which they relate are placed into production, sold or abandoned. These costs will be amortized over the proven
reserves available on the related property following commencement of production, or written off if the mineral
interests are sold or abandoned. The amounts shown for mineral properties represent costs incurred to date and are
not intended to reflect present or future values.

Deferred exploration costs

The Company defers expenditures directly attributable to the exploration and development of mineral properties,
pending a decision as to the commercial viability of a property. Amortization will be computed on the basis of units
produced in relation to the estimated reserves. Upon abandonment or sale of a project, all deferred costs relating to
the project will be expensed in the year of abandonment or sale.

The amounts shown for the deferred exploration costs shall represent costs incurred to date, and do not intend to
reflect present or future values.

The Company does not accrue the estimated future costs of maintaining its mineral properties in good standing.
Environmental protection and rehabilitation costs

Liabilities related to environmental protection and rehabilitation costs are accrued and charged to income when their
likelihood of incurrence is established. This includes future removal and site restoration costs as required due to
environmental law or contracts.

Stock-based compensation

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the new CICA Handbook Section 3870 “Stock-Based
Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments”, which recommends the fair value-based methodology for
measuring compensation costs. The new section also permits the use of the intrinsic value-based method, which
recognizes compensation cost for awards to employees only when the market price exceeds the exercise price at date
of grant, but requires pro-forma disclosure of earnings and earnings per share as if the fair value method had been
adopted. Any consideration paid by the option holders to purchase shares is credited to share capital. There is no
effect on the financial statements of either the current period or prior period presented.

Income taxes

The Company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future income taxes
are recognized for the future income tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying values and their respective income tax bases (temporary differences). Future income tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on future income tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is included in income in the period in which the change occurs. The amount of future income
tax assets recognized is limited to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd...)

Earnings (loss) per share

The Company uses the treasury stock method to compute the dilutive effect of options, warrants and similar
instruments. Under this method, the dilutive effect on earnings per share is recognized on the use of the proceeds
that could be obtained upon exercise of options and warrants and similar instruments. For the years presented, this
calculation proved to be anti-dilutive. It assumes that the proceeds would be used to purchase common shares at the
average market price during the period.

Basic eamings (loss) per share are calculated using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the
year,
Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current fiscal period’s presentation.

SHARE CAPITAL
Number
of Shares Amount
Authorized:
100,000,000 corﬁmon shares without par value
Issued:
Balance as at March 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 8,397,371 $ 5,701,958

Included in issued share capital are 51,561 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and may not be
transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.

The Company has received advanced subscriptions in the amount of § 189,455 toward the brokered private
placement of up to 2,600,000 units (of which 1,300,000 shall be flow-though) at a price of $0.20 per unit, for gross
proceeds in the amount of $ 520,000. Subject to regulatory approval, following a 6 old share for 1 new share
consolidation of the Company’s common shares (see note 11), each unit will consist of a common share and a
warrant entitling the holder to purchase an additional common share for two years at § 0.30 per share.  As
consideration, the brokerage agent shall be entitled to a commission of up to $ 20,800 and 156,000 additional units.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

4. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the TSX-V, is authorized to grant options to executive officers and
directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding common
stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of the Company's stock as
calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term of 5 years.

At March 31, 2003, the Company was designated inactive, pursuant to the policies of the TSX-V, and is prohibited
from granting new incentive stock options. In addition, principals of the Company are prohibited from exercising

previously granted stock options.

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Weighted
Average
Number Exercise
of Shares Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 nil $ nil
Granted - -
Expired/cancelled - -
Exercised - .
Qutstanding at March 31, 2003 nil $ nil

The following share purchase warrants were outstanding at March 31, 2003:

Number Exercise
of Shares Price Expiry Date
930,000 0.10 January 21, 2004

During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2003, 1,860,000 non-transferable share purchase warrants expired. Each
warrant had entitled the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $ 0.10 per share on or before

January 8, 2003.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

S. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2003, the Company entered into the following transactions with related
parties:

a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $15,000 to a director or a company related to a director of the Company.
b) Paid or accrued management fees of $7,500 to a director of the Company.

¢) Included in accounts payable at March 31, 2003 is $10,116 due to a company controlled by a director and to
directors of the Company.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

6. MINERAL PROPERTIES

During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2003 the Company incurred property acquisition costs in the amount of
$265,000 related to the staking of claims in the James Bay Lowland area of Ontario.

7. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS

During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2003, there were no significant non-cash transactions.

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency
or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of these financial instruments approximate
their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company currently conducts substantially all of its operations being the development of software for the medical
profession and ancillary fields in Canada in one business segment.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

10. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:

Quarter ended Year ended
March 31, December 31,
2003 2002
Loss for the period $ (44,116)) § (437,915)
Expected income tax (recovery) $ (17,470) $ (173,414)
Non-deductible items for tax purposes 621 3,109
Unrecognised benefit of non-capital losses 16,849 170,305
Income tax recovery 5 - S -
The significant components of the Company's future income tax assets are as follows:
Quarter ended Year ended
March 31, December 31,
2003 2002
Future incéme tax assets:
Non-capital loss carry-forwards $ 879,544 § 836,996
Resource expenditures 286,809 286.809
1,166,353 1,123,805
Valuation allowance (1.166,353) (1,123.805)
Net future income tax assets $ - 3 -

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future tax assets. It
is reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and manner of the reversal
of future tax liabilities.

At March 31, 2003, the Company had approximately $2,200,000 in non-capital losses expiring through 2009, which
are available for carry-forward to reduce future taxable income. Subject to certain restrictions, the Company has
certain resource expenditures totalling approximately $762,000 available to reduce taxable income of future years.
The potential tax benefit of these losses and resource expenditures have not been recorded in these financial
statements.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2003 AND DECEMBER 31, 2002

[ Unaudited — prepared by management ]

11.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has received shareholder approval for the consolidation of its common shares on the basis of 6
common shares before consclidation becoming 1 common share after consolidation and thereafter increasing the
number of authorized common shares of the Company to 100,000,000 common shares without par value.

The Company has received shareholder approval to change its name to Vault Minerals Inc.

The Company has entered into an agreement to acquire Goldaur Resources Inc., a privately held Ontario company.
The proposed acquisition is by way of statutory amalgamation under which a newly formed Ontario incorporated
subsidiary of the company would amalgamate with Goldaur. Under the amalgamation Goldaur shareholders will
received an aggregate 2.5 million shares (post-consolidation) of the Company. Goldaur shareholders will also
receive contingent rights to receive an additional 500,000 shares if the Company has not raise $ 1,000,000 of new
equity financing by December 31, 2003 and a further 500,000 shares if the requisite $ 1,000,000 of new equity
financing has not been raised by June 30, 2004. The Company has received the approvals of the shareholders and
the approvals of the Goldaur shareholders. The acquisition will form the basis of the company’s reactivation plan,
and is subject to regulatory approvals.

The Company has reached agreement, subject to regulatory approval, for the non-brokered private placement of
2,600,000 units (of which 1,300,000 are flow-through) at a price of § 0.20 per unit. (see note 3). Proceeds will be
used for staking mining claims and mineral exploration and developmnet in northern Ontario and for working
capital. The company is in negotiations for acquisition of additional interest in the area. If successful, this
acquisition will form the basis of the Company’s reactivation.
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Vault Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended March 31, 2603
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

Consulting

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 15,000

Other miscellaneous -
$ 15,000

Management fees

Related parties ( note 2 ) $7,500

Professional fees

Accounting and audit $5,150

Legal 4,668

Other miscellaneous -

$9,818

During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2003 the Company incurred property acquisition costs in the
amount of $265,000 related to the staking of claims in the James Bay Lowland area of Ontario.
2. Related party transactions
During the period under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties
¢ Paid or accrued consulting fees to directors of the Company or companies related thereto, in the
amount of § 15,000

e  Paid or accrued management fees of $ 7,500 to a director of the Company

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

In January 2002 the Company issued 1,860,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.05 per
unit. Each unit consisted of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share purchase
warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share until January 8§,

2003. During the fiscal quarter under review these warrants expired.

No other options, shares nor warrants were granted, issued nor exercised during the fiscal period under review.




Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at March 31, 2003 8,397,371 $5,701,958
¢). Outstanding as at March 31, 2003 Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before January 21, 2004 930,000

d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement

$ 0.10 per share

Number of shares

Escrowed shares 51,561
List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.
J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director
William Schmidt Director

Andrew Chater Ddirector




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

1. General

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the un-audited financial statements and related notes of the
Company for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2003.

2. Description of Business

The Company is incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia. The Company is deemed inactive
by the TSX Venture Exchange ("TSX-V") but was focused on the development of software for the medical
profession and ancillary fields but is currently focused on its reactivation as a mineral exploration and development
company. Based on the information available to date, the Company has not yet determined whether the mineral
properties contain economically recoverable reserves.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

The Company does not have operating revenues. Historically the Company has received revenues only from the
interest earned on cash reserves held. The Company expects to continue to rely upon equity financing as a
significant source of funding.

The Company has received advanced subscriptions in the amount of § 189,455 toward the non-brokered private
placement of up to 2,600,000 units (of which up to 1,300,000 shall be flow-though) at a price of $0.20 per unit, for
gross proceeds in the amount of $ 520,000. Subject to regulatory approval, following a 6 old share for 1 new share
consolidation of the Company’s common shares), each unit will consist of a common share and a warrant entitling
the holder to purchase an additional common share for two years at § 0.30 per share. As consideration, the
brokerage agent shall be entitled to a commission of up to $ 20,800 and 156,000 additional units.

4. Subsequent events

On March 14, 2003, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire Goldaur Resources Inc., a privately held
Ontario company. The proposed acquisition is by way of statutory amalgamation under which a newly formed
Ontario incorporated subsidiary of the Company would amalgamate with Goldaur. Under amalgamation Goldaur
shareholders will receive an aggregate of 2.5 million shares (post 6 for 1 consolidation) of the Company. Goldaur
shareholders will also receive contingent rights to receive an additional 500,000 shares if the Company has not raised
$1,000,000 of new equity financing by December 31, 2003 and a further 500,000 shares if the requisite $1,000,000
of new equity financing has not been raised by June 30,2004. The acquisition will form the basis of the Company’s
reactivation plan and is subject to all necessary shareholder and regulatory approvals, including the approval of
Goldaur shareholders.

Goldaur is a private company engaged in exploration for gold and diamonds. 1t’s Lebel Project consists of 60
contiguous mining claims located in Ontario’s historic Kirkland Lake gold camp. The property incorporates eight
inactive mining and exploration shafts, two of which the Bidgood and Moffat-Hall, were former small-scale gold




producers. Goldaur has identified a number of exploration targets on this property. Goldaur also owns 404 miming
claim units in northeastern Ontario that it acquired for the purposes of diamond exploration.

On May 20, 2003 the Company and Haywood Securities Ltd. have revised the terms of the Company’s previously
announced private placement as follows:

. 2,600,000 post consolidation shares (of which up to 1,300,000 are flow-through) at a price of $0.20 per
share for total proceeds of $520,000 with warrants attached to purchase 2,600,000 shares at a price of
$0.30 per share for a two year period,

. Haywood to receive a cash commission of $20,800 and 156,000 units.

The placement is conditionally acceptable to the TSX Venture Exchange.

At the Company’s AGM held on May 16th, 2003, shareholders approved:

n six old shares for one new share consolidation,

. Agreement dated March 13, 203 between the Company and Goldaur Resources Inc. whereby the Company
will acquire Goldaur (see the Company’s News Release dated March 14, 2003 for details of this acquisition),

] election of the following as directors; J. Michael Mackey, David Rees, Andrew Chater, H. Barry
Hemsworth, and William Schmidt,

] change of name to Vault Minerals Inc.,

*« amendment to existing stock option plan to 20% of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company post-
consolidation.

Upon completion of staking the Vault/Goldaur diamond property consists of 53,088 hectares in the James Bay area
of northern Ontario.

5. Financing, principal purposes and milestones

The Company has reached agreement, subject to regulatory approval, for a non-brokered private placement of
2,600,000 units (of which 1,300,000 are flow-through) at a price of $ 0.20 per unit. Proceeds will be used for
staking mining claims and mineral exploration and development in northern Ontario and for working capital.

6. Liquidity and solvency

As at March 31, 2003 the company maintained a working capital deficiency balance of $ $91,489. There is no

assurance that the Company will be successful in obtaining the required financing or that financing will be available
on terms and conditions acceptable to the company or that will not cause significant dilution to the shareholders.
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Vault Systems Inc.
Interim Balance Sheet

As at
September 30, December 31,
2002 2001
Assets
Current
Cash $9,609 $423,849
Receivables 2,582 5,396
12,191 429,245
Investment in software technology 196,590
License 1 1
196,591 1
$208,782 $429,246
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 332,100 $214,111
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital 5,701,958 5,515,958
Subscriptions received in advance 93,000
Deficit (5,525,276) (5,393,823)
176,682 215,135
$208,782 $429,246

Approved “J, Michael Mackey””
Director

Approved  “David Rees”
Director




Vault Systems Inc.

Interim Statement of Operations and Deficit

Nine Months ended Fiscal quarter ended
September 30, September 30,

2002 2001 2002 2001
Expenses
Amortization $ - $9.128 $ - $3,043
Bank charges and interest 191 615 23 471
Consulting 50,000 117,500 15,000 37,500
Investor relations 14,975 28,271 5,719 2,586
Listing and transfer fees 9,197 10,715 2,503 (6,237)
Management fees 22,500 45,000 7,560 15,000
Office and miscellaneous 4,909 4,619 2,181 827
Professional fees 27,733 182,453 4,542 85,343
Research and development 103,183 (23,500)
Travel 1,948 4,320 1,351 1,472
Loss for the period before other (131,453) (505,804) (38,819) (116,505)
items
Other items
Write-down of investment in licence (499,999) (499,999)

(131,453)  (1,005,803) (38,819) (616,504)
Deficit, beginning of period (5,393,823)  (4,719,654) (5,487,057) (5,108,953)
Deficit, end of period $(5,525,876)  $(5,725,457)  $(5,525,876) $(5,725,457)
Loss per share $(0.02) $(0.19) $(0.01) $0.11)

S wrrTmT. MATTMANTN DY A AN A CDAENT




Vault Systems Inc.
Interim Statements of Cash Flows

Nine Months ended
September 30,

Fiscal quarter ended
September 30,

2002 2001 2002 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss for the period $(131,453) $(1,005,803) $(38,819)  $(616,504)
{tem not affecting cash:
Amortization 9,128 3,043
Write-down of investment in license 499,999 499,999
Changes in non-cash operating working capital
items:
Accounts receivable 2,814 7,833 5,371 33,366
Prepaid expenses 90,753
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (79,661) 131,322 16,271 26,846
Due to directors (102,350) 97,350 56,175
Cash flows used in operating activities (310,650) (169,418) 17,177 2,924
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of capital stock 93,000 150,000
Cash flows provided from financing activities 93,000 150,000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition costs of software (196,590)
Cash flows provided from investing activities (196,590)
(Decrease) in cash during the period (414,240) (19,418) (17,177) 2,924
Cash, beginning of period 423,849 24,060 26,786 1,718
Cash, end of period $9,609 $4.642 $9,609 $4,642
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Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of British Columbia. The Company was deemed to be
inactive by the Canadian Venture Exchange (“CDNX") but is currently focused on the development of
software for the medical profession and ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the
development stage.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued
operations of the Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial support
from related parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

As at Sept. 30,

2002
Deficit $ (5,525,276)
Working capital ( deficiency ) $(19,909)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of
these financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

Capital assets
Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided for annually

using the declining balance method at the following rates. In the year of acquisition, capital assets are
amortized at 50% of the applicable rates.

Software 100%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and office equipment 20%

In the year of acquisition, capital assets are amortized at 50% of the above rates

UNAUDITED - PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d.....)
Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Investments in software and license

Investments in software and license are stated at cost and are adjusted to net realizable value if there is a
decline in value that is other than temporary. Amortization will be recorded on a 3-year straight-line basis
commencing in the year of commercialization of the related product. In the prior year management
decided to write-down the carrying value of the license to a nominal value of § 1.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Income
and expenses are translated at rates that approximate those in effect on transaction dates.

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company grants options pursuant to the policies of the CDNX as described in Note 5. No
compensation expense is recognized when stock options are granted. Any consideration paid on exercise
of stock options is credited to capital stock.

Segment information

The Company currently conducts substantially all of its operations in Canada in one business segment.

Income taxes

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method,
future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
expected to apply when the asset is realized or the liability settled. The effect on future tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that substantive enactment or
enactment occurs. To the extent that the Company does not consider it more likely than not that a future
tax asset will be recovered, it provides a valuation allowance against the excess.

Earnings (loss) per share

In accordance with the revised recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants, the
Company changed from the imputed earnings approach to the treasury stock method, to compute the
dilutive effect of options, warrants and similar instruments. Under this method the dilutive effect on
earnings per share is recognized on the use of the proceeds that could be obtained upon exercise of options
and warrants, It assumes that the proceeds would be used to purchase common shares at the average
market price during the period. For loss per share the dilutive effect has not been presented as it proved to
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Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d.....)

be anti-dilutive. The new standard has been applied on a retroactive basis and had no material impact on
the amounts presented.

Earning (loss) per share is calculated using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the
year.

3. LICENCES
The Company had entered into an agreement whereby is acquired a license to procurement technology.

During the prior fiscal year, the agreement was terminated Consequently, all costs related to the
investment in the license were written-off to operations.

4, SHARE CAPITAL
Number

of Shares Amount
Authorized:
100,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued:
Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958
Exercise of share purchase warrants - for cash 1,000,000 150,000
Balance as at December 31, 2001 5,607,371 $ 5,515,958
Issued for cash pursuant to non-brokered private
placements 2,790,000 186,000
Balance as at September 30, 2002 8,397,371 $ 5,701,958

Included in issued share capital are 51,561 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and
may not be transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.

In January 2001, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.15 per share for total
cash proceeds of $150,000 pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had received subscriptions in the amount of $93,000. In January
2002 the Company issued 1,860,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.05 per unit.
Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share purchase
warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share until
January 8, 2003.




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

4. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d.....)

In January 2002 the Company issued 930,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.10 per
unit for proceeds of $93,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-
transferrable share purchase warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a
price of $0.10 per share until January 21, 2004

5. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the CDNX, is authorized to grant options to executive
officers and directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and
outstanding common stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of
the Company's stock as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term
of 5 years.

As at September 30, 2002, the Company was designated inactive, pursuant to the policies of the CDNX,
and was prohibited from granting new incentive stock options. In addition, principals of the Company are
prohibited from exercising previously granted stock options. On February 21, 2002 options to purchase
310,000 shares at an exercise price of $ 1.55 per share expired.

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Number Weighted

of Shares Average

Exercise

Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2001 310,000 $1.55
Granted - -
Expired/cancelled (310,000) : -
Exercised - -

Qutstanding at September 30, 2002 - 5 -




Vault Systems Ine.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

5. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (cont’d.....)

The followingitable summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable warrants at
September 30, 2002:

Warrants Outstanding and Exercisable

Average Weighted

Remaining Average

Contractual Exercise

Number Life Price
Outstanding (In Years) Per Share
1,860,000 0.3 0.10
930,000 13 0.10
2,790,000 0.6 $0.10

A summary of share warrant activity and information concerning warrants at Sept. 30, 2002 is as follows:

30 Sept 2002

Balance, beginning of year 1,500,000
Granted 2,790,000
Exercised

Expired (1,500,000)
Balance, end of year 2,790,000

During the 2001 fiscal year the Company acquired regulatory approval to extend the expiry date of
1,500,000 warrants to April 5, 2002, exercisable at a new exercise price of $§ 2.00 per share. These
warrants expired April 5, 2002.

In conjunction with private placement units issued in January 2002, the Company issued 1,860,000 non-
transferable share purchase warrants entitling the holder to purchase one additional common share at a
price of $0.10 per share unti! January 8, 2003.

In conjunction with private placement units issued in January 2002, the Company issued 930,000 non-

transferable share purchase warrants entitling the holder to purchase one additional common share at a
price of $0.10 per share until January 21, 2004.

TINTATTIVTEDN . DREPARETN RY MANAGEMENT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interimm Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

6. MINERAL PROPERTIES

The Company has maintained a 100% interest in the Lock #1 - #4 Eagle and Raven claims. These claims
are located in the Queen Charlotte Islands, British Columbia. During 1988, the land surrounding the
Company's claims was included in an area designated by the Government of British Columbia as a park
reserve. During the year ended December 31, 2000, management of the Company determined that there
was uncertainty relating to the recoverability of the mineral properties and accordingly, all related costs
were written-down to reflect the impairment in value. Management is monitoring the progress of similar
claims and believes previous costs incurred may be recovered. However, the ultimate resolution of this
matter is uncertain at this time.

The Company charges environmental protection costs and land rehabilitation program costs to operations

in the year of incurrence. At this time, the Company does not foresee the necessity to make any material
expenditures in this area.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the nine months ended September 30, 2002, the Company entered into the following transactions
with related parties:

a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $45,000 to directors or a companies controlled by a director of
the Company.

b) Paid or accrued management fees of $22,500 to a director of the Company.

c) Included in accounts payable at September 30, 2002 is $32,100 due to directors or companies

controlled by a director.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value
which represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

8. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS

During the nine months ended September 30, 2002, there were no significant non-cash transactions.

ITINNATTNITEN - PREFPARFN RY MANAGFEFMENT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2002

9. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:

Nine months
ended
Sept. 30, 2002

Loss for the period 3 (131,453)
Income tax recovery at statutory rate $ 52,082
Non-deductible items for tax purposes (3,805)
Unrecognised benefit of non-capital losses (48.277)
Income tax recovery $ -

The significant components of the Company’s future tax assets are as follows:

v

Future income tax assets:

$ -
Capital assets
Non-capital loss carry forwards 812,210
Mineral properties written-off 147,927
Valuation allowance (960,137)

Net Future income tax assets $ -

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future

tax assets. It is reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and
manner of the reversal of future tax liabilities.

At September 30, 2002, the Company had approximately $2,050,000 in non-capital losses expiring at
various dates beginning in 2002, which are available for carry forward to reduce future income for tax
purposes. Subject to certain restrictions, the Company has further resource and development exploration
expenditures totaling approximately $373,000 available to reduce taxable income of future years. The
potential tax benefit of these losses has not been recorded in these financial statements.
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Vault Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended September 30, 2002
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Schedule A

Financial information prepared in accordance with Section 1751 of the C.I.C.A. Handbook or CICA
Accounting Guideline AcG-11 Enterprises in the Development Stage as per attached:

1.

2.

Interim Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2002 with comparative figures for the period ended December 31,
2001

Interim Statements of Loss and Deficit for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended September 30,
2002 and 2001

Interim Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended September 30, 2002
and 2001

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

Consulting

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 45,000

Other miscellaneous 5,000
$ 50,000

Management fees

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 22,500

Professional fees

Accounting and audit $14,050

Legal 3,976

Other miscellaneous 4,707
$27,733

2. Related party transactions

During the period under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties

e  Paid or accrued consulting fees to directors of the Company in the amount of § 45,000
e  Paid or accrued management fees of $ 22,500 to a director of the Company

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

In January 2002 the Company issued 1,860,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.05 per
unit. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share purchase
warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share until
January 8, 2003.




In January 2002 the Company issued 930,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.10 per unit
for proceeds of $93,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable
share purchase warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per
share until January 21, 2004

4, Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at September 30, 2002 8,397,371 $ 5,701,958
c¢). Outstanding as at Septeember 30, 2002 Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before January 8, 2003 1,860,000 $ 0.10 per share
Exercisable on or before January 21, 2004 930,000 $ 0.10 per share
2,790,000
d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares
Escrowed shares 51,561

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director

William Schmidt Director




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

1. General

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the un-audited financial statements and related notes of the
Company for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2002.

2. Description of Business

The Company’s principal business is the development and marketing of software for the medical profession.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

The Company does not have operating revenues. Historically the Company has received revenues only from the
interest earned on cash reserves held. The Company expects to continue to rely upon equity financing as a
significant source of funding.

During the fiscal quarter under review, the Company raised did not raise or borrow any funds..

The Company is financing the development of TeMR (Total Electronic Medical Reporting Solution) and a working
prototype is operational. TeMR will provide health care organizations with solutions to improve on the managed
delivery of clinical services to effect substantial cost savings and better patient outcomes. The TeMR solution
provides medical records management and health care business management in an efficient automated
environment.

The next step will be to raise funding by equity financing to move forward the commercialization of the TeMR
solution with the Beta test sites, including Cambie Surgery Centre of Vancouver, BC.’s first private medical
centere which is doubling its present facility.

4. Subsequent events

There were no material subsequent events

5. Financing, principal purposes and milestones

During the fiscal quarter under review the company did not raise or borrow any funds.

6. Liquidity and solvency

The Company does not presently have sufficient financial resources to undertake commercialization of its TeMR
solution, which will depend upon the Company’s ability to obtain financing through joint venturing, private
placement financing, public financing or other means. As at September 30, 2002 the company maintained a
working capital deficiency balance of $ $19,909. There is no assurance that the Company will be successful in

obtaining the required financing or that financing will be available on terms and conditions acceptable to the
company or that will not cause significant dilution to the shareholders.
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Vault Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended September 30, 2002
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Schedule A

Financial information prepared in accordance with Section 1751 of the C.1.C.A. Handbook or CICA
Accounting Guideline AcG-11 Enterprises in the Development Stage as per attached:

1. Interim Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2002 with comparative figures for the period ended December 31,
2001

2. Interim Statements of Loss and Deficit for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended September 30,
2002 and 2001

3. Interim Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended September 30, 2002

and 2001

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

Consulting

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 45,000

Other miscellaneous 5,000
$ 50,000

Management fees

Related parties ( note 2) $ 22,500

Professional fees

Accounting and audit $ 14,050

Legal 8,976

Other miscellaneous 4,707
$27,733

2. Related party transactions

During the period under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties

»  Paid or accrued consulting fees to directors of the Company in the amount of § 45,000

o Paid or accrued management fees of $ 22,500 to a director of the Company

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

In January 2002 the Company issued 1,860,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.05 per
unit. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share purchase
warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share until
January 8, 2003.




In January 2002 the Company issued 930,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.10 per unit
for proceeds of $93,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable

share purchase warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per
share until January 21, 2004

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at September 30, 2002 8,397,371 $ 5,701,958
¢). Outstanding as at Septeember 30, 2002 Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before January 8, 2003 1,860,000 $ 0.10 per share
Exercisable on or before January 21, 2004 930,000 $ 0.10 per share
2,790,000
d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares
Escrowed shares 51,561

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director

William Schmidt Director




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

1. General

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the un-audited financial statements and related notes of the
Company for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2002.

2. Description of Business

The Company’s principal business is the development and marketing of software for the medical profession.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

The Company does not have operating revenues. Historically the Company has received revenues only from the
interest earned on cash reserves held. The Company expects to continue to rely upon equity financing as a
significant source of funding.

During the fiscal quarter under review, the Company raised did not raise or borrow any funds..

The Company is financing the development of TeMR (Total Electronic Medical Reporting Solution) and a working
prototype is operational. TeMR will provide health care organizations with solutions to improve on the managed
delivery of clinical services to effect substantial cost savings and better patient outcomes. The TeMR solution
provides medical records management and health care business management in an efficient automated
environment.

The next step will be to raise funding by equity financing to move forward the commercialization of the TeMR
solution with the Beta test sites, including Cambie Surgery Centre of Vancouver, BC.’s first private medical
centere which is doubling its present facility.

4. Subsequent events

There were no material subsequent events

5. Financing, principal purposes and milestones

During the fiscal quarter under review the company did not raise or borrow any funds.

6. Liquidity and solvency

The Company does not presently have sufficient financial resources to undertake commercialization of its TeMR
solution, which will depend upon the Company’s ability to obtain financing through joint venturing, private
placement financing, public financing or other means. As at September 30, 2002 the company maintained a
working capital deficiency balance of § $19,909. There is no assurance that the Company will be successful in

obtaining the required financing or that financing will be available on terms and conditions acceptable to the
company or that will not cause significant dilution to the shareholders.
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Vault Systems Inc.
Interim Balance Sheet

As at
June 30, December 31,
2002 2001
Assets
Current
Cash $26,185 $423,849
Receivables : 7,953 5,396
34,138 429,245
Investment in software technology 196,590
License 1 1
196,591 1
$230,729 $429,246
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $15,828 $214,111
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital 5,701,958 5,515,958
Subscriptions received in advance 93,000
Deficit (5,487,057) (5,393,823)
214,901 215,135
$230,729 $429.246

Approved  “J. Michael Mackey””
Director

Approved “David Rees”
Director




Vault Systems Inc.

Interim Statement of Operations and Deficit

Six Months ended

Fiscal quarter ended

June 30, June 30,
2002 2001 2002 2001

Expenses

Amortization 3 - $6,085 $ - $3,042
Bank charges and interest 768 143 704 40
Consulting 35,000 80,000 15,000 37,500
Investor relations 9,255 25,685 7,583 8,742
Listing and transfer fees 6,694 16,952 1,240 13,885
Management fees 15,000 30,000 7,500 15,000
Office and miscellaneous 2,728 3,792 2,129 1,533
Professional fees 23,191 97,110 6,255 93,551
Research and development 126,683 50,000
Travel 598 2,849 598 1,395
Loss for the period (93,234) (389,299) (41,009) (224,688)
Deficit, beginning of period (5,393,823) (4,719,654) (5,446,048) (4,884,265)
Deficit, end of period $(5,487,057)  $(5,108,953)  $(5,487,057) $(5,108,953)
Loss per share $(0.01) $(0.07) $(0.01) $(0.04)
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Vault Systems Inc.

Interim Statements of Cash Flows

Six Months ended
June 30,

2002 2001

Fiscal quarter ended

June 30,

2002 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss for the period
Item not affecting cash:

$(93,234)  $(389,299)

$(41,009)  $(224,688)

Amortization 6,085 3,042
Changes in non-cash operating working capital
items:
Accounts receivable (2,557) (25,533) 2,915 7,061
Receivable from directors 12,325
Prepaid expenses 90,753 90,951
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (103,433) 104,477 (41,955) 64,413
Due to directors (94,850) 41,175 30,475

Cash flows used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of capital stock

(294,074)  (172,342)

(80,049) (16,421)

Cash flows provided from financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition costs of software

(89,150)

Cash flows provided from investing activities

93,000 150,000
93,000 150,000
(196,590)
(196,590)

(Decrease) in cash during the period

Cash, beginning of period

(397,664) (22,342)

423,849 24,060

(169,199) (16,421)

195,384 18,139

Cash, end of period

$26,185 - $1,718

$26,185 $1,718




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of British Columbia. The Company was deemed to be
inactive by the Canadian Venture Exchange (“CDNX") but is currently focused on the development of
software for the medical profession and ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the
development stage.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued
operations of the Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial support
from related parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

As at June 30,

2002
Deficit $(5,487,057)
Working capital $ 18,310

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of
these financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

Capital assets
Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided for annually

using the declining balance method at the following rates. In the year of acquisition, capital assets are
amortized at 50% of the applicable rates.

Software 100%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and office equipment 20%

In the year of acquisition, capital assets are amortized at 50% of the above rates




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d.....)

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
Investments in software and license

Investments in software and license are stated at cost and are adjusted to net realizable value if there is a
decline in value that is other than temporary. Amortization will be recorded on a 3-year straight-line basis
commencing in the year of commercialization of the related product. In the prior year management
decided to write-down the carrying value of the license to a nominal value of § 1.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities are transiated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Income
and expenses are translated at rates that approximate those in effect on transaction dates.

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company grants options pursuant to the policies of the CDNX as described in Note 5. No
compensation expense is recognized when stock options are granted. Any consideration paid on exercise
of stock options is credited to capital stock.

Segment information
The Company currently conducts substantially all of its operations in Canada in one business segment.
Income taxes

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method,
future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
expected to apply when the asset is realized or the liability settled. The effect on future tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that substantive enactment or
enactment occurs. To the extent that the Company does not consider it more likely than not that a future
tax asset will be recovered, it provides a valuation allowance against the excess.

Earnings (loss) per share

In accordance with the revised recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants, the
Company changed from the imputed earnings approach to the treasury stock method, to compute the
dilutive effect of options, warrants and similar instruments. Under this method the dilutive effect on
earnings per share is recognized on the use of the proceeds that could be obtained upon exercise of options
and warrants. It assumes that the proceeds would be used to purchase common shares at the average
market price during the period. For loss per share the dilutive effect has not been presented as it proved to




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d.....)

be anti-dilutive. The new standard has been applied on a retroactive basis and had no material impact on
the amounts presented.

Earning (loss) per share is calculated using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the
year.

3. LICENCES

The Company had entered into an agreement whereby is acquired a license to procurement technology.
During the prior fiscal year, the agreement was terminated Consequently, all costs related to the
investment in the license were written-off to operations.

4, SHARE CAPITAL
Number

of Shares Amount
Authorized:
100,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued:
Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958
Exercise of share purchase warrants — for cash 1,000,000 150,000
Balance as at December 31, 2001 5,607,371 $5,515,958
Issued for cash pursuant to non-brokered private
placements 2,790,000 186,000
Balance as at June 30, 2002 8,397,371 $5,701,958

Included in issued share capital are 51,561 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and
may not be transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.

In January 2001, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.15 per share for total
cash proceeds of $150,000 pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had received subscriptions in the amount of $93,000. In January
2002 the Company issued 1,860,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.05 per unit.
Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share purchase
warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share until
January 8, 2003.




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

4. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d.....)

In January 2002 the Company issued 930,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.10 per
unit for proceeds of $93,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-
transferrable share purchase warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a
price of $0.10 per share until January 21, 2004

5. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the CDNX, is authorized to grant options to executive
officers and directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and
outstanding common stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of
the Company's stock as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term
of 5 years.

As at June 30, 2002, the Company was designated inactive, pursuant to the policies of the CDNX, and
was prohibited from granting new incentive stock options. In addition, principals of the Company are
prohibited from exercising previously granted stock options. On February 21, 2002 options to purchase
310,000 shares at an exercise price of $ 1.55 per share expired.

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Number Weighted

of Shares Average

Exercise

Price

Qutstanding at December 31, 2001 310,000 $1.55
Granted - -
Expired/cancelled (310,000) -
Exercised - .

Qutstanding at June 30, 2002 - 5§ -




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

5. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (cont’d.....)

The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable warrants at June 30,
2002:

Warrants Outstanding and Exercisable

Average Weighted

Remaining. Average

Contractual Exercise

Number . Life Price
Outstanding {In Years) Per Share
1,860,000 0.5 0.10
930,000 1.6 0.10
4.290.000 0.9 $0.10

A summary of share warrant activity and information concerning warrants at June 30, 2002 is as follows:

30 Jun 2002
Balance, beginning of year 1,500,000
Granted 2,790,000
Exercised
Expired (1,500,000)
Balance, end of year 2,790,000

During the 2001 fiscal year the Company acquired regulatory approval to extend the expiry date of
1,500,000 warrants to April 5, 2002, exercisable at a new exercise price of $§ 2.00 per share. These
warrants expired April 5, 2002,

In conjunction with private placement units issued in January 2002, the Company issued 1,860,000 non-
transferable share purchase warrants entitling the holder to purchase one additional common share at a
price of $0.10 per share until January §, 2003.

In conjunction with private placement units issued in January 2002, the Company issued 930,000 non-

transferable share purchase warrants entitling the holder to purchase one additional common share at a
price of $0.10 per share until January 21, 2004.
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Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements

June 30, 2002

6. MINERAL PROPERTIES

The Company has maintained a 100% interest in the Lock #1 - #4 Eagle and Raven claims. These claims
are located in the Queen Charlotte Islands, British Columbia. During 1988, the land surrounding the
Company's claims was included in an area designated by the Government of British Columbia as a park
reserve. During the year ended December 31, 2000, management of the Company determined that there
was uncertainty relating to the recoverability of the mineral properties and accordingly, all related costs
were written-down to reflect the impairment in value. Management is monitoring the progress of similar
claims and believes previous costs incurred may be recovered. However, the ultimate resolution of this
matter is uncertain at this time.

The Company charges environmental protection costs and land rehabilitation program costs to operations

in the year of incurrence. At this time, the Company does not foresee the necessity to make any material
expenditures in this area.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the six months ended June 30, 2002, the Company entered into the following transactions with
related parties:

a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $30,000 to directors or a companies controlled by a director of
the Company.

b) Paid or accrued management fees of $15,000 to a director of the Company.

c) Included in accounts payable at June 30, 2002 is $7,500 due to directors or companies controltied

by a director.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value
which represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

8. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS

During the six months ended June 30, 2002, there were no significant non-cash transactions.




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

9. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:

Six months

ended

June 30, 2002
Loss for the period $ (93,234)

Income tax recovery at statutory rate $ 38,785
Non-deductible items for tax purposes (3,996)
Unrecognised benefit of non-capital losses (34,789)

Income tax recovery $ -

The significant components of the Company’s future tax assets are as follows:

Future income tax assets:

$ -
Capital assets
Non-capital loss carry forwards 802,048
Mineral properties written-off 155,320
Valuation allowance {957,368)

Net Future income tax assets $ -

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future
tax assets. It is reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and
manner of the reversal of future tax liabilities.

At June 30, 2002, the Company had approximately $1,928,000 in non-capital losses expiring at various
dates beginning in 2002, which are available for carry forward to reduce future income for tax purposes.
Subject to certain restrictions, the Company has further resource and development exploration
expenditures totaling approximately $373,000 available to reduce taxable income of future years. The
potential tax benefit of these losses has not been recorded in these financial statements.
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Vault Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended June 30, 2002
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Schedule A

Financial information prepared in accordance with Section 1751 of the C.I.C.A. Handbook or CICA
Accounting Guideline AcG-11 Enterprises in the Development Stage as per attached:

1. Interim Consolidated Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2002 with comparative figures for the period ended

December 31, 2001

2. Interim Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended June

30, 2002 and 2001

3. Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended June 30,

2002 and 2001

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

Consulting

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 30,000

Other miscellaneous 5,000
$ 35,000

Management fees

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 15,000

Professional fees

Accounting and audit $ 11,300

Legal 7,184

Other miscellaneous 4,707 .
$ 23,191

2. Related party transactions

During the period under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties

o  Paid or accrued consulting fees to directors of the Company in the amount of § 30,000
¢ Paid or accrued management fees of $ 15,000 to a director of the Company

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that

represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

In January 2002 the Company issued 1,860,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.05 per
unit. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share purchase

warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share until

January 8, 2003.




In January 2002 the Company issued 930,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.10 per unit
for proceeds of $93,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable
share purchase warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per

share until January 21, 2004

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at June 30, 2002 8,397,371 $ 5,701,958
¢). Outstanding as at June 30, 2002 Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before January 8, 2003 1,860,000 $0.10 per share
Exercisable on or before January 21, 2004 930,000 $ 0.10 per share
2,790,000

d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement

Number of shares

Escrowed shares 51,561
S. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.
J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director

William Schmidt Director




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

1. General

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes of the
Company for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2002.

2. Description of Business

The Company’s principal business is the development and marketing of software for the medical
profession.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

The Company does not have operating revenues. Historically the Company has received revenues only
from the interest earned on cash reserves held. The Company expects to continue to rely upon equity
financing as a significant source of funding.

During the fiscal quarter under review, the Company raised did not raise or borrow any funds..

The Company is financing the development of TeMR (Total Electronic Medical Reporting Solution) and a
working prototype is operational. TeMR will provide health care organizations with solutions to improve
on the managed delivery of clinical services to effect substantial cost savings and better patient outcomes.
The TeMR solution provides medical records management and health care business management in an
efficient automated environment.

The next step will be to raise funding by equity financing to move forward the commercialization of the
TeMR solution with the Beta test sites, including Cambie Surgery Centre of Vancouver, BC.’s first private
medical centere which is doubling its present facility.

4. Subsequent events

There were no material subsequent events

5. Financing, principal purposes and milestones

During the fiscal quarter under review the company did not raise or borrow any funds.

6. Liquidity and solvency

The Company does not presently have sufficient financial resources to undertake commercialization of its
TeMR solution, which will depend upon the Company’s ability to obtain financing through joint venturing,
private placement financing, public financing or other means. As at June 30, 2002 the company maintained
a working capital balance of $ $18,310. There is no assurance that the Company will be successful in

obtaining the required financing or that financing will be available on terms and conditions acceptable to
the company or that will not cause significant dilution to the shareholders.
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Vault Systems Inc.
Interim Balance Sheet

As at
March 31, December 31,
2002 2001
Assets
Current
Cash $195,384 $423,849
Receivables 10,869 5,396
206,253 429,245
Investment in software 107,440
License 1 1
107,442 1
$313,694 $429,246
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities © $57,783 $214,111
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital 5,701,958 5,515,958
Subscriptions received in advance 93,000
Deficit (5,446,047) (5,393,823)
255,911 215,135
$313,694 $429,246

Approved  “J. Michael Mackey””
Director

Approved  “David Rees”
Director




Vault Systems Inc.

Interim Statement of Operations and Deficit

For the fiscal quarters and
year-to-date periods ended

March 31,
2001 2000

Expenses

Amortization $ - $3,043
Bank charges and interest 64 103
Consulting 20,000 42,500
Investor relations 1,673 16,943
Listing and transfer fees 5,454 3,067
Management fees 7,500 15,000
Office and miscellaneous 597 2,259
Professional fees 16,936 3,559
Research and development - 76,683
Travel - 1,454
Loss for the period 52,224 164,611
Deficit, beginning of period (5,393,823) (4,719,654)
Deficit, end of period $(5,446,047) $(4,884,265)
Loss per share $(0.01) $(0.03)




Vault Systems Inc.
Interim Statements of Cash Flows

For the fiscal quarters and
year-to-date periods ended
March 31
2002 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss for the period
Item not affecting cash:

$(52,224) $(164,611)

Amortization - 3,043
Changes in non-cash operating working capital items:
Accounts receivable (5,473) (32,684)
Receivable from directors - (12,235)
Prepaid expenses - (198)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (156,328) 40,064
Due to directors - 10,700
Cash flows used in operating activities (214,025) (155,921)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Shares issued for cash 93,000 150,000
Cash flows provided from financing activities 93,000 150,000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in software (107,440)
Deferred acquisition costs - 150,000
Cash flows provided from investing activities (107,440) 150,000
Increase (decrease) in cash during the period (228,465) (5,921)
Cash, beginning of period 423,849 24,060
Cash, end of period $195,384 $18,139
Cash paid for interest during the period $ - $ -
Cash paid for income taxes during the period $ - 3 -

IINATUDITED - PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of British Columbia. The Company was deemed to be
inactive by the Canadian Venture Exchange (“CDNX”) but is currently focused on the development of
software for the medical profession and ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the
development stage.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued
operations of the Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial support
from related parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

As at March 31,

2002
Deficit $ (5,446,047)
Working capital $ 148,470

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of
these financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

Capital assets
Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided for annually

using the declining balance method at the following rates. In the year of acquisition, capital assets are
amortized at 50% of the applicable rates.

Software 100%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and office equipment 20%

In the year of acquisition, capital assets are amortized at 50% of the above rates

Comparative figures




Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d.....)

Investments in software and license

Investments in software and license are stated at cost and are adjusted to net realizable value if there is a
decline in value that is other than temporary. Amortization will be recorded on a 3-year straight-line basis
commencing in the year of commercialization of the related product. In the prior year management
decided to write-down the carrying value of the license to a nominal value of § 1.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Income
and expenses are translated at rates that approximate those in effect on transaction dates.

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company grants options pursuant to the policies of the CDNX as described in Note 5. No
compensation expense is recognized when stock options are granted. Any consideration paid on exercise
of stock options is eredited to capital stock.

Segment information
The Company currently conducts substantially all of its operations in Canada in one business segment.

Income taxes

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method,
future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Future tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
expected to apply when the asset is realized or the liability settled. The effect on future tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that substantive enactment or
enactment occurs. To the extent that the Company does not consider it more likely than not that a future
tax asset will be recovered, it provides a valuation allowance against the excess.

Earnings (loss) per share

In accordance with the revised recommendations of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants, the
Company changed from the imputed eamings approach to the treasury stock method, to compute the
dilutive effect of options, warrants and similar instruments. Under this method the dilutive effect on
earnings per share is recognized on the use of the proceeds that could be obtained upon exercise of options
and warrants. It assumes that the proceeds would be used to purchase common shares at the average
market price during the period. For loss per share the dilutive effect has not been presented as it proved to
be anti-dilutive. The new standard has been applied on a retroactive basis and had no material impact on
the amounts presented.




Earning (loss) per share is calculated using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the
year. :

Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

3. LICENCES

The Company had entered into an agreement with INToc Software Corporation (“INToo”) whereby the
Company acquired a license to the eMedicalexplorer procurement technology. As consideration, the
Company paid $500,000, and under certain terms and conditions, was to issue 7,000,000 common shares
to INToo and related parties, and was to also issue a warrant enabling the holders to purchase a further
6,000,000 common shares exercisable for a period of two years at a price of $1.00 per share. During the
prior year, as some of the terms and conditions were not fulfilled, the agreement was terminated and
accordingly no common shares or warrants were issued. Consequently, all costs related to the investment
in the license have been written-off to operations.

4. SHARE CAPITAL

Number

of Shares Amount
Authorized:
100,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued:
Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958
Exercise of share purchase warrants — for cash 1,000,000 150,000
Balance as at December 31, 2001 5,607,371 $5,515,958
Issued for cash pursuant to non-brokered private
placements 2,790,000 186,000
Balance as at March 31, 2002 8,397,371 $ 5,701,958

Included in issued share capital are 51,561 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and
may not be transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.

In January 2001, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.15 per share for total
cash proceeds of $150,000 pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants.

At December 31, 2001, the Company had received subscriptions in the amount of $93,000. In January
2002 the Company issued 1,860,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.05 per unit.
Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share purchase
warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share until
January 8§, 2003.




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

4. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d.....)

In January 2002 the Company issued 930,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.10 per
unit for proceeds of $93,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-
transferrable share purchase warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a
price of $0.10 per share until January 21, 2004

S. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the CDNX, is authorized to grant options to executive
officers and directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10% of the issued and
outstanding common stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the market price of
the Company's stock as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a maximum term
of 5 years.

As at March 31, 2002, the Company was designated inactive, pursuant to the policies of the CDNX, and
was prohibited from granting new incentive stock options. In addition, principals of the Company are
prohibited from exercising previously granted stock options. On February 21, 2002 options to purchase
310,000 shares at an exercise price of $ 1.55 per share expired.

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Number Weighted

of Shares Average

Exercise

Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2001 310,000 $1.55
Granted - -
Expired/cancelled (310,000) -
Exercised - -

Qutstanding at March 31, 2002 - $ -




P

Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

5. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (cont’d.....)

The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable warrants at March
31, 2002:

Warrants Qutstanding and Exercisable

Average Weighted

Remaining Average

Contractual Exercise

Number Life Price
Outstanding (In Years) Per Share
1,500,000 0.1 $2.00
1,860,000 0.8 0.10
930.000 1.8 0.10
4.290,000 07 3076

A summary of share warrant activity and information concerning warrants at March 31, 2002 is as
follows:

31 Mar 2002
Balance, beginning of year 1,500,000
Granted 2,790,000
Exercised
Expired
Balance, end of year 4,290,000

During the 2001 fiscal year the Company acquired regulatory approval to extend the expiry date of
1,500,000 warrants to April 5, 2002, exercisable at a new exercise price of $ 2.00 per share.

In conjunction with private placement units issued in January 2002, the Company issued 1,860,000 non-
transferable share purchase warrants entitling the holder to purchase one additional common share at a
price of $0.10 per share until January 8, 2003,

In conjunction with private placement units issued in January 2002, the Company issued 930,000 non-
transferable share purchase warrants entitling the holder to purchase one additional common share at a
price of $0.10 per share until January 21, 2004.




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

6. MINERAL PROPERTIES

The Company has maintained a 100% interest in the Lock #1 - #4 Eagle and Raven claims. These claims
are located in the Queen Charlotte Islands, British Columbia. During 1988, the land surrounding the
Company's claims was included in an area designated by the Government of British Columbia as a park
reserve. During the year ended December 31, 2000, management of the Company determined that there
was uncertainty relating to the recoverability of the mineral properties and accordingly, all related costs
were written-down to reflect the impairment in value. Management is monitoring the progress of similar
claims and believes previous costs incurred may be recovered. However, the ultimate resolution of this
matter is uncertain at this time.

The Company charges environmental protection costs and land rehabilitation program costs to operations

in the year of incurrence. At this time, the Company does not foresee the necessity to make any material
expenditures in this area.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the three months ended March 31, 2002, the Company entered into the following transactions
with related parties:

a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $15,000 to a director or a company controlled by a director of
the Company.

b) Paid or accrued management fees of $7,500 to a director of the Company.

c) Included in accounts payable at March 31, 2002 is $24,843 due to a company controlled by a

director and directors of the Company.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value
which represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

8. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS

During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2002, there were no significant non-cash transactions.




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2002

9. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of income taxes at statutory rates with the reported taxes is as follows:

Fiscal quarter

ended
March 31,
2002
Loss for the period 3 (52,224)
Income tax recovery at statutory rate $ 21,725
Non-deductible items for tax purposes (696)
Unrecognised benefit of non-capital losses (21.029)
Income tax recovery $ -
The significant components of the Company’s future tax assets are as follows:
Future income tax assets:
$ -
Capital assets
Non-capital loss carry forwards 785,139
Mineral properties written-off 155,320
Valuation allowance (940,459)

Net Future income tax assets 3

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future

tax assets. It is reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and
manner of the reversal of future tax liabilities.

At March 31, 2002, the Company had approximately $1,887,000 in non-capital losses expiring at various
dates beginning in 2002, which are available for carry forward to reduce future income for tax purposes.
Subject to certain restrictions, the Company has further resource and development exploration
expenditures totaling approximately $373,000 available to reduce taxable income of future years. The
potential tax benefit of these losses has not been recorded in these financial statements.
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Vanlt Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended March 31, 2002
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Schedule A

Financial information prepared in accordance with Section 1751 of the C.I.C.A. Handbook or CICA
Accounting Guideline AcG-11 Enterprises in the Development Stage as per attached:

1.

2.

Interim Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2002 with comparative figures for the period ended
December 31, 2001

Interim Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended
March 31, 2002 and 2001

Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended March
31,2002 and 2001

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

Consulting

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 15,000

Other miscellaneous 5,000
$ 20,000

Management fees

Related parties ( note 2 ) $ 15,000

Professional fees

Accounting and audit $8,550

Legal 3,679

Other miscellaneous 4,707
$ 16,936

2. Related party transactions

During the period under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties

¢ Paid or accrued consulting fees to directors of the Company in the amount of § 15,000
*  Paid or accrued management fees of $ 7,500 to a director of the Company

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

In January 2002 the Company issued 1,860,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.05 per
unit. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable share purchase
warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per share until
January §, 2003.




In January 2002 the Company issued 930,000 units pursuant to a private placement at a price of $0.10 per unit
for proceeds of $93,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and one non-transferrable
share purchase warrant entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at a price of $0.10 per
share until January 21, 2004

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at March 31, 2002 8,397,371 $ 5,701,958
¢). Outstanding as at March 31, 2002 Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before April 5, 2002 1,500,000 $ 2.00 per share
Exercisable on or before January 8, 2003 1,860,000 $ 0.10 per share
Exercisable on or before January 21, 2004 930,000 $ 0.10 per share
4,290,000
d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares
Escrowed shares 51,561

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief vOperating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

1. General

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes of the
Company for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2002.

2. Description of Business
The Company’s principal business is the development of software for the medical profession.
3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

The Company does not have operating revenues. Historically the Company has received revenues only
from the interest earned on cash reserves held. The Company expects to continue to rely upon equity
financing as a significant source of funding,.

During the fiscal quarter under review, the Company raised $ 186,000 by way of private unit offerings,
resulting in the issuance of 2,790,000 common shares and 2,790,000 non-transferable share purchase
warrants, entitling the holder to acquire one additional common share at an exercise price of § 0.10 per
share.

The Company is financing the development of TeMR (Total Electronic Medical Record Solution) and
expects a working prototype to be completed by June 1, 2002. TeMR will provide health care
organizations with solutions to improve on the managed delivery of clinical services to effect substantial
cost savings and better patient outcomes. The TeMR solution provides medical records management and
health care business management in an efficient automated environment.

The next step will be to raise funding by equity financing of joint venture partners to move forward to
commercialize the TeMR solution.

4. Subsequent events

There were no material subsequent events

5. Financing, principal purposes and milestones

During the fiscal quarter under review the company raised $ 186,000 toward working capital

6. Liquidity and solvency

The Company does not presently have sufficient financial resources to undertake commercialization of its
TeMR solution, which will depend upon the Company’s ability to obtain financing through joint venturing,
private placement financing, public financing or other means. As at March 31 2002 the company
maintained a working capital balance of § 148,470. There is no assurance that the Company will be

successful in obtaining the required financing or that financing will be available on terms and conditions
acceptable to the company or that will not cause significant dilution to the shareholders.
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Vault Systems Inc.

Interim Balance Sheet

As at
September 30, December 31,
2001 2000
Assets
Current
Cash $4,642 $24,060
Receivables 3,786 11,619
Prepaid expenses 90,753
8,428 126,432
Capital assets 34,823 43,951
License 1 500,000
34,824 543,951
$43,252 $670,383
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $155,401 $24,079
Due to directors 97,350
252,751 24,079
Deficiency in assets
Share capital 5,515,958 5,365,958
Deficit (5,725,457) (4,719,654)
(209,499) 646,304
$43,252 $670,383

Approved  “J. Michael Mackey””
Director

Approved “David Rees”
Director




Vault Systems Inc.

Interim Statement of Operations and Deficit

Nine Months ended Fiscal quarter ended
September 30, September 30,
2001 2000 2001 2000
( restated)
Expenses
Amortization $9.128 § 5,298 $3,043 $ 552
Bank charges and interest 615 773 471 678
Consulting 117,500 95,897 37,500 36,450
Investor relations 28,271 58,131 2,586 26,178
Listing and transfer fees 10,715 29,031 (6,237) 6,508
Management fees 45,000 37,500 15,000 15,000
Office and miscellaneous 4,619 11,881 827 1,225
Professional fees 182,453 84,981 85,343 38,489
Research and development 103,183 214,151 (23,500) 164,651
Travel 4,321 68,677 1,472 27,190
Loss for the period before other (505,804) (606,320) (116,504) (316,921)
items
Other items
Miscellaneous interest income 17,311 7,566
Write-down of mineral claims (50,114)
Write-down of deferred exploration (214,865)
cost
Write-down of investment in license (499,999) (499,999
(499,999) (247,668) (499,999)
Loss for the period (1,005,803) (853,988) (616,504) (309,355)
Deficit, beginning of period (4,719,654) (3,505,691) (5,108,953) (4,050,324)
Deficit, end of period 8(5,725457)  $(4,356,679)  $(5,725,457) $(4,359,679)
Loss per share $(0.19) $(0.19) $(0.11)

$(0.07)




Vault Systems Inc.
Interim Statements of Cash Flows

Nine Months ended Fiscal quarter ended
September 30 September 30
2001 2000 2001 2000
(restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss for the period $(1,005,803)  $(853,988) $(616,504)  $(309,355)
Item not affecting cash:
Amortization 9,128 5,298 3,043 552
Write-down investment in license 499,999 499,999
Write-down of mineral claims 50,114
Write-down of deferred exploration costs 214,865
Changes in non-cash operating working capital
items:
Accounts receivable 7,833 (24,520) 33,366 (11,446)
Prepaid expenses 90,753
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 131,322 (32,220) 26,845 (83,747)
Due to directors 97,350 56,175
Cash flows used in operating activities (169,418) (640,451) 2,929) (403,996)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Stock subscriptions received
Proceeds from issue of capital stock 150,000 1,650,000
Cash flows provided from financing activities 150,000 1,650,000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (44,633) (3,515)
Purchase of license (500,000)
Cash flows provided from investing activities (544,633) (3,515)
Increase (decrease) in cash during the period (19,418) 464,916 2,924 (407,511)
Cash, beginning of period 24,060 1,359 1,718 873,786
Cash, end of period $4,642 $466,275 $4,642 $466,275
Cash paid for interest during the period $ - $ -
Cash paid for income taxes during the period $ - 5 -

NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING
Shares issued in lieu of debts

$ 178,673




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2001

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of British Columbia and was in the process of exploring its
mineral properties. In 1990, the Company changed its principal business to the development of computer
oriented hardware and software. The Company was inactive from 1995 to a portion of 1999. During the
year, the Company focused on business activity to the development of software for the medical profession
and ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the development stage.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued
operations of the Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial support
from related parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

As at September 30, December 31,

2001 2000
Deficit $(5,725,457) $(4,719,654)
Working capital (deficiency) $ (244,323) $102,353

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of
these financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

Environmental protection and rehabilitation costs

The Company’s policy relating to environmental protection and land rehabilitation programmes is to

charge to income during the year any costs incurred in environmental protection and land reclamation. At
this time the Company does not foresee the necessity to make any material expenditures in this area,

UNAUDITED - PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2001

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d.....)
Capital assets
Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided for annually

using the declining balance method at the following rates. In the year of acquisition, capital assets are
amortized at 50% of the applicable rates.

Software 100%

Computer equipment 30%

Furniture and office equipment 20%
License

License is stated at cost and is adjusted to net realizable value if there is a decline in value that is other
than temporary. Amortization will be recorded on a 3-year straight-line basis commencing in the year of
commercialization of the related product. During the current fiscal period management decided to write-
down the carrying value of the license to a nominal value of § 1.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Income
and expenses are translated at rates which approximate those in effect on transaction dates.

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company grants options as described in Note 7. No compensation expenses is recognized for this
plan when stock or stock options are issued to employees. Any consideration paid by employees on the
exercise of stock options is credited to capital stock.

Segment information

The Company currently conducts substantially all of its operations in Canada in one business segment.
Future income taxes

Future income tax assets and liabilities are established where the accounting net book value of assets and
liabilities differs from the corresponding tax basis. The benefit of future income tax assets is only
recognized where their realization is judged more likely than not.

Loss per share

Loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

TMIATIMTTTIT'TY. TMINMTMNADTMN DWW ALAN AT AONIT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2001

3. MINERAL PROPERTIES

The Company formerly maintained a 100% interest in the Lock #1 - #4 Eagle and Raven claims. These
claims were located in the Queen Charlotte Islands, British Columbia. During 1988, the land surrounding
the Company’s claims was included in an area designated by the Government of British Columbia as a
park reserve. During the current year, management of the Company determined that there was uncertainty
relating to the recoverability of the mineral properties and accordingly, all related costs were written-down
to reflect the impairment in value. Management is monitoring the progress of similar claims and believes
these costs may be recovered. However, the ultimate resolution of this matter is uncertain at this time.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS
Net Book Value
Accumulated September 30, December 31,
Cost Amortization 2001 2000

Software $ 1,134 $ 992 $ 142 $ 567
Computer equipment 34,428 11,749 22,679 29,264
Furniture and office
equipment 15,689 3,687 12,002 14,120

$ 51,251 $ 16,428 $ 34,823 $ 43,951

A

S. LICENCES

Pursuant to an agreement dated May 23, 2001 (terminating a former agreement dated August 23, 2000)
the Company acquired a non-exclusive world wide license to the e-Medical Explorer procurement
technology (“eMedical Explorer”), a worldwide Internet software solution for the medical profession and
ancillary fields, for 20 years with an option to renew for 20 years by mutual consent of the parties, for
initial consideration in the amount of $500,000. Additional consideration includes payments to INToo of
$ 21,800 upon closing, 20% of net revenues realized by the Company by licensing the eMedical Explorer
to third parties. The Company also acquired the Electronic Medical Records ( EMR) Computer
Application Software from INToo Software Corporation ( “INTo0”), including all program design
specifications, source code, all rights with respect to development, licensing, support, maintenance
distribution, supply or exploitation of the system and associated software applications including the
Bedside Registration System and enhancement. Management has decided to write-down the carrying
value of the license to a nominal net book value of § 1.




Vault Systems Inc.
Notes to Interim Financial Statements

September 30, 2001
6. SHARE CAPITAL
Number
of Shares Amount
Authorized:
100,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued:
Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958
Exercise of share purchase warrants — for cash 1,000,000 150,000
Balance as at September 30, 2001 5,607,371 $5,515,958

Included in issued share capital are 51,651 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and
may not be transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.

In January 2001, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.15 per share for total
cash proceeds of $150,000 pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants.

7. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the Canadian Venture Exchange, is authorized to grant
options to executive officers and directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10%
of the issued and outstanding common stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the
market price of the Company’s stock as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a
maximum term of 5 years, upon reinstatement of the company to active status and subject to regulatory
approval.

The following incentive stock options were outstanding at September 30, 2001:

Number Exercise
of Shares Price  Expiry Date
310,000 $1.55 February 21, 2002

All of these options have vested and are exercisable by the holder.

TINNATTMITED _ PREPARED RY MANAMCENMENT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2001

7. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (cont’d.....)

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Number Weighted
of Shares Average
Exercise
Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 310,000 $1.55
Granted - -
Expired/cancelled - -
Exercised - -
Outstanding at September 30, 2001 310,000 $1.55
Following is a summary of the status of options outstanding at September 30, 2001:
Outstanding Options Exercisable Options
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Contractual Exercise Exercise
Prices Number Life Price Number Price
$1.55 310,000 .39 years $1.55 310,000 $1.55

The following share purchase warrants were outstanding at September 30, 2001:

Number  Exercise
of Shares Price Expiry Date

1,500,000 2.00 April 5,2002

During the current fiscal period the Company acquired regulatory approval to extend the expiry date of
1,500,000 warrants to April 5, 2002, exercisable at a new exercise price of $ 2.00 per share. The original

terms set a price of $ 1.00 per share, exercisable on or before April 5, 2001.

TTARTATITRNTTT'TY TMMNTIMMATT'IYN  DYY A FAANTASTTANATNTT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
September 30, 2001

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the nine months ended September 30, 2001, the Company entered into the following transactions
with related parties:

a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $112,500 to a director or a company controlled by a director of the
Company.

b) Paid or accrued management fees of $45,000 to a director of the Company.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value
which represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

9. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE FOR NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

During the nine months ended September 30, 2001, there were no significant non-cash transactions.
10. FUTURE INCOME TAXES

Future tax assets and liability:

Future tax assets:

$ 3,329
Capital assets
Loss carry forwards 517,570
Mineral properties written-off 170,254
Valuation allowance (691,153)
Total future tax assets after valuation $ -
allowance
Net future tax liability ) -

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future
tax assets. It is reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and
manner of the reversal of future tax liabilities.

At December 31, 2000, the Company had approximately $1,135,000 in non-capital losses expiring at
various dates beginning in 2001, which are available for carry forward to reduce future income for tax
purposes. The potential tax benefit of these losses has not been recorded in these financial statements.

2000
Statutory income tax rate (46.5.%)
Loss carried forward to future years 46.5.%
Effective tax rate -%

ITNATINITED - PREPARED RY MANAGEMENT
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Vault Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended September 30, 2001
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Schedule A

Financial information prepared in accordance with Section 1751 of the C.I.C.A. Handbook or CICA
Accounting Guideline AcG-11 Enterprises in the Development Stage as per attached:

1.

2.

Interim Consolidated Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2001 with comparative figures for the period ended
December 31, 2000

Interim Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended
September 30, 2001 and 2000

Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended
September 30, 2001 and 2000

Notes to Interim Financial Statements as at September 30, 2001

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1.

Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

a) Breakdown of expensed research and development

INToo support agreement 3 95,000
Other miscellaneous 8,183
’ $103,183

Related party transactions

During the fiscal quarter under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related
parties

¢ Paid or accrued consulting fees to directors of the Company in the amount of $ 37,500
¢  Paid or accrued management fees of $ 15,000 to a director of the Company

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

There were no securities issued or options granted during the fiscal quarter under review.




4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at September 30, 2001
Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958
Exercise of warrants — for cash 1,000,000 150,000
Balance as at September 30, 2001 5,607,371 $ 5,515,958
¢). Outstanding as at September 30, 2001 Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before April 5, 2002 1,500,000 $ 2.00 per share

*

*  Amended during the fiscal quarter under review. The original terms set a price of § 1.00 per share,

exercisable on or before April 5, 2001.

Options Exercise price

Exercisable on or before February 21, 2002 310,000 $ 0.1.55 per share

d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares
Escrowed shares 51,561

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

The Company’s principal business activity is the development of software for the medical profession and
ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the development stage.

Continued operations of the Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial
support from related parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operation in the
future. As at September 30, 2001 the Company had incurred a working capital deficiency of § 244,323.

Pursuant to an agreement dated May 23, 2001 {terminating a former agreement dated August 23, 2000} the
Company acquired a non-exclusive world wide license to the e-Medical Explorer procurement technology
(“eMedical Explorer™), a worldwide Internet software solution for the medical profession and ancillary fields,
for 20 years with an option to renew for 20 years by mutual consent of the parties, for initial consideration in
the amount of $500,000. Additional consideration includes payments to INToo of $ 21,800 upon closing,
20% of net revenues realized by the Company by licensing the eMedical Explorer to third parties. The
Company also acquired the Electronic Medical Records ( EMR) Computer Application Software from INToo




Software Corporation ( “INTo0”), including all program design specifications, source code, all rights with
respect to development, licensing, support, maintenance distribution, supply or exploitation of the system and
associated software applications including the Bedside Registration System and enhancement. Management
has decided to write-down the carrying value of the license to a nominal net book value of $ 1.

During the period under review the company acquired no additional capital equipment. The carrying value of
the license was written-down by $ 499,999 to a nominal value of $ 1. There were no additional material write-
offs or write-down of assets. There were no other material contracts or commitments. There are no material
differences in the actual use of proceeds from previous disclosures regarding intended use of proceeds.

The Company entered into a Support Agreement dated September 20, 2000 whereby it was to pay to INToo

$ 70,000 per month for specific work performed and invoiced on the development of specific software
solutions. $ 420,000 was cumulatively paid to INToo for Research and Development under this agreement.
The Support Agreement, which was subject to regulatory approval, was subsequently terminated on January 1,
2001 and any future support was to be paid for on a project-by-project basis.

During the period under review, the company entered into transactions with related parties, including the
payments of consulting and management fees, as disclosed in schedule B to the Form 51 -901F quarterly
report and as presented in the unaudited interim financial statements. These transactions were in the normal
course of operations and were measured at the exchange values, which represented the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

During the prior fiscal year the Company engaged Netserve Communications Ltd. in consideration for $ 5,000
per month, to provide investor relations services (“IR”). This agreement was terminated in December 2000,
However, during the period under review the Company expended $ 25,685 on IR, of which $ 11,000 was paid
to Netserve Communications Ltd. for fees and disbursements in completion of this engagement. The balance
of expenditures on investor relations were limited to minor costs of press releases, development of promotional
material and communicating to existing and new shareholders.

There were no material transactions or events subsequent to September 30, 2001.
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Vault Systems Inc.
Interim Balance Sheet

June 30, December 31,
2001 2000
Assets
Current
Cash $1,718 $24,060
Receivables 37,152 11,619
Prepaid expenses 90,753
38,870 126,432
Capital assets 37,866 43,951
License 500,000 500,000
537,866 543,951
$576,736 $670,383
Liabilities and Shareholders'
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $128,556 $24,079
Due to directors 41,175
169,731 24,079
Shareholders' Equity
Share capital 5,515,958 5,365,958
Deficit (5,108,953) (4,719,654)
407,005 646,304
$576,736 $670,383

Approved  “J. Michael Mackey””
Director

Approved “David Rees”
Director




Vault Systems Inc.

Interim Statement of Operations and Deficit

Six Months ended

Fiscal quarter ended

June 30, June 30,
2001 2000 2001 2000
( restated)

Expenses
Amortization $6,085 $ 4,746 $3,042 $ 4,746
Bank charges and interest 143 95 40 48
Consulting 80,000 59,447 37,500 51,947
Investor relations 25,685 31,953 8,742 28,275
Listing and transfer fees 16,952 22,523 13,885 3,011
Management fees 30,000 22,500 15,000 15,000
Office and miscellaneous 3,792 7,056 1,533 4,394
Professional fees 97,110 46,493 93,551 33,118
Rent 3,600 2,400
Research and development 126,683 49,500 50,000 49,500
Travel 2,849 41,487 1,395 29,075
Loss for the period before other items (389,299) (289,400) (224,688) (221,514)
Other items
Write-down of mineral claims (50,114) (50,114)
Write-down of deferred exploration cost (214,865) (214,865)
Interest income 9,746 9,746

(255.233) (255.233)
Loss for the year (389,299) (544,633) (224,688) (476,747)
Deficit, beginning of period (4,719,654) (3,505,691) (4,884,265) (3,573,577)
Deficit, end of periad $(5,108,953)  $(4,050,324)  $(5,108,953) $(4,050,324)
Loss per share $(0.07) $(0.12) $(0.04) $(0.11)

TMTATTMTITCETN DDEDADTNMN RV MANACEANMENTT



Vault Systems Inec.
Interim Statements of Cash Flows

Six Months ended Fiscal quarter ended
June 30, June 30,
2001 2000 2001 2000
(restated)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss for the period $(389,299) $(544,633) $(224,688) $(476,747)
[tem not affecting cash: .

Amortization 6,085 4,746 3,042 4,746

Write-down of mineral claims 50,114 50,114

Write-down of deferred exploration costs 214,865 214,865
Changes in non-cash operating working capital
items:

Accounts receivable (25,533) (13,073) 7,061 (10,347)

Receivable from directors 12,325

Prepaid expenses 90,753 90,951

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 104,477 51,526 64,413 72,575

Due to directors 41,175 30,475 (7,500)
Cash flows used in operating activities (172,342) (236,455) (16,421) (152,294)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Stock subscriptions received 452,000
Proceeds from issue of capital stock 150,000 1,650,000
Cash flows provided from financing activities 150,000 1,650,000 452,000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (41,118) (36,697)
Purchase of license (500,000) (450,000)
Cash flows provided from investing activities (541,118) (486,697)
Increase (decrease) in cash during the period (22,342) 872,427 (16,421) (186,991)
Cash, beginning of period 24,060 1,359 18,139 1,060,777
Cash, end of period $1,718 $873,786 $1,718 $873,786
Cash paid for interest during the period 3 - 3 -
Cash paid for income taxes during the period $ - $ -
NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING
Shares issued in lieu of debts $178,673

TINATIMITED - PREPAREND RY MANAGFEFMENT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30,2001

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of British Columbia and was in the process of exploring its
mineral properties. In 1990, the Company changed its principal business to the development of computer
oriented hardware and software. The Company was inactive from 1995 to a portion of 1999. During the
year, the Company focused on business activity to the development of software for the medical profession
and ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the development stage.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued operations of the
Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial support from related
parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

As at June 30, December 31,
2001 2000
Deficit $(5,108,953) $ (4,719,654)
Working capital (deficiency) : $(130,861) $102,353

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of these
financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

Environmental protection and rehabilitation costs

The Company’s policy relating to environmental protection and land rehabilitation programmes is to charge
to income during the year any costs incurred in environmental protection and land reclamation. At this time
the Company does not foresee the necessity to make any material expenditures in this area.

Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided for annually
using the declining balance method at the following rates. In the year of acquisition, capital assets are
amortized at 50% of the applicable rates.

Software 100%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and office equipment 20%




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2001

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d.....)

License

License is stated at cost and is adjusted to net realizable value if there is a decline in value that is other than
temporary. Amortization will be recorded on a 3-year straight-line basis commencing in the year of
commercialization of the related product.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Income and expenses
are translated at rates which approximate those in effect on transaction dates.

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company grants options as described in Note 7. No compensation expenses is recognized for this plan
when stock or stock options are issued to employees. Any consideration paid by employees on the exercise
of stock options is credited to capital stock.

Segment information

The Company currently conducts substantially all of its operations in Canada in one business segment.
Future income taxes

Future income tax assets and liabilities are established where the accounting net book value of assets and
liabilities differs from the corresponding tax basis. The benefit of future income tax assets is only
recognized where their realization is judged more likely than not.

Loss per share

Loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

3. MINERAL PROPERTIES

The Company formerly maintained a 100% interest in the Lock #1 - #4 Eagle and Raven claims. These
claims were located in the Queen Charlotte Islands, British Columbia. During 1988, the land surrounding
the Company’s claims was included in an area designated by the Government of British Columbia as a park
reserve. During the current year, management of the Company determined that there was uncertainty
relating to the recoverability of the mineral properties and accordingly, all related costs were written-down

to reflect the impairment in value. Management is monitoring the progress of similar claims and believes
these costs may be recovered. However, the ultimate resolution of this matter is uncertain at this time.




Vault Systems Inc.
Notes to Interim Financial Statements

June 30, 2001
4, CAPITAL ASSETS
Net Book Value
Accumulated June 30, December 31,
Cost Amortization 2001 2000
Software $ 1,134 $ 850 $ 284 $ 567
Computer equipment 34,428 9,554 24,874 29,264
Furniture and office
_equipment 15,689 2,981 12,708 14,120
$ 51,251 $ 13,385 $ 37,866 $ 43,951
5. LICENCES

Pursuant to an agreement dated May 23, 2001 (terminating a former agreement dated August 23, 2000) the
Company acquired the Electronic Medical Records ( EMR) Computer Application Software from INToo
Software Corporation ( “INT00”), including all program design specifications, source code, all rights with
respect to development, licensing, support, maintenance distribution, supply or exploitation of the system
and associated software applications including the Bedside Registration System and enhancement. It also
acquired an option to acquire full ownership of the Medical Mobile Software for 3 years for payment of $
500,000 or the equivalent in the Company’s treasury shares based on the then market price of the
Company’s shares. And it acquired a non-exclusive world wide license to the e-Medical Explorer
procurement technology (“eMedical Explorer”), a worldwide Internet software solution for the medical
profession and ancillary fields, for 20 years with an option to renew for 20 years by mutual consent of the
parties, for initial consideration in the amount of $500,000. Additional consideration includes payments to
INToo of § 21,800 upon closing, 20% of net revenues realized by the Company by licensing the eMedical
Explorer to third parties, and the issuance from the Company’s treasury shares equal to 19% of the total
issued and outstanding shares after completion of the first $§ 1,000,000 in financing by the Company in
conjunction with the transactions contemplated in this Agreement together with a share purchase warrant to
acquire an additional 700,000 of the Company’s common shares for 2 years from the date of the Agreement.
The terms and conditions are subject to the approval of the CDNX.

6. SHARE CAPITAL
Number

of Shares Amount
Authorized:
100,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued:
Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958
Exercise of share purchase warrants — for cash 1,000,000 150,000
Balance as at June 30, 2001 5,607,371 $ 5,515,958
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Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30,2001

6. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d.....)

Included in issued share capital are 51,651 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and may
not be transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities,

In January 2001, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.15 per share for total cash
proceeds of $150,000 pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants.

7. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the Canadian Venture Exchange, is authorized to grant
options to executive officers and directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10%
of the issued and outstanding common stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the
market price of the Company’s stock as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a
maximum term of 5 years.

The following incentive stock options were outstanding at June 30, 2001:

Number Exercise
of Shares Price_ Expiry Date
310,000 $1.55 February 21, 2002

All of these options have vested and are exercisable by the holder.

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Number Weighted

of Shares Average

Exercise

Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2000 310,000 $1.55
Granted - -
Expired/cancelled - -
Exercised - -

Outstanding at June 30, 2001 310,000 $1.55




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2001

7. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (cont’d.....)

Following is a summary of the status of options outstanding at June 30, 2001:

Qutstanding Options Exercisable Options
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Contractual Exercise Exercise
Prices Number Life Price Number Price
$1.55 310,000 .64 years $1.55 310,000 $1.55

The following share purchase warrants were outstanding at June 30, 2001:

Number  Exercise
of Shares Price Expiry Date

1,500,000 2.00 April 5,2002

During the current fiscal period the Company acquired regulatory approval to extend the expiry date of
1,500,000 warrants to April 5, 2002, exercisable at a new exercise price of § 2.00 per share. The original
terms set a price of $ 1.00 per share, exercisable on or before April 5, 2001,

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the six months ended June 30, 2001, the Company entered into the following transactions with
related parties:

a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $75,000 to a director or a company controlled by a director of the
Company.

b) Paid or accrued management fees of $30,000 to a director of the Company.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value which
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

9. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE FOR NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

During the six months ended June 30, 2001, there were no significant non-cash transactions.
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Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2001

10. FUTURE INCOME TAXES

Future tax assets and liability:

Future tax assets:

$ 3,329
Capital assets
Loss carryforwards 517,570
Mineral properties written-off 170,254
Valuation allowance (691,153)
Total future tax assets after valuation $ -
allowance
Net future tax liability 3 -

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future tax
assets. It is reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and
manner of the reversal of future tax liabilities.

At December 31, 2000, the Company had approximately $1,135,000 in non-capital losses expiring at
various dates beginning in 2001, which are available for carryforward to reduce future income for tax
purposes. The potential tax benefit of these losses has not been recorded in these financial statements.

2000
Statutory income tax rate (46.5.%)
Loss carried forward to future years 46.5.%
Effective tax rate -%
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Vault Systems Inc,
For the quarter ended June 30,2001
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Schedule A

Financial information prepared in accordance with Section 1751 of the C.I.C.A. Handbook or CICA
Accounting Guideline AcG-11 Enterprises in the Development Stage as per attached:

1.

2.

Interim Consolidated Balance Sheet as at June 30, 2001 with comparative figures for the period ended
December 31, 2000

Interim Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended June
30, 2001 and 2000

Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended June 30,
2001 and 2000

Notes to Interim Financial Statements as at June 30, 2001

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A

1.

Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

a) Breakdown of expensed research and development

INToo support agreement $ 70,000
Technological consulting 50,000
Other miscellaneous 6,683

$ 126,683

Related party transactions

During the fiscal quarter under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties

e Paid or accrued consulting fees to directors of the Company in the amount of § 37,500
* Paid or accrued management fees of $ 15,000 to a director of the Company

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.
There were no securities issued or options granted during the fiscal quarter under review.
Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.
a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at June 30, 2001




Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958

Exercise of warrants — for cash 1,000,000 150,000
Balance as at June 30, 2001 5,607,371 $5,515,958
c). Qutstanding as at June 30, 2001 A Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before April 5, 2002 * 1,500,000 $ 2.00 per share

*  Amended during the fiscal quarter under review. The original terms set a price of $ 1.00 per share,

exercisable on or before April 5, 2001.

Options Exercise price

Exercisable on or before February 21, 2002 310,000 $0.1.55 per share

d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares
Escrowed shares 51,561

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

The Company’s principal business activity is the development of software for the medical profession and
ancillary fields, The Company is considered to be in the development stage.

Continued operations of the Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial
support from related parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operation in the
future. As at June 30, 2001 the Company had incurred a working capital deficiency of $ 130,861.

Pursuant to an agreement dated May 23, 2001 (terminating a former agreement dated August 23, 2000) the
Company acquired the Electronic Medical Records ( EMR) Computer Application Software from INToo
Software Corporation ( “INT00”), including all program design specifications, source code, all rights with
respect to development, licensing, support, maintenance distribution, supply or exploitation of the system and
associated software applications including the Bedside Registration System and enhancement. It also acquired
an option to acquire full ownership of the Medical Mobile Software for 3 years for payment of $ 500,000 or the
equivalent in the Company’s treasury shares based on the then market price of the Company’s shares. And it
acquired a non-exclusive world wide license to the e-Medical Explorer procurement technology (“eMedical
Explorer”), a worldwide Internet software solution for the medical profession and ancillary fields, for 20 years
with an option to renew for 20 years by mutual consent of the parties, for initial consideration in the amount of
$500,000. Additional consideration includes payments to INToo of $ 21,800 upon closing, 20% of net
revenues realized by the Company by licensing the eMedical Explorer to third parties, and the issuance from the
Company’s treasury shares equal to 19% of the total issued and outstanding shares after completion of the first




$ 1,000,000 in financing by the Company in conjunction with the transactions contemplated in this Agreement
together with a share purchase warrant to acquire an additional 700,000 of the Company’s common shares for 2
years from the date of the Agreement. The terms and conditions are subject to the approval of the CDNX.

During the period under review the company acquired no additional capital equipment. There were no material
write-offs or write-down of assets. There were no other material contracts or commitments. There are no
material differences in the actual use of proceeds from previous disclosure regarding intended use of proceeds.

The Company entered into a Support Agreement dated September 20, 2000 whereby it was to pay to INToo

$ 70,000 per month for specific work performed and invoiced on the development of specific software solutions.
$ 420,000 was cumulatively paid to INToo for Research and Development under this agreement. The Support
Agreement, which was subject to regulatory approval, was subsequently terminated on January 1, 2001 and any
future support will be paid for on a project-by-project basis.

During the period under review, the company entered into transactions with related parties, including the
payments of consulting and management fees, as disclosed in schedule B to the Form 51 —-901F quarterly report
and as presented in the unaudited interim financial statements. These transactions were in the normal course of
operations and were measured at the exchange values, which represented the amount of consideration
established and agreed to by the related parties.

During the prior fiscal year the Company engaged Netserve Communications Ltd. in consideration for $ 5,000
per month, to provide investor relations services (“IR”). This agreement was terminated in December 2000.
However, during the period under review the Company expended $ 25,685 on IR, of which $ 11,000 was paid to
Netserve Communications Ltd. for fees and disbursements in completion of this engagement. The balance of
expenditures on investor relations were limited to minor costs of press releases, development of promotional
material and communicating to existing and new shareholders.

There were no material transactions or events subsequent to June 30, 2001.
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Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2001

1. NATURE AND CONTINUANCE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of British Columbia and was in the process of exploring its
mineral properties. In 1990, the Company changed its principal business to the development of computer
oriented hardware and software. The Company was inactive from 1995 to a portion of 1999. During the
year, the Company focused on business activity to the development of software for the medical profession
and ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the development stage.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
with the assumption that the Company will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business rather than through a process of forced liquidation. Continued operations of the
Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial support from related
parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operations in the future.

As at March 31, December 31,

2001 2000
Deficit , $(4,884,265)  $(4,719,654)
Working capital $ 90,785 $102,353

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of estimates

The preparation of financials statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, receivables and accounts payable and accrued
liabilities. Unless otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Company is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of these
financial instruments approximate their carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

Environmental protection and rehabilitation costs

The Company’s policy relating to environmental protection and land rehabilitation programmes is to charge
to income during the year any costs incurred in environmental protection and land reclamation. At this time
the Company does not foresee the necessity to make any material expenditures in this area.

Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided for annually

using the declining balance method at the following rates. In the year of acquisition, capital assets are
amortized at 50% of the applicable rates.

Software 100%
Computer equipment 30%
Furniture and office equipment 20%
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Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2001

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d.....)

License

License is stated at cost and is adjusted to net realizable value if there is a decline in value that is other than
temporary. Amortization will be recorded on a 3 year straight-line basis commencing in the year of
commercialization of the related product.

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date. Income and expenses
are translated at rates which approximate those in effect on transaction dates.

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company grants options as described in Note 7. No compensation expenses is recognized for this plan
when stock or stock options are issued to employees. Any consideration paid by employees on the exercise
of stock options is credited to capital stock.

Segment information

The Company currently conducts substantially all of its operations in Canada in one business segment.
Future income taxes

Future income tax assets and liabilities are established where the accounting net book value of assets and
liabilities differs from the corresponding tax basis. The benefit of future income tax assets is only
recognized where their realization is judged more likely than not.

Loss per share

Loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

3. MINERAL PROPERTIES

The Company formerly maintained a 100% interest in the Lock #1 - #4 Eagle and Raven claims. These
claims were located in the Queen Charlotte Islands, British Columbia. During 1988, the land surrounding
the Company’s claims was included in an area designated by the Government of British Columbia as a park
reserve. During the current year, management of the Company determined that there was uncertainty
relating to the recoverability of the mineral properties and accordingly, all related costs were written-down

to reflect the impairment in value. Management is monitoring the progress of similar claims and believes
these costs may be recovered. However, the ultimate resolution of this matter is uncertain at this time.

UNAUDITED - PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT




Vault Systems Inc.
Notes to Interim Financial Statements

March 31, 2001
4. CAPITAL ASSETS
Net Book Value
Accumulated March 31, December 31,
Cost Amortization 2001 2000
Software $ 1,134 $ 708 $ 426 § 567
Computer equipment 34,428 7,359 27,069 29,264
Furniture and office
equipment 15,689 2,275 13,414 14,120
$ 51,251 $ 13,385 $ 40,908 $ 43,951

S. LICENCES

Pursuant to an agreement dated May 23, 2001 (terminating a former agreement dated August 23, 2000) the
Company acquired the Electronic Medical Records ( EMR) Computer Application Software from INToo
Software Corporation ( “INTo00”), including all program design specifications, source code, all rights with
respect to development, licensing, support, maintenance distribution, supply or exploitation of the system
and associated software applications including the Bedside Registration System and enhancement. It also
acquired an option to acquire full ownership of the Medical Mobile Software for 3 years for payment of $
500,000 or the equivalent in the Company’s treasury shares based on the then market price of the
Company’s shares. And it acquired a non-exclusive world wide license to the e-Medical Explorer
procurement technology (“eMedical Explorer™), a worldwide Internet software solution for the medical
profession and ancillary fields, for 20 years with an option to renew for 20 years by mutual consent of the
parties, for initial consideration in the amount of $500,000. Additional consideration includes payments to
INToo of $ 21,800 upon closing, 20% of net revenues realized by the Company by licensing the eMedical
Explorer to third parties, and the issuance from the Company’s treasury shares equal to 19% of the total
issued and outstanding shares after completion of the first $ 1,000,000 in financing by the Company in
conjunction with the transactions contemplated in this Agreement together with a share purchase warrant to
acquire an additional 700,000 of the Company’s common shares for 2 years from the date of the Agreement.
The terms and conditions are subject to the approval of the CDNX.

6. SHARE CAPITAL
Number

of Shares Amount
Authorized:
100,000,000 common shares without par value
Issued:
Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $ 5,365,958
Exercise of share purchase warrants — for cash 1,000,000 150,000
Balance as at March 31, 2001 5,607,371 $5,515,958

IINAUDITED - PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
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Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2001

6. SHARE CAPITAL (cont’d.....)

Included in issued share capital are 51,651 common shares that are subject to an escrow agreement and may
not be transferred, assigned or otherwise dealt with without consent of the regulatory authorities.

In January 2001, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares at a price of $0.15 per share for total cash
proceeds of $150,000 pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants.

7. STOC-K OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

The Company, in accordance with the policies of the Canadian Venture Exchange, is authorized to grant
options to executive officers and directors, employees and consultants enabling them to acquire up to 10%
of the issued and outstanding common stock of the Company. The exercise price of each option equals the
market price of the Company’s stock as calculated on the date of grant. The options can be granted for a
maximum term of 5 years.

The following incentive stock options were outstanding at March 31, 2001:

Number Exercise
of Shares Price  Expiry Date
310,000 $1.55 February 21, 2002

All of these options have vested and are exercisable by the holder,

Following is a summary of the stock option activity:

Number Weighted

of Shares Average

Exercise

Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2000 310,000 $1.55
Granted - -
Expired/cancelled - -
Exercised - -
Qutstanding at March 31, 2001 310,000 $1.55
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Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2001

7. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (cont’d.....)

Following is a summary of the status of options outstanding at March 31, 2001:

Qutstanding Options Exercisable Qptions
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Contractual Exercise Exercise
Prices Number Life Price Number Price
$1.55 310,000 .89 years $1.55 310,000 $1.55

The following share purchase warrants were outstanding at March 31, 2001:

Number  Exercise
of Shares Price  Expiry Date

1,500,000 200 April5, 2002

Subsequent the March 31, 2001 the Company acquired regulatory approval to extend the expiry date of
1,500,000 warrants to April 5, 2002, exercisable at a new exercise price of § 2.00 per share. The original
terms set a price of § 1.00 per share, exercisable on or before April 5, 2001.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the three months ended March 31, 2001, the Company entered into the following transactions with
related parties:

a) Paid or accrued consulting fees of $37,500 to a director or a company controlled by a director of the
Company.

b) Paid or accrued management fees of $15,000 to a director of the Company.

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value which
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

9, SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE FOR NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

During the three months ended March 31, 2001, there were no significant non-cash transactions.

UNAUDITED - PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT




Vault Systems Inc.

Notes to Interim Financial Statements
March 31, 2001

10. FUTURE INCOME TAXES

Future tax assets and liability:

Future tax assets:

$ 3,329
Capital assets
Loss carryforwards 517,570
Mineral properties written-off 170,254
Valuation allowance (691,153)
Total future tax assets after valuation $ -
allowance
Net future tax liability $ -

Management believes that it is not likely that it will create sufficient taxable income to realize its future tax
assets. It is reasonably possible these estimates could change due to future income and the timing and
manner of the reversal of future tax liabilities.

At December 31, 2000, the Company had approximately $1,135,000 in non-capital losses expiring at
various dates beginning in 2001, which are available for carryforward to reduce future income for tax
purposes. The potential tax benefit of these losses has not been recorded in these financial statements.

2000
Statutory income tax rate (46.5.%)
Loss carried forward to future years 46.5.%
Effective tax rate - %

UNAUDITED - PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
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Vault Systems Inc.
For the quarter ended March 31, 2001
FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Schedule A

Financial information prepared in accordance with Section 1751 of the C.1.C.A. Handbook or CICA Accounting
Guideline AcG-11 Enterprises in the Development Stage as per attached:

1. Interim Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2001 with comparative figures for the period ended
December 31, 2000

2. Interim Consolidated Statements of Loss and Deficit for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended
March 31, 2001 and 2000

3. Interim Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal quarters and year-to-date periods ended March 31,
2001 and 2000

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule B

Supplementary information not otherwise provided in Schedule A
1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

a) Breakdown of expensed research and development

INToo support agreement $ 70,000
Other miscellaneous 6,683
$ 76,683

2. Related party transactions
During the period under review the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties

e Paid or accrued consulting fees to directors of the Company in the amount of $ 37,500
e Paid or accrued management fees of $ 15,000 to a director of the Company

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value that
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the period.

During the period under review the company issued 1,000,000 common shares for total proceeds of $ 150,000
pursuant to the exercise of share purchase warrants. ’

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period.

a). Authorized
100,000,000 common shares without par value

Number of shares $ Amount
b). Issued and outstanding as at March 31, 2001




Balance as at December 31, 2000 4,607,371 $5,365,958

Exercise of warrants — for cash 1,000,000 150,000
Balance as at March 31, 2001 5,607,371 $5,515,958
__©). Outstanding as at March 31, 2001 Warrants Exercise price
Exercisable on or before April 5, 2002 * 1,500,000 $ 2.00 per share

*  Amended subsequent to the period under review. The original terms set a price of § 1.00 per share,
exercisable on or before April 5, 2001.

Options Exercise price

Exercisable on or before February 21, 2002 310,000 $0.1.55 per share

~d). Total number of shares in escrow or subject to a pooling agreement Number of shares
Escrowed shares 51,561

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this report is signed and filed.

J. Michael Mackey Director President Chief Operating Officer
David Rees Director Secretary
H. Barry Hemsworth Director
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
Schedule C

The Company’s principal business activity is the development of software for the medical profession and
ancillary fields. The Company is considered to be in the development stage.

Continued operations of the Company are dependent on the Company’s ability to receive continued financial
support from related parties, to complete public equity financing, or to generate profitable operation in the future.
As at March 31, 2001 the Company maintained a working capital balance of § 90,786.

Pursuant to an agreement dated May 23, 2001 (terminating a former agreement dated August 23, 2000) the
Company acquired the Electronic Medical Records ( EMR) Computer Application Software from INToo Software
Corporation ( “INT00™), including all program design specifications, source code, all rights with respect to
development, licensing, support, maintenance distribution, supply or exploitation of the system and associated
software applications including the Bedside Registration System and enhancement. It also acquired an option to
acquire full ownership of the Medical Mobile Software for 3 years for payment of $§ 500,000 or the equivalent in
the Company’s treasury shares based on the then market price ofthe Company’s shares. And it acquired a non-
exclusive world wide license to the e-Medical Explorer procurement technology (“eMedical Explorer”), a
worldwide Internet software solution for the medical profession and ancillary fields, for 20 years with an option
to renew for 20 years by mutual consent of the parties, for initial consideration in the amount of $500,000.
Additional consideration includes payments to INToo of $ 21,800 upon closing, 20% of net revenues realized by
the Company by licensing the eMedical Explorer to third parties, and the issuance from the Company’s treasury
shares equal to 19% of the total issued and outstanding shares after completion of the first $ 1,000,000 in
financing by the Company in conjunction with the transactions contemplated in this Agreement together with a




share purchase warrant to acquire an additional 700,000 of the Company’s common shares for 2 years from the
date of the Agreement. The terms and conditions are subject to the approval of the CDNX.

During the period under review the company acquired no additional capital equipment. There were no material
write-offs or write-down of assets. There were no other material contracts or commitments. There are no material
differences in the actual use of proceeds from previous disclosure regarding intended use of proceeds.

The Company entered into a Support Agreement dated September 20, 2000 whereby it was to pay to INToo

$ 70,000 per month for specific work performed and invoiced on the development of specific software solutions.

$ 420,000 was cumulatively paid to INToo for Research and Development under this agreement. The Support
Agreement, which was subject to regulatory approval, was subsequently terminated on January 1, 2001 and any
future support will be paid for on a project-by-project basis.

During the period under review, the company entered into transactions with related parties, including the
payments of consulting and management fees, as disclosed in schedule B to the Form 51 —901F quarterly report
and as presented in the unaudited interim financial statements. These transactions were in the normal course of
operations and were measured at the exchange values, which represented the amount of consideration
established and agreed to by the related parties.

During the prior fiscal year the Company engaged Netserve Communications Ltd. in consideration for § 5,000 per
month, to provide investor relations services (“IR”). This agreement was terminated in December 2000.
However, during the period under review the Company expended § 16,943 on IR, of which $ 11,000 was paid to
Netserve Communications Ltd. for fees and disbursements in completion of this engagement. The balance of
expenditures on investor relations were limited to minor costs of press releases, development of promotional
material and communicating to existing and new shareholders.

Subsequent to March 31, 2001 the following events occurred:

1. The Company acquired regulatory approval to extend the expiry date of 1,500,000 warrants to April 5, 2002,
exercisable at a new exercise price of $ 2.00 per share.

2. The Company signed an agreement with INToo software dated May 23, 2001 for the acquisition of the
Electronic Medical Record (EMR) Computer Application Software and terminated a former agreement with
INToo dated August 23, 2000. The terms of which are referred to above.




F1.

All news releases of the Company are included from January 1, 2001 to the date
of this submission.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

News Release

PRIVATE PLACEMENT ANNOUNCED
Trading Symbol: VMI — The TSX Venture Exchange October 10, 2003

Vault Minerals Inc. (the “Company”) is pleased to announce a non-brokered private
placement financing of up to $700,000, consisting of 2 million units at $0.35. Each unit
consists of one share and one share purchase warrant exercisable for a period of one year
from closing at $0.45. The private placement is subject to regulatory approval.

Proceeds from the placement will be used to fund fall/winter exploration programs on its
two core mineral projects in Ontario.

The Lebel Gold Project is strategically located in the historic Kirkland Lake Gold camp
(see News Release October 9, 2003) and the fall/winter program includes diamond
drilling.

The Attawapiskat Diamond Project is a 500 square kilometer, wholly owned land holding
in the James Bay Lowlands Diamond area 40 to 70 kilometers southeast of the DeBeers
Mining Company’s Victor Pipe (see news release September 22, 2003).

Vault Minerals Inc. is based in Vancouver, Canada. Its capital consists of 6,785,540
issued shares and outstanding shares.

For more information contact J. Michael Mackey, President, phone: 604-687-4456, fax:
604-687-0586, email: vault@shawbiz.ca or visit our website at www.vaultminerals.com

The TSX Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of the content of this
news release.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

News Release

Vault Initiates Exploration Planning and Data Compilations for its
Lebel Gold Project in Kirkland Lake, Ontario

Trading Symbol: VMI — The TSX Venture Exchange October 8, 2003

Vault Minerals Inc. (the “Company”) is pleased to announce the commencement of a
program of detailed data compilation for the Company’s strategically located group of
claims in the heart of Ontario’s historic Kirkland Lake gold area, known as the Lebel
Project. The results of this study will be used to help plan the Company’s forthcoming
exploration and development of the property which is now believed to host the eastern
extension of Kirkland Lake’s “Main Break”, the key gold bearing structure for mines that
make up Kirkland Lake’s “Golden Mile”.

The Lebel Project consists of four historic gold properties all in Lebel Township, 2 to 6
kilometers east of the Town of Kirkland Lake. The properties were amalgamated in 1999
into 60, road accessible, contiguous claim units, of which 27 are owned outright and 33
are optioned with rights to earn 100% equity interests through cash payments. Royalties
range from zero to less than 2% of net smelter returns. The combined properties contain
8 shafts, including 2 past gold producers from the prolific 1930°s and 1940’s era, and
numerous surface gold showings.

Recent geological re-interpretations of the Kirkland Lake area, independently supported
by the results from new trenching on Vault’s property 2000, which suggest the Lebel
properties lie directly on the eastern extension of the Kirkland Lake “Main Break”. Vein
systems in this fault system have been the richest in the area and have, to date,
cumulatively produced over 27 million ounces of gold at an overall mining grade of
approximately 15 grams gold/tonne (about one half ounce/ton).

In addition to locating the Kirkland Lake “Main Break™, exploration on Vault’s property
in 2000 significantly expanded a previously known gold occurrence, a 50 meter-wide
series of sub-parallel gold bearing veins and disseminations along a 500 meter strike
length a little south of the inferred “Main Break”. Channel samples from the extensive
trenching showed increasing gold values eastwards (up to 3 ounces over 2.7 meters). At
this point, the zone passes into an area of relatively shallow overburden where
interpretation of drilling done in the 1930°s and 40°s suggests it likely transforms into a
sizeable gold-bearing stockwork.

Another, separate, promising bulk tonnage prospect located south of the “Main Break”
was also trenched in 2000. It was found to be a 30 meter-wide zone of gold
mineralization, consistently carrying at least 1 gram gold per tonne. This mineralization
is interpreted to be over 300 meters long and is open along strike and at depth, where size
and grade enhancement are possible. Such bulk tonnage targets have significant potential




on the Lebel properties because open pit mining will be very inexpensive there, and
custom milling is available a few kilometers away, at the nearby Macassa mill in
Kirkland Lake.

Vault has now commenced a detailed compilation of historic data from and around the
Lebel properties and will integrate the results of this work with recently available, new,
government geological and geophysical data. The new compilation will be used to
improve Vault’s plan for the exploration on the Lebel properties. As currently envisaged,
exploration would initially focus on surface work along the “Main Break” together with
overburden removal and outcrop sampling of known areas of potential open pit
mineralization. Follow-up work would likely test drill targets on the “Main Break™ and
quantify newly stripped, near surface potential open pit mineralization.

In addition to its Lebel gold project Vault holds over 500 square kilometers of contiguous
claims in the Attawapiskat diamond area in the James Bay Lowlands, Ontario. Samples
collected on these claims contain promising diamond indicator minerals. A winterized
camp is being prepared for exploration of these claims after freeze-up this coming winter.

Vault Minerals Inc. is based in Vancouver, Canada. Its capital consists of 6,785,540
issued shares and outstanding shares.

For more information contact J. Michael Mackey, President, phone: 604-687-4456, fax:
604-687-0586, email: vault@shawbiz.ca or visit our website at www.vaultminerals.com

The TSX Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of the content of this
news release.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

430 - 580 Homby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 386
Telephone: (604) 687-4456 fFacsimile: (604) 687-0586

Vault Commences Exploration for Diamonds
Trading Symbol: VMI — The TSX Venture Exchange September 22, 2003

Vault Minerals Inc. (the “Company”) is pleased to announce that it has completed a field
program of sample collection and property examination on its wholly owned 55,000
hectares (or 200 square mile) property, near Attawapiskat in Ontario’s James Bay
Lowlands diamond play.

Results from this program, and the ongoing compilation of other related geological and
geophysical data, will be used to formulate the Company’s long range exploration plans
at Attawapiskat, including establishment of an all weather camp in preparation for the fall
and winter exploration programs.

Vault’s Attawapiskat property lies between 40 and 70 kilometers southeast of the Victor
Kimberlite pipe, where De Beers is completing a final mine feasibility study, with a
production decision expected by year end. The Company’s landholdings cover the
southeast extension of the major diabase dike system that appears spatially related to the
large Victor pipe and to the other 18 Attawapiskat kimberlites, according to recently
published government interpretation of geological and geophysical data in this area.
Vault’s predecessor company recognized this relationship 3 years ago, and initially
staked a core group of claims in 2000.

A consortium of companies; Metalex, Kelex, Arctic Star, Big Red Diamond and Antoro,
also began acquiring claims, some directly tied on to the Vault claims. To date the
consortium has spent in excess of $4 million on this land and have recovered promising
diamond indicator minerals from numerous auger samples whose compositions are
similar to those found in large diamonds at the Ekati mine and elsewhere. Kimberlite
fragments and angular indicator grains found in some of their auger samples suggest local
sources that, the consortium believes, are likely to be several undiscovered diamond-
bearing kimberlites.

Gravel and till samples from Vault’s 200 square mile contiguous claim block contain
promising diamond indicator minerals of apparently similar compositions. Vault’s
property remains largely unexplored and has significant diamond potential in its own
right. The claims are all valid without further work until 2005.

The Company has just completed a helicopter supported exploration program of gravel
and glacial till sampling that will serve as a reconnaissance and field study of Vault’s
new property before freeze-up and snow cover. The exploration program was carried out
under the supervision of the Company’s Qualified Person and Director, Andy Chater P.
Geo. The results from this work and from ongoing compilations of geological,




geophysical, terrain and remote sensing data will be used to help formulate Vault’s long
range exploration plans. Vault envisages an expanded exploration program on its
Attawapiskat property this coming winter, when surface access for equipment is possible.

In addition to its diamond prospect the Company holds 60 road accessible contiguous
claim units in the heart of the historic Kirkland Lake gold camp.

An exploration and development program is being finalized for late fall/winter 2003/04
for this project (the Lebel project) and details will be released shortly.

Vault Minerals Inc. is based in Vancouver, Canada. Its capital consists of 6,785,540
issued shares.

For more information contact Michael Mackey, phone (604) 222 4971, email
j-m.m@telus.net.

On Behalf of the Board
VAULT MINERALS INC.

“J. Michael Mackey”
J. Michael Mackey, President

The TSX Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of the content of this
news release.




VAULT MINERALS INC.

430 ~ 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 3B6
Telephone: (604) 687-4456 Facsimile: (604) 687-0586

NEWS RELEASE (Amended) August 25, 2003

REORGANIZATION NOW COMPLETE

Vault Minerals Inc. (“Vault”) TSXv.VMI is pleased to announce it has completed a full
reorganization, which includes the acquisition of Goldaur Resources Inc. (“Goldaur”), a
privately owned Ontario company with two core mineral exploration projects in Ontario.

The aerially extensive Attawapiskat Diamond Project is a major, wholly owned land

holding in the James Bay lowlands and the Lebel Gold Project is strategically located in
the heart of the historic Kirkland Lake gold camp.

Financing has been provided by way of a private placement of 2,630,000 units at $0.20
(consisting of one share and one warrant exercisable at $0.30) to net the treasury
$526,000.00 through the facilities of Haywood Securities Inc. These funds will be used
to finance exploration and development of the two mineral projects.

The Antawapiskat Project — Diamonds

This 100% owned property is one contiguous 55,136 hectare block (140,000 acres) which
lies from 40 to 70 kilometers southwest of the DeBeers mining company’s Victor
kimberlite pipe. A diamond production decision for the Victor pipe is expected by the
end of this year.

Goldaur staked the core claim in early 2000. The following year a consortium of
companies including Metalex, Arctic Star, and Bid Red Diamond/Amtoro Joint Venture
began acquiring land in the area, much of which is directly tied onto the Vault claims. To
date the consortium, under the direction of Chuck Fipke, has spent in excess of $4 million
on this land and they report promising diamond indicator minerals from Kimberlites.

Vault’s property remains largely unexplored although samples collected in 2002 contain
promising diamond indicator minerals. Pre freeze-up reconnaissance work on this
property is scheduled for September of this year with follow-up exploration to begin
early in the new year,

The Lebel Project — Gold

The Lebel project consists of 4 historic gold properties, 2 to 6 kilometers east of the town
of Kirkland Lake. The property is made up of 60 road accessible, contiguous claims that
contain 8 shafts, including 2 past gold producers along with numerous surface gold
showings.




Recent geological re-interpretations of the Kirkland Lake area, independently supported
by trenching on Vault’s Lebel property in 2000, suggest the property lies directly on the
eastern extension of the Kirkiand Lake “Main Break”. Vein systems from this fauit
system are the richest in the area and have, to date, cumulatively produced over 27
million ounces of gold at an overall mining grade of 15 grams/ton (approximately 0.5
ounces/ton).

As well as locating a “Main Break” type structure in 2000, exploration on Vault’s
property uncovered a 50 meter-wide series of sub-parallel gold bearing veins and
disseminations along a 500-meter strike length. Channel samples showed increasing gold
values eastwards (up to 3 ounces over 2.7 meters). At this point the zone passes into an
area of relatively shallow overburden where interpretation of historic drilling done in the
30’s and 40°s suggests it likely transforms into a sizeable gold-bearing stockwork.
Another, separate, promising bulk tonnage prospect on the Lebel Project was also
trenched in 2000 and found to be a 30 meter wide zone of gold mineralization
consistently carrying at least 1 gram gold per ton. It is over 300 meters long and open
along strike and at depth, where size and grade enhancement is possible. Such targets are
of real interest on the Lebel property because of economical open pit mining with custom
milling available at the nearby Macassa mill in Kirkland Lake.

On Behalf of the Board
VAULT MINERALS INC.

“J. Michael Mackey”

J. Michael Mackey, President
For further information contact: email: jmmackev@telus.net
Tel: 604-222-4971

The TSX Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of the content of this
news release.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

430 — 580 Homby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 386
Telephone: (604) 687-4456 Facsimile: (604) 687-0586

NEWS RELEASE August 25, 2003

REORGANIZATION NOW COMPLETE

Vault Minerals Inc. (“Vault”) TSXv.VMI is pleased to announce it has completed a full
reorganization, which includes the acquisition of Goldaur Resources Inc. (“Goldaur™), a
privately owned Ontario company with two core mineral exploration projects in Ontario.

The aerially extensive Attawapiskat Diamond Project is a major, wholly owned land
holding in the James Bay lowlands and the Lebel Gold Project is strategically located in
the heart of the historic Kirkland Lake gold camp.

Financing has been provided by way of a private placement of 2,630,000 units at $0.20
(consisting of one share and one warrant exercisable at $0.30) to net the treasury
$526,000.00 through the facilities of Haywood Securities Inc. These funds will be used
to finance exploration and development of the two mineral projects.

The Attawapiskat Project — Diamonds

This 100% owned property is one contiguous 55,136 hectare block (140,000 acres) which
lies from 40 to 70 kilometers southwest of the DeBeers mining company’s Victor
kimberlite pipe. A diamond production decision for the Victor pipe is expected by the
end of this year.

Goldaur staked the core claim in early 2000. The following year a consortium of
companies including Metalex, Arctic Star, and Bid Red Diamond/Amtoro Joint Venture
began acquiring land in the areca, much of which is directly tied onto the Vault claims. To
date the consortium, under the direction of Chuck Fipke, has spent in excess of $4 million
on this land and they report promising diamond indicator minerals from Kimberlites.

Vault’s property remains largely unexplored although samples collected in 2002 contain
promising diamond indicator minerals. Pre freeze-up reconnaissance work on this
property is scheduled for September of this year with follow-up exploration to begin
early in the new year.

The Lebel Project — Gold

The Lebel project consists of 4 historic gold properties, 2 to 6 kilometers east of the town
of Kirkland Lake. The property is made up of 60 road accessible, contiguous claims that
contain 8 shafts, including 2 past gold producers along with numerous surface gold
showings.




Recent geological re-interpretations of the Kirkland Lake area, independently supported
by trenching on Vault’s Lebel property in 2000, suggest the property lies directly on the
eastern extension of the Kirkland Lake “Main Break”., Vein systems from this fault
system are the richest in the area and have, to date, cumulatively produced over 27
million ounces of gold at an overall mining grade of 15 grams/ton (approximately 0.5
ounces/ton).

As well as locating a “Main Break” type structure in 2000, exploration on Vault’s
property uncovered a 50 meter-wide series of sub-parallel gold bearing veins and
disseminations along a 500-meter strike length. Channel samples showed increasing gold
values eastwards (up to 3 ounces over 2.7 meters). At this point the zone passes into an
area of relatively shallow overburden where interpretation of historic drilling done in the
30’s and 40°s suggests it likely transforms into a sizeable gold-bearing stockwork.
Another, separate, promising bulk tonnage prospect on the Lebel Project was also
trenched in 2000 and found to be a 30 meter wide zone of gold mineralization
consistently carrying at least 1 gram gold per ton. It is over 300 meters long and open
along strike and at depth, where size and grade enhancement is possible. Such targets are
of real interest on the Lebel property because of economical open pit mining with custom
milling available at the nearby Macassa mill in Kirkland Lake.

On Behalf of the Board
VAULT MINERALS INC.

“J. Michael Mackey”

J. Michael Mackey, President
For further information contact: email: jmmackev@telus.net
Tel: 604-222-4971

The TSX Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of the content of this
news release.




VAULT MINERALS INC.
(formerly Vault Systems Inc.)
430~ 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 3B6
Telephone: (604) 687-4456 Facsimile: (604) 687-0386

NEWS RELEASE

July 23, 2003 — Vault Systems Inc. (the "Company") has completed its acquisition of Goldaur Resources
Ltd. and the concurrent equity financing of 2,630,000 units at $0.20 per unit. Pursuant to the acquisition,
Goldaur has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the shareholders of Goldaur have
received an aggregate of 2,500,000 common shares, 2,500,000 share purchase warrants exercisable at
$0.30 per share for a period of two years, and 1,000,000 contingent value rights entitling them to receive
up to 1,000,000 additional shares of the Company if certain financing commitments are not reached
within the next year. A finder's fee of 100,000 shares was paid on the acquisition. Thé securities issued
to the Goldaur shareholders have no resale restrictions, The finder's fees shares are subject to a hold
period expiring on November 23, 2003.

Concurrent with closing of the acquisition, the Company has completed a $526,000 equity financing, with
the issuance of 2,630,000 units consisting of one common share and one warrant at a price of $0.20 per
unit (the "Private Placement"). Haywood Securities Inc. received a finder's fee of $20,800 in cash and
156,000 units of the Company. The shares and warrants issued on the financing and as part of the finders
fee are subject to a hold period expiring November 23, 2003. 1,350,000 of the units were issued on a
flow-through basis.

The Company is proceeding with the exploration programs on its Attawapiskat Property, in the
Attawapiskat area of Northern Ontario. Goldaur also has significant gold properties in the Kirland Lake
gold camp and the directors are reviewing various options for the development of these properties.

Pursuant to the financing, John Tognetti acquired 425,000 shares of the Company and warrants to acquire
an additional 425,000 shares of the Company. Prior to the acquisition, Mr. Tognetti owned and exercised
control over 149,333 shares of the Company. Upon completion of the financing, Mr. Tognetti owns and
exercises controls over 574,333 shares of the Company representing 8.46% of the outstanding shares of
Company on a non-diluted basis and holds warrants which, if exercised, could increase his holdings in the
Company to 999,333 common shares representing 13.86% of the then outstanding shares of Company,
assuming no other shares of the Company are issued.

In addition, Mr. Ian A. Macintosh, a shareholder of Goldaur Resources Inc. acquired 100,000 shares of
the Company pursuant to the financing and warrants to acquire an additional 100,000 shares of the
Company. Pursuant to the acquisition, Mr. Macintosh acquired, in exchange for his shares in Goldaur,
869,868 shares of the Company and warrants and contingent value rights to acquire and additional
1,217,810 shares of the Company. Upon completion of the financing and the acquisition, Mr. Macintosh
owns and exercises controls over 969,869 shares of the Company representing 14.29% of the outstanding
shares of Company on a non-diluted basis and holds warrants and rights which, if exercised, could
increase his holdings in the Company to 2,287,679 common shares representing 28.23% of the then
outstanding shares of Company, assuming no other shares of the Company are issued.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACT:

Michael Mackey
President at (604) 222-4971




VAULT MINERALS INC.
(formerly Vault Systems Inc.)
430— 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 3B6
Telephone. (604) 6874456 Facsimile: (604) 687-0586

NEWS RELEASE

July 23, 2003 — Vault Systems Inc. (the "Company”) has completed its acquisition of Goldaur Resources
Ltd. and the concurrent equity financing of 2,630,000 units at $0.20 per unit. Pursuant to the acquisition,
Goldaur has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the shareholders of Goldaur have
received an aggregate of 2,500,000 common shares, 2,500,000 share purchase warrants exercisable at
$0.30 per share for a period of two years, and 1,000,000 contingent value rights entitling them to receive
up to 1,000,000 additional shares of the Company if certain financing commitments are not reached
within the next year. A finder's fee of 100,000 shares was paid on the acquisition. The securities issued
to the Goldaur shareholders have no resale restrictions. The finder's fees shares are subject to a hold
period expiring on November 23, 2003.

Concurrent with closing of the acquisition, the Company has completed a $526,000 equity financing, with
the issuance of 2,630,000 units consisting of one common share and one warrant at a price of $0.20 per
unit (the "Private Placement"). Haywood Securities Inc. received a finder's fee of $20,800 in cash and
156,000 units of the Company. The shares and warrants issued on the financing and as part of the finders
fee are subject to a hold period expiring November 23, 2003. 1,350,000 of the units were issued on a
flow-through basis.

The Company is proceeding with the exploration programs on its Attawapiskat Property, in the
Attawapiskat area of Northern Ontario. Goldaur also has significant gold properties in the Kirland Lake
gold camp and the directors are reviewing various options for the development of these properties.

Pursuant to the financing, John Tognetti acquired 425,000 shares of the Company and warrants to acquire
an additional 425,000 shares of the Company. Prior to the acquisition, Mr. Tognetti owned and exercised
control over 149,333 shares of the Company. Upon completion of the financing, Mr. Tognetti owns and
exercises controls over 574,333 shares of the Company representing 8.46% of the outstanding shares of
Company on a non-diluted basis and holds warrants which, if exercised, could increase his holdings in the
Company to 999,333 common shares representing 13.86% of the then outstanding shares of Company,
assuming no other shares of the Company are issued.

In addition, Mr. lan A. Macintosh, a shareholder of Goldaur Resources Inc. acquired 100,000 shares of
the Company pursuant to the financing and warrants to acquire an additional 100,000 shares of the
Company. Pursuant to the acquisition, Mr. Macintosh acquired, in exchange for his shares in Goldaur,
869,868 shares of the Company and warrants and contingent value rights to acquire and additional
1,217,810 shares of the Company. Upon completion of the financing and the acquisition, Mr. Macintosh
owns and exercises controls over 969,869 shares of the Company representing 14.29% of the outstanding
shares of Company on a non-diluted basis and holds warrants and rights which, if exercised, could

increase his holdings in the Company to 2,287,679 common shares representing 28.23% of the then
outstanding shares of Company, assuming no other shares of the Company are issued.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACT:

Michael Mackey
President at (604) 222-4971




VAULT MINERALS INC.
(formerly Vault Systems Inc.)
430 - 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 3B6
Telephone: (604) 6874456 Facsimile: (604) 687-0586

NEWS RELEASE

July 23, 2003 — Vault Systems Inc. (the "Company") has completed its acquisition of Goldaur Resources
Ltd. and the concurrent equity financing of 2,630,000 units at $0.20 per unit. Pursuant to the acquisition,
Goldaur has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the shareholders of Goldaur have
received an aggregate of 2,500,000 common shares, 2,500,000 share purchase warrants exercisable at
$0.30 per share for a period of two years, and 1,000,000 contingent value rights entitling them to receive
up to 1,000,000 additional shares of the Company if certain financing commitments are not reached
within the next year. A finder's fee of 100,000 shares was paid on the acquisition. The securities issued
to the Goldaur shareholders have no resale restrictions. The finder's fees shares are subject to a hold
period expiring on November 23, 2003.

Concurrent with closing of the acquisition, the Company has completed a $526,000 equity financing, with
the issuance of 2,630,000 units consisting of one common share and one warrant at a price of $0.20 per
unit (the "Private Placement"). Haywood Securities Inc. received a finder's fee of $20,800 in cash and
156,000 units of the Company. The shares and warrants issued on the financing and as part of the finders
fee are subject to a hold period expiring November 23, 2003. 1,350,000 of the units were issued on a
flow-through basis.

The Company is proceeding with the exploration programs on its Attawapiskat Property, in the
Attawapiskat area of Northern Ontario. Goldaur also has significant gold properties in the Kirland Lake
gold camp and the directors are reviewing various options for the development of these properties.

Pursuant to the financing, John Tognetti acquired 425,000 shares of the Company and warrants to acquire
an additional 425,000 shares of the Company. Prior to the acquisition, Mr. Tognetti owned and exercised
control over 149,333 shares of the Company. Upon completion of the financing, Mr. Tognetti owns and
exercises controls over 574,333 shares of the Company representing 8.46% of the outstanding shares of
Company on a non-diluted basis and holds warrants which, if exercised, could increase his holdings in the
Company to 999,333 common shares representing 13.86% of the then outstanding shares of Company,
assuming no other shares of the Company are issued.

In addition, Mr. Ian A. Macintosh, a shareholder of Goldaur Resources Inc. acquired 100,000 shares of
the Company pursuant to the financing and warrants to acquire an additional 100,000 shares of the
Company. Pursuant to the acquisition, Mr. Macintosh acquired, in exchange for his shares in Goldaur,
869,868 shares of the Company and warrants and contingent value rights to acquire and additional
1,217,810 shares of the Company. Upon completion of the financing and the acquisition, Mr. Macintosh
owns and exercises controls over 969,869 shares of the Company representing 14.29% of the outstanding
shares of Company on a non-diluted basis and holds warrants and rights which, if exercised, could

increase his holdings in the Company to 2,287,679 common shares representing 28.23% of the then
outstanding shares of Company, assuming no other shares of the Company are issued.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACT:

Michael Mackey
President at (604) 222-4971




VAULT MINERALS INC.
430 — 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 3B6
Telephone. (604) 6874456 Facsimile: (604) 687-0586

NEWS RELEASE

July 23, 2003 — Vault Systems Inc. (the "Company") announces the granting of an aggregate of 1,150,000
incentive stock options to certain directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Company, pursuant
to the Company's stock option plan. The options are exercisable for six months (as to 300,000 options)
and two years (as to 850,000 options) at a price of $0.40 per share and are subject to the approval of the
TSX Venture Exchange.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACT:

Michael Mackey
President at (604) 222-4971

The TSX Venture Exchange has not reviewed, and does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or
accuracy of the content of this news release.



VAULT MINERALS INC.

(formerly Vault Systems Inc.)
430 — 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 3B6
Telephone. (604) 6874456 Facsimile: (604) 687-0586

NEWS RELEASE

June 20, 2003 — Vault Systems Inc. (the "Company"} advises that the Company has completed the
consolidation of its share capital on the basis of 6 old shares for 1 new share, as announced in the

Company's news release of May 16, 2003, and has concurrently changed its name to Vault Minerals Inc.

Effective June 18, 2003, the common shares of Vault Minerals In¢c. commenced trading on the TSX

Venture Exchange under the new symbol "VMILT".

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACT:

Michael Mackey
President at (604) 222-4971




Vault Systems Inc. 430-580 Hornby Street Telephone: (604) 687-4456
Vancouver, BC Facsimile: (604) 687-0586
V6C 3B6 Email: jmmackey@telus.net
May 20, 2003 News Release

Vault Systems Inc. (the “Company”) and Haywood Securities Inc. have revised the terms of the Company’s previously
announced private placement.

The new terms of the private placement are as follows:

« 2,600,000 post consolidation shares (of which up to 1,300,000 are flow-through) at a price of $0.20 per share
for total proceeds of $520,000 with warrants attached to purchase 2,600,000 shares at a price of $0.30 per
share for a two year period,

+  Haywood to receive a cash commission of $20,800 and 156,000 units.

The placement is conditionally acceptable to the TSX Venture Exchange.
At the Company’s AGM held on May 16%, 2003, shareholders approved:

» six old shares for one new share consolidation,

»  Agreement dated March 13, 203 between the Company and Goldaur Resources Inc. whereby the Company
will acquire Goldaur (see the Company’s News Release dated March 14, 2003 for details of this acquisition),

+ election of the following as directors; J. Michael Mackey, David Rees, Andrew Chater, H. Barry Hemsworth,
and William Schmidt,

+ change of name to Vault Minerals Inc.,

« amendment to existing stock option plan to 20% of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company post-
consolidation.

VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
“J. Michael Mackey”

J. Michael Mackey,
President

The TSX Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of the content this




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 - 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 3B6

Telephone: (604) 6874456 Facsimile: (604) 687-0586

NEWS RELEASE

March 14, 2003. Vault Systems Inc. (the "Company") has entered into an agreement to acquire Goldaur
Resources hc., a privately held Ontario company. The proposed acquisition is by way of statutory
amalgamation under which a newly formed Ontario incorporated subsidiary of the Company would
amalgamate with Goldaur. Under the amalgamation Goldaur shareholders will receive an aggregate of 2.5
million shares (post 6 for 1 consolidation) of the Company. Goldaur shareholders will also receive
contingent rights to receive an additional 500,000 shares if the Company has not raised $1,000,000 of
new equity financing by December 31, 2003 and a further 500,000 shares if the requisite $1,000,000 of
new equity financing has not been raised by June 30, 2004. The acquisition will form the basis of the
Company's reactivation plan and is subject to all necessary sharcholder and regulatory approvals,
including the approval of Goldaur shareholders.

Following completion of the proposed (see March 3, 2003 news release) share consolidation, debt
settlement and private placement, the Company will have 3,999,562 shares outstanding (6,254,562 fully
diluted). As such, Goldaur shareholders (approximately 44 in number) will hold 38.5% of the company's
outstanding common shares (28.6% of the Company's common shares on a fully diluted basis). The
largest Goldaur shareholder would hold 13.5% of the Company's common shares (10.03% fully diluted).
If the contingent rights to acquire an additional 1,000,000 shares of the company were fully effected for
failure to raise sufficient new equity, Goldaur shareholders would hold 46.7% of the company's
outstanding shares (35.6% fully diluted) with the largest Goldaur shareholder holding 16.4% of the
Company's outstanding shares (12.6% fully diluted). For the purpose of share calculations in this
paragraph, the $420,000 convertible notes to be issued are deemed to be converted into units.

Goldaur Resources Inc. is a private company engaged in exploration for gold and diamonds. Its Lebel
Project consists of 60 contiguous mining claims located in Ontario's historic Kirkland Lake gold camp.
The property incaporates 8 inactive mining and exploration shafts, two of which, the Bidgood and
Moffat Hall, were former smali-scale gold producers. Goldaur has identified a number of exploration
targets on this property. Goldaur also owns 404 mining claim units in northeastern Ontario that it
acquired for the purposes of diamond exploration.

The Company has received, or is about to receive, advances totalling $260,000 which will be repaid from
the proceeds of the $420,000 convertible notes offering announced March 3, 2003. Up to 80,000 bonus
shares may be issued in connection with these advances subject to stock exchange approval.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACT:
"Michael Mackey"

Michael Mackey
President at (604) 222-4971

A007402000/17785.1




Item 1.
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Item 3.

Item 4.

Item 5.

Item 6.

Item 7.

Item 8.

Item 9.

MATERIAL CHANGE REPORT UNDER SECTION 85(1)
OF THE BRITISH COLUMBIA SECURITIES ACT

MATERIAL CHANGE REPORT UNDER SECTION 118(1)
OF THE ALBERTA SECURITIES ACT

Reporting Issuer

VAULT SYSTEMS INC.

430 — 580 Hornby Street
Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 3B6

Date of Material Change

March 14, 2003
Press Release

Vault Systems Inc. (the "Issuer") issued a press release on March 14, 2003 through the
facilities of Stockwatch and Market News.

Summary of Material Change

See attached news release.

Full Description of Material Change

See attached news release

Reliance on Section 85(2) of the British Columbia Securities Act &
Reliance on Section 118(2) of the Alberta Securities Act

This report is not being filed on a confidential basis.

Omitted Information

There are no significant facts required to be disclosed herein which have been omitted.
Senior Officers
To obtain further information contact the President, at +(604) 222-4971.

Statement of Senior Officer

The foregoing accurately discloses the material changes referred to herein.

DATED this 14 day of March 2003.

Michael Mackey, President




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430— 580 Hornby Street, Vancouver, B.C. Canada V6C 3B6

Telephone: (604) 6874456 Facsimile: (604) 687-0586

NEWS RELEASE

March 3, 2003 — Vault Systems Inc. has reached agreement, subject to regulatory approval, for the private
placement of $420,000 of one-year 8% convertible notes. The notes will be convertible, following a 6
(old shares) for 1 (new share) consolidation, into units on the basis of one unit for every $0.20 of principal
amount outstanding. Each unit will consist of a common share (post-consolidated) and a warrant entitling
the holder to purchase an additional common share (post-consolidated) for two years at $0.30 per share.
The notes and warrants will be subject to forced conversion if the common shares trade at not less than
300% of the respective conversion/exercise prices for twenty consecutive trading days. The consolidation
will be proposed at the Company's annual meeting to be scheduled in early May 2003.

Proceeds will be used for staking mining claims in northern Ontario and for working capital. The
Company is in negotiations for acquisition of additional interests in the area. If successful, this
acquisition will form the basis of the Company's reactivation.

A portion of the private placement is being compkted by insiders from the proceeds of the recent market
sale of 2,500,000 shares (pre-consolidated) at $0.04 per share. Haywood Securities Inc. assisted with the
purchase of these securities and will receive a finder's fee and a one year financing right of first refusal, in
connection with the issuance of convertible notes.

The Company has also agreed, subject to regulatory approval, to issue 500,000 post-consolidated shares
in settlement of $100,000 of outstanding debt.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION PLEASE CONTACT:

Michael Mackey
President at (604) 222-4971

A/007402000/17618.1




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 - 580 Hornby Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B6
(604) 687-4456

News Release January 3, 2002

Vault Systems Inc. (the ‘Company’) symbol (VSY - CDNX) announces a private placement of
1 million units at a price of $0.10 per unit (each unit to consist of 1 share and 1 two year share
purchase warrant). Warrants are exercisable at a price of $0.10 per share.

The funds will be used for working capital.

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Directors
*J.M. Mackey”

J. Michael Mackey, President & COO

For further information contact:
J. Michael Mackey

Tel 604-222-4971

Fax 604-222-2103

Email: jmmackey@telus.net




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 - 580 Hornby Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B6
(604) 687-4456

News Release December 3, 2001

Vault Systems Inc. (the ‘Company’) symbol (VSY - CDNX) announces a private placement of
2 million units at a price of $0.10 per unit (each unit to consist of 1 share and 1 two year share
purchase warrant). Warrants are exercisable at a price of $0.10 per share during the first year
and $0.15 per share during the second year from the date of issuance.

The funds will be used for working capital.

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Directors
“J.M. Mackey”

J. Michael Mackey, President & COO

For further information contact:
J. Michael Mackey

Tel 604-222-4971

Fax 604-222-2103

Email: jmmackey@telus.net



VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 - 580 Hornby Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B6
(604) 687-4456

News Release November 27, 2001

Vault Systems Inc. (the ‘Company’) symbol (VSY - CDNX) announces a private placement of
2 mifion units at a price of $0.05 per unit (each unit to consist of 1 share and 1 share purchase

warrant). Warrants are exercisable at a price of $0.10 per share for a period of one year form
the date of issuance.

The funds will be used for working capital.

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Directors
“J.M. Mackey”

J. Michael Mackey, President & COO

For further information contact:
J. Michael Mackey

Tel 604-222-4971

Fax 604-222-2103

Email: jmmackey@telus.net




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 - 580 Hornby Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B6
(604) 687-4456

News Release November 20, 2001

Vault Systems Inc. (the ‘Company’) symbol (VSY - CDNX) announces that it has acquired a
non-exclusive worldwide license to the eMedical Explorer procurement technology for 20 years
with an option to renew for 20 years by mutual consent of the parties pursuant to the terms of it's
May 23, 2001 Agreement with INToo Software Corporation (INToo). The parties further agree to
pay 20% of the net revenues realized by license of eMedical Explorer to a third party to the
Company or INToo as the case may be.

Due to the failure to receive certain deliverables contracted for in audit and consultant
engagement letters with the Company’s former auditors, the Company has been unable to raise
the funds necessary to complete the rest of the proposed transactions with INToo under the
terms of the May 23, 2001 Agreement (see May 29, 2001 News Release) and accordingly, those
parts of the Agreement have been terminated.

The Company will write down the $500,000 value attributed to the INToo software in its financial
statements.

Based on research of healthcare technology needs and consultation with medical professionals
the Company plans to develop applications for the healthcare industry initially focusing on an
EMR (Electronic Medical Record) system to provide an overall solution for an automated system
for entry and extraction of patient data utilizing an ASP (Application Service Provider) model to
deliver solutions over the Internet for both monthly and transaction fees to medical facilities. The
software will have the same look and feel as current medical records.

The system will also incorporate wireless and remote server solutions. The Company has
identified beta test sites for the software.

The Company plans a private placement of shares to provide working capital and fund the initial
design and development of the system. Additional funding will be required to market and fine-
tune the system. Working capital as at October 31, 2001 was $20,000. The Company is an
inactive Issuer and cannot at this date grant new incentive stock options nor can options
previously granted to insiders be exercised.



The Canadian Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the
adequacy or accuracy of the contents of this news release.

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Directors
“J.M. Mackey”

J. Michael Mackey, President & COO

For further information contact:
J. Michael Mackey

Tel 604-222-4971

Fax 604-222-2103

Email: jmmackey@telus.net




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 - 580 Hornby Street
Vancouver, B.C. VéC 3B6
(604) 687-4456

News Release July 26, 2001

Vault Systems Inc. (the ‘Company’) symbol (VSI - CDNX) announces  that
independent software consultants have been retained to evaluate the
computer application sofftware developed by INToo Software Corporation and
subject of the Company's Agreement with INToo dated May 23, 2001.

The proprietary software is an overall solution for an automated system for entry
and extraction of patient data on a secure central server infrastructure to assist
physicians and other healthcare providers. The system is also being developed
as a handheld wireless solution for use in a clinical environment. The data will be
accessible locally via wireless network and LAN, and remotely via cellular or
landline telephone networks. This system forms part of a larger Internet portal
focused on providing a comprehensive medical software suite including
procurement, management, and adminisiration and data integration.

The independent audit is expected to be completed by July month end and the
Company willissue a news release after reviewing the audit.

The Canadian Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept
responsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of the contents of this news release.

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Directors
J. Michael Mackey, President & COO

For further information contact:
J. Michael Mackey

Tel 604-222-4971

Fax 604-222-2103

Email: jmmackey@telus.net




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 - 580 Homnby Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B6
(604) 687-4456

News Release May 29, 2001

Vault Acquires Electronic Medical Record (EMR) Computer Application Software from INToo
Software Corporation/Sets Annual General Meeting Date.

VAULT SYSTEMS INC. Richmond, Canada (CNDX — VSY) (the “Company”) announces that is has

signed an Agreement with INToo Software Corporation (“INToo”) dated May 23, 2001 (the
“Agreement”).

Under the terms of the Agreement the Company acquires:

. The EMR system including all program design specifications, source code, all rights with respect
to development, licensing, support, maintenance distribution, supply or exploitation of the system
and associated software applications including the Bedside Registration System and enhancement.

. An option to acquire full ownership of the Medical Mobile Software for 3 years for payment of
$500,000 or the equivalent in the Company’s treasury shares based on the then market price of
the Company’s shares.

. A non-exclusive world wide license to Emedical Explorer procurement technology (“Emedical
Explorer™) for 20 years with an option to renew for 20 years by mutual consent of the parties.

If within 5 years from the date of the Agreement INToo:
. Sells Emedical Explorer to a third party INToo shall pay the Company 20% of the sale price

. Licenses Emedical Explorer to a third party INToo shall pay the Company 20% of the net
revenues it receives.

The Company agrees to:
. Pay INToo $21,800 on closing

. Pay INToo 20% of net revenues realized by the Company licensing Emedical Explorer to third
parties.




. Issue to INToo treasury shares equal to 19% of the total issued and outstanding shares of the
Company after completion of the first $1,000,000 infinancing by the Company in conjunction with
the transactions contemplated in this Agreement together with a share purchase warrant to acquire
an additional 700,000 of the Company’s common shares for 2 years from the date of the
Agreement.

The above terms and conditions are subject to the approval of the CDNX. A previous agreement between
the parties dated August 23, 2000 has been terminated.

The proprietary software is an overall solution for an automated system for entry and extraction of patient
data on a secure central server infrastructure to assist physicians and other healthcare providers. The
system is also being developed as a handheld wireless solution for use in a clinical environment. The data
will be accessible locally via wireless network and LAN, and remotely via cellular or landline telephone
networks. This system forms part of alarger Internet portal focused on providing a comprehensive medical
software suite including procurement, management, and administration and data integration.

The Emedical Explorer system seamlessly integrates with legacy systems and improves their functionality.

The Bedside Registration system includes a handheld device, baseline radio network, an up-link server and
secure access to a data network.

In addition the Company has set June 29, 2001 as the date for its Annual General Meeting.

The Canadian Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept responsibility for the adequacy or
accuracy of the contents of this news release.

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Directors
J. Michael Mackey, President & COO

For further information contact:
J. Michael Mackey

Tel 604-222-4971

Fax 604-222-2103

Email: jmmackey@telus.net




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 - 580 Hornby Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B6
(604) 687-4456

April 24, 2001

NEWS RELEASE

VAULT SYSTEMS INC. Vancouver, Canada (CNDX - VSY) (the “Company”) is pleased
to announce that the Canadian Venture Exchange (CDNX) has agreed to an extension to
the term of the 1,500,000 non-transferable share purchase warrants (the “Warrants”)
issued by the company on April, 2000 from the original expiry date of April 5, 2001 to the
new expiry date of April 5, 2002. ’

The exercise price of the Warrants to be $2.00.

None of the Warrants issued by the Company have been exercised to this date.

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Directors
J. Michael Mackey, President & COO

The Canadian Venture Exchange has neither approved nor disapproved of the information contained
herein.




VAULT SYSTEMS INC.
430 - 580 Hornby Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3B6
(604) 687-4456

March 7, 2001

NEWS RELEASE

VAULT SYSTEMS INC. Vancouver, Canada (CNDX - VSY) (the “Company”) is making
application to the Canadian Venture Exchange to extend from one year to two years the
term of the share purchase Warrants (to purchase 1,500,000 shares at a price of $1.00
per share) previously approved on April 5, 2000. Subject to Canadian VVenture Exchange
approval the Warrants shall expire on April 5, 2002.

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Directors
J. Michael Mackey, President & COO

The Canadian Venture Exchange has neither approved nor disapproved of the information contained
herein.




Press Release January 24, 2001

VAULT SYSTEMS INC. Richmond, Canada (CNDX - VSY) (the “Company”) is pleased
to announce that it has completed ‘Alpha’ testing of two of its proprietary software
solutions for the Healthcare industry; (project named eMedical Explorer),

Baseline procurement/business to business program
Patient information/bedside registration program.

The Company has entered into a letter of Intent (“LO1") with Cambie Surgery Centre, a
leading healthcare provider, to Beta test both software solutions. Negotiations with other
beta test sites in the US and Canada are proceeding.

The proprietary software is an overall solution for an automated system for entry and
extraction of patient data on a secure central server infrastructure to assist physicians
and other healthcare providers. The system is also being developed as a handheld
wireless solution for use in a clinical environment. The data will be accessible locally via
wireless network and LAN, and remotely via cellular or landline telephone networks. This
system forms part of a larger Internet portal focused on providing a comprehensive
medical software suite including procurement, management, administration and data
integration.

The eMedical Explorer system seamlessly integrates with legacy systems and improves
their functionality.

The bedside registration system includes a handheld device, baseline radio network, an
up-link server and secure access to a data network.

The Company plans to mail an information circular to shareholders re its acquisition of
eMedical Explorer (“the Acquisition”) for their approval of the transaction by disinterested
shareholders.

Upon approval of the acquisition the Company will undertake a $2.5 million private
placement of special warrants. Canaccord Capital Corporation has agreed to act as
agent for the Company with respect to the private placement.

Concurrently with the acquisition of the eMedical Explorer system, the Company intends
to change its name to Medelink Systems Inc., subject to shareholder approval.

Completion of the above transaction is subject to a number of conditions, including but
not limited to Exchange acceptance and disinterested shareholder approval. The
transactions cannot close until the required shareholder approval is obtained. There can
be no assurance that the transactions will be completed as proposed or at all. Investors
are cautioned that, except as disclosed in the management Information Circular to be
prepared in connection with the transaction, any information released or received with
respect to the reverse take-over may not be accurate or complete and should not be
relied upon. Trading in the securities of the Company should be considered highly
speculative.

The Canadian Venture Exchange has not reviewed and does not accept




résponsibility for the adequacy or accuracy of the contents of this news release.

Approved on Behalf of the Board of Directors
J. Michael Mackey, President & COO




